
Ai475 Add.2

United Nations Children's Fund

General Assembly
Official Records •Forty-seventh Session

Supplement No. SB (A/47/5/Add.2)

Financial report and
audited fmancial statelllents

for the biennium ended
31 December 1991 and

ReportoftheBoardofAuditors

{1°f-
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



UnitedNations Children's Fund

Financial report and
audited financial statements

for the biennium eIlded
31 December 1991 and

Report ofthe Board ofAuditors

General Assembly
Official Records· Forty-seventh Session

Supplement No. 5B (A/47/5/Add.2)

ffJ_
~ J
~iJ!
~

United Nations . NewYork, 1992

A/4 7/5/Add.2

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



\i

'"I
',1

NOTE

Symbols ofUnited Nations documents are composed ofcapital letters combined with
figures. Mention ofsuch a symbol indicates a reference to a United Nations document.

ISSN 0251-8317

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



[Original: English]

[11 August 1992]

CONTENTS

ABBREVIATIONS ••••••••••.••.•••••.•...•...•••..••..•.•.•.....•............ vi

LETTERS OF TRANSMITTAL vii

I. FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE BIENNIUM ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1991 •••.••.•••• 1

IV. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE BIENNIUM ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1991 •...... 41

Statement of income and expenditures for the
biennium ended 31 December 1991 .•...•............. 42

3

39

BOARD OF AUDITORS .•.........•..•..•.......•..........
REPORT OF THE

AUDIT OPINION

.s.utement I.

II •

III.

Statement lA. Statement of income and expenditures for the
biennium ended 31 December 1991 ..•.•.........•.... 43

Statement II. Statement of assets, liabilities and fund balances
as at 31 December 1991 ••.•••••.•••••••.•..•....••. 44

Statement Ill. Statement of fund balances for the biennium ended
31 December 1991 45

Statement IV. Statement of cash flows for the biennium ended
31 December 1991

If" • • • • • • • • • • 46

Statement V. Status of funding for approved general resources
and supplementary funds as at 31 December 1991 47

Statement VI. Programme cooperation: statement of approved
programmes, expenditures and unspent balances for
general resources, supplementary funds and the
United Nations system for the biennium ended
31 December 1991 48

Statement VII. Status of approved budget estimates for the
biennium ended 31 December 1991 •....•.•........... 53

Statement VIII. Capital Assets Fund: statement of assets,
liabilities and fund balance as at 31 Decembe~ 1991 54

Notes to the financial statements ......••..•........••............• 55

-iii-

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



;' :

I . CONTENTS (continued)
I

"~<
i;

Schedules to the financial statements ••••.•••.••.•••••••.•.•..••.•

Schedule 1. Contributions received or pledgeJ for the
biennium ended 31 December 1991 - .•••••.••.•••••.

Schedule 2. Other income for the biennium ended
31 December 1991 ....•• c: ••••••••••••••••••••••• l; •

58

58

63

Schedule 3. Cash holdings as at 31 December 1991 64

Schedule 4.

Schedule 5.

Schedule 6.

Schedule 7.

Contributions receivable for general resources
and supplementary funds, current and p~ior

years, as at 31 December 1991 •••.••..••••••••.•• 65

Ageing of contributions receivable as at
31 December 1991 ••.••••••••••••••••••.•••••••••• 68

Accounts receivable, advances and deposits as
at 31 December 1991 ••..••.••••••.•••••••••••••.• 69

Inventories as at 31 December 1991 .••••.•.•..•.. 70

Schedule 8. Contributions for following years pledged/
received in advance as at 31 December 1991 71

Schedule 9. Accounts payable and other unliquidated
obligations as at 31 December 1991 .••••••••..••• 72

Schedule 10. Procurement services and other services for the
biennium ended 31 December 1991 ..•....•.•....... 73

Schedule 10.1. Special accounts for procurement services and
other activities for the biennium ended
31 December 1991 0 ••••••••••••••••••• G • • • • • • • • • • • 74

Schedule 10.2. World Conference on Education for All and
related activities for the biennium ended
31 December 1991 .01.............................. 78

Schedule 10.3. World Summit for Children and related activities
for the biennium ended 31 December 1991 •••••.••. 79

Schedule 11. Income, expenditures and fund balance related to
procurement services - staff and related cost
for the biennium ended 31 December 1991 82

V. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ................•....••. 83

-iv-

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



CONTENTS (continued)

Annexes

I. Statistical and other data ..........................•.....•..•••••• 86

11. Glossary of selected UNICEF terminology used in the report ••••••••• 94

-v-

r.

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



AGFUND

EEC

ESCWA

FAO

IAEA

IAF

ILO

ILSA

OPEC

PAHO

UNCDF

UNDP

UNDRO

UNESCO

UNFOAC

UNFPA

UNHCR

UNRWA

WFP

WHO

1.BBREVIATIONS

Arab Gulf Programme for the United Nations Development Organizations

European Economic Community

Economic and Social Commission for Western Asia

Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations

International Atomic Energy Agency

Inter-American Foundation

International Labour Organisation

Institut Latinoamericano de Servicios Legales Alternativos

Organization of P3troleum Exporting Countries

Pan American Health Organization

United Nations Capital Development Fund

United Nati~ns Development Programme

Office of the United Nations Disester Relief Coordinator

United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization

United Nations F.,,,ct for Drug Abuse Control

United Nations Population Fund

Office of the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees

United Nations Relief and Works Agency for Palestine Refugees in
the Near East

World Food Programme

World Health Organization

-vi-

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



tions

i1

LETTERS OF TRANSMITTAL

31 March 1992

Sir,

Pursuant to financial regulation 11.4, I have the honour to submit the
financial report and statements for the biennium ended 31 December 1991.
These statements have been prepared and signed by the Comptroller.

Copies of these financial statements are also being transmi.tted to the
Advisory Committee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions.

Accept, Sir, the assurance of my highest consideration.

(.s.~) James P. GRANT
Executive Director

The Chairman of the Board of Auditors
United Nations
KdW York, N.Y. 10017
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30 June 1992

Sir,

I have the honour to transmit to you the financial statements of the
United Nations Children's Fund, including the Greeting Card Operation, for the
biennium 1990-1991 ended 31 December 1991, which were submitted by the
Executive Director. These statements have been examined and include the audit
opinion of the Board of Auditors.

In addition, I have the honour to present the report of the Board of
Auditors with respect to t" above accounts.

Accept, Sir, the assurances of my highest consideration.

(Signed) Osei Tutu PREMPEH
Auditor-General of Ghana

and Chairman
United Nations Board of Auditors

The President of the General Assembly
of the United Nations

New York, N.Y.
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I. FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE BIENNIUM ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1991

IntrQductiQn

1. The Executive DirectQr Qf the United NatiQns Children's Fund (UNICEF)
submits herewith the financial repQrt Qf the aCCQunts Qf UNICEF fQr the
biennium ended 31 December 1991 cQmprising nine statements and 14 schedules.
The financial report provides the details Qf the 1990-1991 financial results
of UNICEF activities. Highlights are summarized in the fQIIQwing paragraphs.

IncQme

2. UNICEF incQme in 1990-1991 tQta1led $1,628 mil1iQn. Virtually all
GQvernments Qf bQth industrialized and develQping cQuntries cQntributed tQ
UNICEF in the periQd 1990-1991. InCQme cQmprised $1,C37 milliQn fQr general
reSQurces and $591 milliQn fQr supplementary funds. This included
$135 milliQn in emergency cQntributiQns. The breakdQwn Qf UNICEF incQme by
SQurce is: 72 per cent ($1,177 mi1liQn) frQm GQvernments and
intergQvernmenta1 QrganizatiQns; 24 per cent ($391 milliQn) frQm fund-raising
campaigns, greeting card prQfits and individual dQnatiQns; 1 per cent
($21 milliQn) frQm the United Nations system; and 2 per cent ($39 milliQn)
frQm miscellaneQus SQurces, including exchange rate revaluatiQn Qf assets and
liabilities and interest.

Expenditures

3. UNICEF expenditures in the biennium 1990-1991 were $1,486 milliQn. This
amQunt cQnsisted Qf $805 milliQn fQr prQgramme cQQperatiQn frQm general
reSQurces and $538 milliQn fQr programme cOQperatiQn from supplementary
funds. The remaining expenditures Qf $143 milliQn were fQr administrative
services. In additiQn, there were write-Qffs and adjustments tQ incQme
tQtalling $8 milliQn.

DonatiQns-in-kind

4. Donations-in-kind valued by donors at ~22 million were delivered by
OflrCEF tQ projects during the period 1990-1991. Of this total, $14 million
was received from the Government of Italy for the expanded programme on
immunization and related activities in Africa, the Central American isthmus
region and Asia. These deliveries are not reflected in the financial aCCQunts
Qf UNICEF, althQugh they are handled thrQugh the administrative structures Qf
the Qrganization.

Special accou~

5. Special accounts not related to programmes approved by the UNICEF
Executive Board are not entered in the financial accounts Qf UNICEF as income
and expenditures. These funds are used mainly tQ CQver the CQst of goods and
services purchased and delivered Qn a reimbursable basis by UNICEF Qn behalf
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-
Qf GQvernments, Qther agencies in the United NatiQns system and
nQn-gQvernmental QrganizatiQns. In the biennium 1990-1991, UNICEF received
cash Qr pledges Qf $124 mi11iQn fQr these special aCCQunts in additiQn tQ the
balances Qf the accQunts at the beginning of 1990. Disbursements and
QbligatiQns tQtalled $131 milliQn, and $6 milliQn was either returned tQ
dQnQrs Qr apprQved by dQnQrs fQr Qther services.

Cash hQldings

6. TQtal cash Qf $403 milliQn (which includes the unspent balances frQm
special aCCQunts in the amQunt Qf $47 million) was held with first-class banks
in most countries where UNICEF operates. This amount comprised of
$371 million in interest-bearing time deposit accounts and $32 million in
current bank accounts. The total cash holdings of UNICEF included $25 milliQn
in currencies restricted for use in the donor countries fQr purchases and
Qther lQcal expenditures.

Approved progr9.IDID~

7. During the biennium 1990-1991, the Executive Board approved the amount Qf
$1,910 mi1liQn for new programmes fQr children in countries with which UNICEF
cQQperates, as well as to regiQnal and inter regional projects. This total
includes $1,299 million in programmes to be funded frQm UNICEF general
reSQurces and $611 million for projects that the Board approved as wQrthy Qf
suppQrt and that were financed by pledges of supplementary funds made in
1990-1991.

(Signed) James P. GRANT
Executive DirectQr of the

United NatiQns Children's Fund
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11. REPORT OF THE BOARD OF AUDITORS

IntrQductioA

1. As required by General Assembly resolution 74 (I) of 7 December 1946. the
Board of Auditors conducted an audit of the accounts of the United Nations
Children's Fund (UNICEF), including the Greeting Card Operation, for the
biennium ended 31 December 1991u

2. The examination was conducted in accordance with article XII of the
Financial Regulations of the United Nations and the annex thereto and with the
common auditing standards adopted by the Panel of External Auditors of the
United Nations, the specialized agencies and the International Atomic Energy
Agency. The examination was conducted at UNICEF headquarters, at Copenhagen
and at the field offices in Brazil, Ethiopia, Jordan, Nigeria, the Syrian Arab
Republic, Thailand, Uganda and Zimbabwe, including the Greeting Card Operation
offices in New York and at Geneva.

3. During the period under review, the Board of Auditors continued its
practice of reporting th~ results of specific audits and issuing management
letters containing detailed observations and recommendations to the
Administration. The practice helped greatly in maintaining a continuing
dialogue with the Administration.

4. The following are the most significant matters ar~s1ng from our
examination. We have discussed these matters with the Administration, whose
responses are incorporated in the present report, where appropriate.

5. The present report is divided into two parts, covering the audit of
financial stat.ements and management issues, respectively.

Follow-Up on actiQn taken Qn previous audit recommendations

6. Pursuant tQ paragraph 17 (a) of General Assembly resolutiQn 46/183 Qf
20 December 1991, the Board has reviewed measures taken tQ implement its priQr
recQmmendatiQns. The BQard nQted that a number Qf effective actiQns were
taken by the AdministratiQn to implement the recommendatiQns made by the BQard
in its audit repQrt fQr the periQd ended 31 December 1989. 11 Detailed
actiQns taken and the comments of the Board thereQn are outlined in annex I tQ
the present repQrt. In summary, the Board wishes to emphasize that the
prQblem Qf outstanding advances persists. The Board's audit visits tQ field
Qffices revealed that new advances cQntinued to be released when expenditures
Qn the utilizatiQn Qf priQr advances had nQt been submitted. AlsQ,
supplementary-funded prQjects continued to shQW significant deficits that were
charged to general resources, fQr lack of donor funding.

11 Official Records Qf the General Assembly. Forty-fifth SessiQn,
Supplement No. 58 (A/45/5/Add.2 and Corr.l), sect. 11.

-3-
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Summary of recommendations

7. The Board recommends that the following corrective actions, presented in
order of priority, should be taken:

(a) To ensure a significant reduction in over-expenditures on
supplementary-funded projects:

(i) The flow of financial information between headquarters locations and
field offices should be further improved to expedite the
reconciliation of project expenditures;

(ii) The Global Field Support System should be expanded to include the
automatic "lock-up" facility to enhance expenditure monitoring in
field offices (see para. 59);

(b) To make the procurement services self-sustaining, the following
measures should be taken:

(i) Staff costs charged to the procurement services account should be
reviewed and appropriate reductions made. In the future the number
of posts should be commensurate with the volume of projected
procurement services;

(ii) Expenditure monitoring should be strengthened to heep operating
costs down;

(iii) The present rate of handling charges should be reviewed to reflect
operating costs (see para. 72);

(c) With regard to cash advances to Governments:

(i) UNICEF should rededicate itself to ensuring full compliance by its
field offices with the requirement on the release of new advances
only upon the liquidation of prior ones;

(1i) Field offices should provide yearly estimates of cash advances
required for disbursement to Governments in the course of the year;

(iii) A separate input code should be introduced to record advances paid
out to enable a global figure to be obtained for purposes of control
and follow-up (see para. 86);

(d) The payments of salary allowances and other cash incentives to
government employees involved in the implementation of UNICEF-assisted
programmes should discontinue, pending the development of an appropriate
policy for consistent application worldwide (see paras. 102 and 104);

(e) Decisions taken in emergency situations should be regularly reviewed
to establish their continuing validity to ensure that services are provided
~ith due regard to economy (see para. 118);

(f) UNICEF should reassess the adequacy and appropriateness of its
present liquidity policy, given the recurring significant excesses over the
established requirement (see para. 36);
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(g) In keeping with current United Nations practice, the value of
non-expendable property, of which the ownership remains with UNICEF, should be
disclosed as a note to the financial statements (see paras. 46 and 47);

(h) In the Greeting Card Operation the effects of unfavourable exchange
rate fluctuations should be minimized by resolving the timing difference in
the recognition of sales at the balance sheet date (30 April) and the dates
actual payments are made by sales partners (after 31 August) (see para. 122);

(i) Unless otherwise specified by donors, all mUlti-year contributions
received should be recognized as income to the supplementary fund in
accordance with the donor's intent as specified in the disbursement schedules
(see para. 79);

(j) Necessary assistance should be provided to facilitate the completion
of the clean-up of the staff personal accounts (see para. 41);

(k) In addition to filling existing vacancies in the Office of Internal
Audit, a timely and effective action should be taken to redress the recurring
internal control weaknesses reported by the internal auditors (see paras. 136
and 141).

Summary of findings

8. The surplus of income over expenditure declined by 41.5 per cent from
$229.3 million in 1988-1989 to $134.1 million in 1990-1991, owing to
significant increases in programme and administrative expenditures (see
para. 34).

9. Owing to unresolved weaknesses in the recording &f arvances given to
staff members, the balance of $6.4 million as at 31 December 1991 may not
necessarily reflect the true position of the staff personal accounts (see
paras. 38 and 39).

10. Non-expendable property valued at $54.6 million was not disclosed as a
note to the financial statements to reflect the current practice in the United
Nations system (see para. 45).

11. The presentation of contributions schedules did not ensure adequate
transparency in the financial reporting of contributions (see para. 49).

12. Over-expenditures on supplementary-funded programmes occurred mainly
because of inadequate monitoring and untimely submission of donor reports (see
paras. 56 and 57).

13. The policy of not charging emergency expenditures with the 6 per cent
recovery, as well as inadequate expenditure monitoring contributed to the
deficit of $0.4 million on that account (see paras. 64-66).

14. Income derived from the reimbursable procurement services could not
sustain its operations due largely to the escalation of posts charged to this
facility (see paras. 70 and 71).

-5-
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15. Contributions income received in 1991 for supplementary-funded programmes
was overstated by $7.0 million because of the inconsistent application of the
policy on income recognition of multi-year pledges (see para. 78).

16. An improvement in the liquidation of cash advances to Governments was
noted, although field offices continued to release nsw advances when previous
ones had not been fully liquidated (see para. 83).

17. Programme implementation showed an increase between 1989 and 1990, but
significantly slumped in 1991, especially supplementary-funded programmes (see
paras. 88 and 89).

18. The Board noted the ongoing problem of evolving a flexible formula to
achieve a programme mix that will satisfy both the corporate goals of UNICEF
and the changing needs of each assisted country (see paras. 93-95).

19. A number of UNICEF field offices paid salary allowances and other cash
incentives to government employees involved in the implementation of
UNICEF-assisted programmes (see paras. 98-100).

20. The accounts of the World Summit for Children disclosed an unexpended
balance of $120,837 and an unpaid pledge of $114,287 as at 31 December 1991
(see paras. 106 and 107).

21. Inadequate inventory reporting, monitoring and disposal occurred at both
headquarters and in some field offices (see paras. 109-113).

22. Based on emergency considerations, nine vehicles were hired for long
periods at a total cost much higher than it would have cost to purchase
similar vehicles (see paras. 114 and 117).

23. The Greeting Card Operation incur~ed recurrent net losses on exchange
rate adjustments in the past few years through unfavourable exchange rate
fluctuations owing, in part, to the application of different rates of exchange
in recognizing income (i.e., at the balance sheet date and at the dates
remittances are received from sales partners) (see paras. 120 and 122).

24. Contrary to established practice, the sum of $136,890 was due for payment
to four Member States of the United Nations as customs duties and taxes levied
on the sale of the Greeting Card Operation products (see para. 125).

25. Actual sales of two countries were grossly understated when prior year's
deliveries were used as a basis for recording current year's sales for
countries whose figures were not received before the accounts were closed (see
para. 130).

26. Adequate inte. ~al audit coverage of UNICEF activities in the biennium
1990-1991 was not possible because of the delay in hiring qualified personnel
to encumber vacant posts in the Office of Internal Audit (see paras. 134
and 135).

27. Reported internal control weaknesses remained unresolved bec~use of
untimely and inadequate implementation of internal audit recommendations (see
paras. 140 and 141).
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28. Lack of opportunities for professional consultations and insufficient
supervision hindered both productivity and the efficient audit execution and
reporting by outposted internal auditors (see paras. 145 and 147-149).

Part I: Financial statements

Liquidity position

29. Pursuant to paragraph 10 of General Assembly resolution 46/183, the Board
reviewed the liquidity position of UNICEF as at 31 December 1991. In this
review, liquidity is conceived as the ability of the organization to liquidate
its current liabilities using current assets. This is expressed in terms of
increase or decrease in net current assets or in working capital.

30. As at 31 December 1991 the current assets of UNICEF, amounting to
$842.5 million, exceeded its current liabilities of $268.8 million by 3.1
times, implying that the organization would be able to meet its obligations as
and when they fall due. In the determination of this ratio, we excluded
funds-in-trust for procurement services and other services involving
$47.1 million since these funds do not finance UNICEF regular programmes.
Contributions receiVable for future years of $86.7 million is also excluded on
the grounds that they were not yet due for collection (see annex 11 of the
present report for details of the liquidity position).

31. The cash holdings of $356.1 million exceeded the current liabilities of
$268.8 million by $87.3 million. To satisfy the liquidity requirements of
UNICEF, general resources convertible total cash balance should equal
10 per cent of projected general resources income.

32. The projected general resources income for 1992 was fixed as $518 million
and the total general resources convertible cash balance as at
31 December 1991 stood at $249 million. Therefore, the general resources
convertible cash balance exceeded the 10 per cent of the projected general
resources income of $51.8 million by $197.2 million.

33. The excess liquidity of $197.2 million above included $80.4 million
which is not available for the organization's regular programme activities as
at 31 December 1991 and therefore must be excluded from the computation. The
$80.4 million is made up of $19.6 million set aside for the capital assets
fund approved by the Executive Board, $56.8 million relates to contributions
received in advance and $4 million represents UNICEF staff contributions to
the medical insurance fund. The excess liquidity after these considerations
stands at $116.4 million.

34. The surplus of income over expenditure declined from $229.3 million in
the biennium 1988-1989 to $134.1 million in 1990-1991. The decline is mainly
attributable to increases in programme expenditure in the current biennium.
General resources increased by $178 million (39 per cent),
supplementary-funded programmes by $96 million (22 per cent) and
administrative expenses by $34 million (32 per cent).

-7-
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35. On the problem of excess liquidity, however, it is observed that a
comparison of general resources receipts to payments for the period 1986-1991
shows an increasing trend of payments exceeding receipts (with the exception
of 1988) during the first quarter of each year as shown below:

Receipts and payments for first quarter

(Millions of United States dollars)

Ie..a..r. llM. ll.a.l l..9.B.B. ~ 1.2.2.Q .l9..9.l

Income 46.7 57.8 106.0 54.9 89.0 68.9
(first quarter)

Payments 65.55 74.75 87.75 94.50 117.75 96.0
(a three-month
average)

36. The appropriateness of the liquidity requirement of UNICEF is doubtful,
given tha fact that in the past two bienniums general resources convertible
cash balances have exceeded the stated liquidity requirement by significant
amounts because programme expenditures have not kept pace with contributions,
suggesting excess liquidity. However, with payments exceeding income during
the first quarter of each year (as analysed above) owing, in part, to the
payment pattern of donor cOHtributions, the emerging picture seems to
contradict the idea of excess liquidity. Thu Board therefore recommends that
UNICEF should reassess the appropriateness and adequacy of its present
liquidity policy.

37. The Administration agreed with the recommendation. The Division of
Financial Management, in conjunction with the work of the Financial Advisory
Committee and the Working Group on Financial Accountability, is examining the
existing liquidity policy within the context of short-term needs, longer-term
requirements, and with regard to the medium-term financial plan. In this
examination, UNICEF will take into consideration the ongoing work of the
Consultative Committee on Administrative Questions (Financial and Budgetary)
in developing common accounting standards for the United Nations system.

Accounts and financial reporting

Staff personal accounts

38. The staff personal accounts included education grants, travel, rent and
salary advances granted to staff. Deductions are effected at source for
recording in these accounts. Of late, the reconciliation of these accounts
has fallen into arrears ar-a a committee was formed to study the problem. The
Committee also set up a task force in July 1991 and the weaknesses identified
are summarized below:

-8-
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(a) Improper controls arising from the non-compliance with relevant
UNICEF rules and procedures;

Cb) The absence of on-line linkage among divisions and offices impeded
the flow of necessary data. Cumbersome manual recording also causes errors;

(c) For lack of coordination, the reporting of deductions by the United
N3tions Payroll Unit is made in a format inappropriate to UNICEF.

39. As a result of the weaknesses, advances already settled are still shown
in the balances of individual personal accounts. Due to wrong coding, entries
are made into the wrong accounts. Consequently, the balance of $6,373,315 on
the staff personal accounts as at 31 December 1991 may not reflect the true
position.

40. Two working groups have also been established to explore the possibility
of automating the processing and control of the staff personal accounts and to
clean up those accounts. The Working Group, in an attempt to correct the
errors in the accounts, has started analysing the accounts on an individual
basis. However, it was noted that, owing to budgetary constraints, the
ongoing efforts to clean up the accounts may not be completed in July 1992 as
planned. The Board further noted that the documentation in support of the
accounts already cleared was not fully explanatory.

41. In view of the importance of the exercise, the Board recommends that
necessary assistance should be provided to facilitate the completion of the
clean-up of the staff personal accounts, Also, for verification purposes, all
the cleared accounts should be supported by proper and adequate documentation,

42. The Administration responded that in addition to close supervision at the
highest level, it has provided three more temporary staff to assist with the
clean-up. The volume and complexity of the task and the shortcomings of
present system linkages with, for example, the United Nations payroll have
delayed progress. The clean-up is therefore not expected to be completed
before November 1992.

NQn-disclosure of value of non-expend&ble property

43. The findings and recommendations of the Board in the succeeding
paragraphs are presented in the light of the ongoing development and
harmonization of the general accounting framework for the presentation of
financial statements in the United Nations system.

44. Acquisitions by UNICEF of non-expendable property are charged to
budgetary accounts in the year of purchase as do other organizations in the
United Nations family. However, unlike other United Nations organizations,
UNICEF does not provide information on non-expendable property in the notes to
the financial statements.

45. International Accounting Standard 1 on the disclosure of accounting
policies states, inter alia, "where fundamental accounting assumptions are
followed in financial statements, disclosure of such assumptions is not
required. If a fundamental assumption is not followed, that fact should be
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disclosed together with the reason". As the value of non-expendable property
is not included in the balance sheet, appropriate information should be
provided in the notes to the financial statements.

46. The value of non-expendable property held by UNICEF as at
31 December 1991 was $54.6 million (excluding that of the UNICEF office at
Geneva). In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and to
ensure uniformity of presentation among United Nations organizations, the
Board recommended that the value of non-expendable property, ownership of
which remains vested in UNICEF, should be disclosed as a note ~o the financial
statements.

47. The definition of non-expendable property should be based on the criteria
and the revised guidelines and procedures recently introduced by the United
Nations in Administrative Instruction ST/AI/374 dated 15 January 1992.

48. The Board was informed that the Division of Financial Management, in
conjunction with the Office of Administrative Management, will ensure that the
value of the non-expendable property of UNICEF is obtained in accordance with
the criteria and guidelines in Administrative Instruction ST/AI/374. This
information will be disclosed in the future as a note to the financial
statements.

Transparency of contributions schedul~

49. The Board noted that the presentation of schedules 1 to 4 did not ensure
adequate transparency in the financial reporting of contributions.
Opportunities for further improvement are outlined below.

so. Contributions for emergency activities are not shown separately but as
part of supplementary contributions. However, emergency activities have
greatly expanded over the last few years, resulting in significant growth in
emergency contributions. For example, out of the total contributions of
$723.3 million received in 1991, $135.6 million or 18.7 per cent was for
emergencies; in 1990, $55.9 million ~as received as emergency contributions.
It is therefore necessary to classify and disclose supplementary contributions
for emergency operations separately within the supplementary-fund category.

SI. Schedule 1 could be made more informative and transparent by:

(a) Creating columns for both pledged and paid contributions to show the
status of contributions for the biennium;

(b) Showing the status of contribution by fund, by type of donor and by
donor.

52. The present presentation of schedule 4 is by type of donor and does not
disclose the status of receivables from each donor. It may be appropriate to
provide information on each donor readily to inform users and donors about the
status of receivables.
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53. The Board noted the efforts of the Administration to improve
transparency. In this connection, the contributions receivable system was
enhanced in latc 1991 which will lead to the creation of additional schedules
showing ageing analysis of receivables. The Administration assured that
further action would be taken to improve transparency as recommended.

Part 11: Mana~ement issues

Budgetary control

Over-expenditure on supplementary-funded projects

54. A deficit of $7.0 million on supplementary-funded programmes was incurred
in the nienniurn 1990-1991 ($5.0 million in 1990 and $2.0 million in 1991).
Out of the total deficit, $5.0 million was charged to general resources for
lack of donor funding, while $2.0 million was under investigation as at
31 December 1991. The UNICEF Executive Board decision 1988/11 11 requires
that over-expenditures on supplementary-funded projects should be fully
analysed for correctness and charged to general resources if additional
contributions are not provided by donors. The over-expenditures are to be
subsequently reported to the Executive Board.

55. The Board's review disclosed that the over-expenditure of $5.0 million as
at 31 December 1990 was charged to general resources without formally
approaching donors for additional funding. The Administration said that
informal discussions were, however, made. Similarly, the reports submitted to
the Executive Board in the past few years lacked adequate information on the
nature and causes of the deficits. The Board is concerned about the limited
ability to detect and to report in a timely fashion the over-expenditures to
the donors during the implementation periods of the projects.

56. It is doubtful if appropriate funding will be obtained after significant
over-commitments have occurred. Requests should therefore emanate from the
field offices in good time. In 1991, only 29 per cent of the donor reports
due from the field offices was received on time. In this connection, it was
observed that the submission dates for donor reports in the Programme Funding
Office's funding monitoring system seemed in conflict with the donor reporting
schedule maintained at the Division of Financial Management. Consequently,
the timing of the submission of some reports did not correspond with the
donors' requirements. In one instance, a donor's contribution of $0.5 million
was withheld pending the receipt of outstanding reports. It is believed that
the confidence and cooperation of donors would be sustained through timely
reporting.

57. Furthermore, effective expenditure monitoring was not always possible
owing to delays in communicating payments made at headquarters locations to
the field offices. Monitoring of expenditures was also impaired at the field
offices by the absence of the facility for automatic "lock-up" in the Global
Field Support System, which would sound warning signals when expenditure
levels are exceeding budget allotments.

11 Official Records of the Economic and Social Council, Supplement
No. 8 (E/19B8/18, E/ICEF/1988/13), sect. IV.
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58. It was acknowledged that, in view of the wide geographical spread of
UNICEF offices, a number of logistical problems impede the achie'~ement of the
most efficient methods of information flow. The Administration has instituted
inter-divisional discussions, which include the planning and designing of the
Central Accounting and Financial System aimed at addressing the difficulties
involved in order to devise workable ways of improving information flows among
all UNICEF offices.

59. To ensure a significant reduction in over-expenditures on
supplementary-funded projects, the Board recommends that:

(a) The flow of financial information between headquarters locations and
field offices should be improved to facilitate the reconciliation of project
expenditures;

(b) The Global Field Support System should be expanded to include the
automatic "lock-up" facility to enhance expenditure monitoring in field
offices.

60. The Administration concurred with the recommendations and said that
further steps have been taken, including the issuance of exception reports, to
ensure the effective control of supplementary-funded project expenditures.
Also, a new version of the Global Field Support System, which includes the
"lock-up" facility, is currently being tested for eventual implementation.

Recoyery of 6 per cenL from supplementary funds

61. At its 1987 session, the Executive Board approved the recovery at the
rate of 6 per cent from supplementary-funded projects to cover both the
general operating costs in field offices and administrative and project
support staff in headquarters. The related posts were identified in document
E/ICEF/1987/AB/L.l/Add.3. Th- ~bjective was to provide additional funds to
finance incremental general c1-,~ating costs to support the activities
generated by supplementary-funded projects so as to reduce the stress on the
administrative budget.

62. A total income of $4.5 million was recovered from supplementary-funded
projects for the year ended 31 December 1991. Verification revealed th~t this
amount was only applied to the project posts at the headquarters locations,
excluding general operating costs in field offices.

63. Expenditures totalling $4.9 million were charged to the 6 per cent income
recovered from supplewentary funds ($4.5 million), resulting in a deficit of
$0.4 million. Account code 94 (recovery from supplementary fund) to which the
deficit was charged ~as categorized as field office budget, thus putting
further strain on that budget. The escalation of project posts at
headquarters from 41 in 1989 to 87 in 1991 is one of the causes for the
over-expenditure incurred on the 6 per cent recovery fund.

64. Examination of cash assistance reports confirmed that four core posts
amounting to $93,515 were charged to the 6 per cent cost recovery fund.
Charges to this account by other headquarters locations were not determined at
these locations and were not reviewed by New York headquarters for
correctness. The present procedure of reflecting the net expenditures related
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to headquarters project posts in code 94 makes monitoring and budgetary
control difficult.

65. The inadequate monitoring of the appropriateness of charges to the
6 per cent recovery account did not allow the realization of the main
objective of reducing the strain on the administrative budget for which the
account was established by the Executive Board. To improve monitoring of
charges to the recovery account, the Administration should consider the
feasibility of merging this account with the administrative and programme
support budget from which the project posts and related costs would be
financed.

66. The Administration stated that UNICEf was very active in emergency
situations in 1991. Expenditures on emergencies rose from the 1990 level by
91 per cent to $97.2 million in 1991. This shift towards emergency activities
reduced the amount of expenditures on regular programmes. Since there is no
standard policy on recoveries from emergency expenditures, the amount
recovered was significantly less than anticipated. The deficit was therefore
primarily the result of a significant shift in expenditures from supplementary
to emergency programmes. To prevent the recurrence of this situation, UNICEF
is proposing in 1992 to the Executive Board a revision to the existing
recovery policy that will allow a 6 per cent recovery also on emergency
expenditures.

67. The Board will revert to the problem of post classification and funding
sources in its future audits to determine whether the classification is based
on solid and verifiable assumptions. Project posts will be examined to
determine whether the incumbents perform project-related functions to justify
funding from project resources and whether the present location of project
posts is cost-effective.

Reimbursable prQcurement services

68. Reimbursable procurement is a service UNICEF renders to cooperating
Governments, United Nations agencies and other organizations in the
procurement of supplies and equipment through the UNICEF Supply Division,
Copenhagen. The income generated is used to pay the salaries and other
related costs of 55 posts. Examination of this special account for the
1990-1991 biennium disclosed that the total income derived from this operation
was $4,040,428, while expenditure was $5,342,602, showing a deficit of
$1,302,174.

69. As at 31 December 1991, the accumulated amount of $1 million retained
from the net yearly income realized on this account had been wiped away by
recurrent yearly deficits. When the deficit of $1.3 million is charged to the
retained balance of $0.8 million, it results in a deficit balance of
$0.5 million. This calls for a review of the viability of this operation. On
the other hand, if the interest of $1.3 million realized on this account is
recognized as income, the net effect will be a gain of $0.8 million as at
31 December 1991.

70. A closer look at the performance of this cost centre for the past five
years showed a disp-~'ortionate relationship between income and posts financed
from the reimbursabl@ procurement account.
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(b) The present rate of handling charges shQuld be reviewed to reflect
operational realities;

(a) Staff costs charged tQ this account should be reviewed and
apprQpriate reductiQns made. In the future, the number Qf posts should be
CQmmensurate with the volume of prQjected procurement services;

71. FrQm the abQve analysis, when there was a decline in incQme frQm
$2.1 milliQn in 1988 tQ $1.9 milliQn in 1989, a reduction of 11 per cent, the
PQsts Qf this cost centre rather increased by 33 per cent. Similarly, when
the incQme reduced frQm $2.1 milliQn in 1990 tQ $1.9 milliQn in 1991, the
number of PQsts remained the same.
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40

43

57

55

55

Number of PQsts

21

(11)

11

(6)

Percentage
increase

(decrease)

IncQme
(Thousands Qf
United States

~ dQllars)

1987 1 725

1988 2 093

1989 1 874

1990 2 079

1991 1 962

72. In the QpiniQn of the Board, this activity should be self-sustaining and
UNICEF has the respQnsibility to ensure that this is made pQssible. With this
understanding, the BQard reiterated the follQwing recommendatiQns which it
made in its interim audits at bQth headquarters and the Supply Division,
CQpenhagen:

(c) Expenditure mQnitoring shQuld be strengthened to keep operating
CQsts down.

73. The Administration accepted the recommendations and informed the Board
that staff costs charged tQ the procurement services are currently under
careful review and appropriate action will be formulated as a part of the
upcQming budget preparatiQn prQcess. The Administration has decided to
increase the present rate of handling charges frQm 4 per cent to 6 per cent,
effective 1 July 1992.

Cash management
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Income recQgnition of multi-year pledges

74. A review of the recording of mUlti-year pledges strongly suggests the
need to re-examine the policy on income recognition of supplementary funds to
curtail the frequent cQrrespQndence requesting the cQnfirmation Qf dQnQrs'
wishes prior to recording contributions received.
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75. Multi-year pledges normally include disbursement schedules in the
agreement. Notwithstanding, UNICEF frequently requested from donors written
indications of the year or years to which their paid contributions should be
applied. A typical example: "If we do not get a written indication how you
wish to have the contribution recorded by the UNICEF income year, the whole
contribution will be recorded as income in 1991." In this example, the
following disbursement schedules were clearly indicated in the agreement:
"1991 - $60.0 million, 1992 - $70.0 million, 1993 - $80.0 million". The donor
responded, inter alia, that the recording of the disbursements, as income must
be handled internally by UNICEF.

76. Obtaining confirmation on the timing of income recognition from donors
worldwide after agreements have been signed causes delays in recognizing
income. It is reasonable to assume that payment of the pledged contribution
without additional instructions implies that the original disbursement
schedules in the signed agreement should apply.

77. The present practice of UNICEF is to recognize the whole multi-year
pledge as current year income and no income is deferred if the donor does not
phase the payments in the pledge announcement letter. The proper approach is
to recognize the contribution on the basis of the donor's intention. Where
the intention of the donor is not clear, the pre-signing review of agreements
should be able to detect the omission for clarification in the agreement.

78. We observed that, although the timing of contributions made by three
donors was specified in the disbursement schedules, these contributions were
recognized as income for 1991, instead of spreading them over current and
future years. As a result, the 1991 contributions income was overstated by
$7.0 million. In other examples, UNICEF rightly recognized as income for 1991
only the appropriate amounts specified in the disbursement schedules for that
year and recognized the rest as income for future years received in advance.
The pOlicy on the recognition of supplementary-fund contributions was
therefore not consistently applied by UNICEF.

79. The Board recommends that, unless otherwise specified by the donors, all
multi-year contributions received should be recognized as income to the
supplementary fund in accordance with the donor's intent as specified in the
disbursement schedules. The income recognition policy of UNICEF should
therefore be reviewed to emphasize the consistent application of the donors'
specifications in order to portray the true status of supplementary-fund
contributions in the financial statements.

80. The A&ninistration agreed with the recommendation and has asked the
Programme Funding Office to include a disbursement schedule in all
supplementary-fund pledge agreements.
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Programme management

Cash advances to Goyernments

81. The potential for further improvement in the administration of advances
was noted. In this regard, the non-submission of estimates on advances to
Governments deprives field offices of an effective standard by which payments
of advances could be measured and controlled. The lack of a separate input
code also prevented UNICEF from knowing the global figure of advances paid and
as a result, inaccuracies persisted in the status of advances submitted to
headquarters. Annual programme budgets submitted by field offices to
headquarters did not indicate the proportion of their anticipated expenditure,
which would be transferred to Governments in the form of advances. Thus, no
restriction was imposed on such transfers.

82. The Administration believed that estimating for advances may not be
feasible as field offices will not know in advance the amount to be granted in
the year. The Board observed that, in addition to the annual programme
budgets, field offices submit annual project plans of action, in which they
detail, not only the activity but also the deadline by which each activity is
to be completed. Moreover, the plans are prepared in consultation with
government counterparts, making it all the more feasible for Governments to
project their requirements for the year.

83. The status of outstanding advances as at 31 December 1991, which stood at
$68.9 million, showed a significant reduction of 21 per cent on the balance as
at 31 December 1990. The unliquidated advances at the end of the biennium
represented 4.6 per cent of the total programme expenditures. While
acknowledging improvement in the liquidation of cash advances owing to
improved monitoring, the Board realizes the need for further improvement. The
Board's audit visits to field offices revealed that in many cases field
offices continued to release new advances when expenditures on the utilization
of prior advances had not been submitted. In a few cases, however, these
advances have been utilized for purposes intended but, owing to improper
control, accounting and reporting procedures of the implementing partners,
C ~umentary evidence was lacking to confirm their utilization.

84. The search for other forms of financing to eliminate the problem of
unliquidated advances has led to the introduction of a new system by which
Governments are required to pre-finance some projects to be reimbursed by
UNICEF based on expenditures incurred. While this will be an ideal
arrangement, it is not always possible because of funding constraints faced by
Governments. At present some 18 offices are operating the new system.

85. The Board observed that the new system significantly slowed down project
implementation in one field office, owing to the difficulty of raising the
necessary funds by the Government. As UNICEF has rightly pointed out, the
insistence on the reimbursement system could considerably slow down, and even
paralyse the implementation of programmes. The new system may therefore be
applied only to Governments that are confident of their ability to provide the
necessary funding.
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86. The Board recommends that:

(a) UNICEF should rededicate itself to ensuring full compliance by its
field offices with the requirement on the release of new adva~ces only upon
the liquidation of prior ones;

(b) Field offices should provide yearly estimates of cash advances
required for disbursement to Governments in the course of the year;

(c) A separate input code should be introduced to record advances paid
out to enable a global figure to be obtained for purposes of control and
follow-up.

87. The Administration will continue to monitor and control advances to
Governments to ensure that strict compliance with procedures are adhered to
regarding the release of new advances. The provision of yearly estimates of
advances to Governments by field offices will be investigated. The use of a
"separate input code for advances" will also be reviewed by the Division of
Financial Management in cooperation with the Progran~e Division.

froject implementation

88. In order to ascertain the extent of programme implementation, the Board
reviewed statistical data on country programmes, including global funds and
special accounts for the biennium 1990-1991. Making use of a minimum
expenditure level of 75 per cent as a performance indicator, allotments were
compared with actual expenditures. The analysis disclosed that the programme
implementation level showed a steady increase between 1989 and 1990, but
declined in 1991. In 1989 and 1990, actual expenditure globally was
74 per cent and 80 per cent, respectively, of the total allotment, while in
1991 this percentage dropped to 69.3 per cent.

89. The level of performance of projects funded from general resources was
higher than that of supplementary-funded projects. In 1990 and 1991,
83 per cent of programmes funded from general resour~es achieved over the
75 per cent level of implementation. For the same period, out of 256
supplementary-funded projects, only 69 projects (26.9 per cent) achieved
implementation levels higher than 75 per cent, 186 (72.6 per cent) fell below
the target of 75 per cent.

90. Among the causes of the low implementation of supplementary-funded
programmes, the Administration identified the following. Expenditure could
not keep pace with large emergency contributions received, especially in the
latter part of 1991, when political transitions and internal strife slowed
down impl~mentation in many countries. Also, the implementation of large
country programmes was deliberately slowed down to minimize the adverse
effects of fl~ctuations in the value of the United States dollar. The Board
urged the Administration to take appropriate measures to improve programme
implementation.

91. The Administration said the Progr&m~e Division has discussed the issue of
low implementation of supplementary-funded programmes at several recent
meetings of section chiefs. The causes of low programme implementation were
analysed and action points aimed at improving programme implementation were
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identified. Field offices will be advised to take appropriate action to
improve implementation of the whole country programme, giving special
attention to supplementary-funded programmes.

Sectorsl allocation of progrDffiIDe resources

92. A review of reports of the Executive Board issued between 1988 and 1991
revealed that delegates have expressed concern on a number of issues,
including the direction of UNICEF goals and strategies for children and
women. There were dissenting views on the level of emphasis that should be
placed on the different sectors in the allocation of resources to realize the
corporate goals of UNICEF. We reviewed the procedure for the preparation of
the medium-term plan and the related financial plan, both of which constitute
the main mechanism for the acbievement of the organization's goals and
objectives.

93. On the criteria for the allocation of resources among countries and the
major sectors, we were informed that the Executive Board endorsed the concept
that UNICEF should allocate 80 per cent of its resources to four princi.pal
areas of concern, namely: health (25 per cent), nutrition (15 per cent);
water and sanitation (20 per cent) and education (20 per cent), by the
year 2000. It was explained that the formula on global priorities was
established based on a situation analysis of children and women and national
plans and priorities. However, since needs vary from country to country and
are sub;",ct to change in response to evolving national needs and priorities,
it is (".ffic:..lt to achieve a perfect balance between the global priorities of
UNl:~F and the nee~s ~~ individual countries •

94. !~ 19YO, the percentage of expenditures incurred in each sector in all
the countries was as follows: health, 42 per cent; child nutrition,
6 per cent; water and sanitation, 15 per cent; education, 9 per cent; other
programme areas, 7 per cent; planning/programme support/advocacy, 13 per cent
and emergency, 8 per cent. The percentage allocations were based on priority
sectors discerned in various country programmes, Executive Board decisions,
the prospects of attracting funding from donors and goals and strategies to be
attained within a specified time-frame. While all the major sectors wer$
covered, the percentages of funds disbursed did not correspond to those
specified in the global policies and priorities.

95. The Administration aptly described the difficulty involved in trying to
reconcile the global policies and priorities with the actual &nd changing
needs of each country. For example, to ~llocate to each country a prescribed
amount in the same ratio as the global priorities would be contrary to the
spirit of developing country programmes, which is based on the specific needs
and on the most appropriate response of assisted countries. The
Administration is trying to reconcile the two by shifting emphasis so that the
countries do not ignore the global priorities, the need for which is also
evident in the countries.

96. These difficulties notwithstanding, there is the need for consensus
between UNICEF and the Executive Board on the ratio of sectoral allocation of
resources to achieve a programme mix which will meet the objectives of UNICEF
and the needs of assisted countries. To achieve a balance between UNICEF
objectives as specified in the global priorities and the needs of countries
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would require a flexible formula, that may be adjusted from year to year andfrom country to country, without distorting the objectives envisaged in theglobal priorities.

Payments of salary allowances and Qther incentives tQ 9Qyernment emplQyees inprQgramme activities

97. The BQard nQted in an interim audit instances where UNICEF Qffices paidincentives in the fQrm Qf supplementary salary allQwances and dailysubsistence allQwances tQ gQvernment emplQyees invQlved in UNICEF-assistedprQjects. This practice is cQntrary tQ the spirit and substance Qf the PlanQf OperatiQns agreements, which require GQvernments tQ prQvide the necessarypersQnnel fQr the implementatiQn Qf UNICEF-assisted prQgrammes and tQ meetrecurrent and QperatiQnal costs Qf prQgramme activities.

98. In Qne cQuntry, Qver 2,000 gQvernment staff were given supplementarysalary allQwances by UNICEF. These benefits were usually nQt linked tQperfQrmance and prQductivity. A mid-term review cited an example Qf anatiQnal level prQject in which the prQvisiQn Qf such benefits tQ 80gQvernment staff absQrbed 80 tQ 90 per cent Qf UNICEF reSQurces. It was alsQrepQrted in the 1990 annual repQrt that 60 per cent Qf UNICEF cash assistancein this same country went intQ current and QperatiQnal CQsts.

99. ExaminatiQn Qf the 1990 annual repQrt fQr anQther cQuntry alsQ disclQsedthat, in a bid tQ maintain the mQmentum of prQgramme activities, particularlythe expanded prQgramme Qf immunizatiQn in 1990, UNICEF prQvided salary tQP-UPSand incentives, as well as per diem allQwances tQ gQvernment wQrkers invQlvedin the prQgrarr~e. It was nQted that the salary tQP-UPS were paid to offsetthe IQW salaries Qf civil servants, particularly in the lower categories.

100. In anQther cQuntry, the BQard nQted that UNICEF was paying the salariesof district-level immunizatiQn Qfficers and technicians in all districts.Furthermore, the office paid salaries Qf the staff of a gQvernment prQgramme1Qr the Development Qf WQmen and Children in Rural Areas, while cash suppQrtwas given tQ WQmen's grQups. UNICEF was paying in another country teacher'ssalaries in the Central Primary SchQQl tQ which it gives suppQrt.

101. The BQard holds the view that one of the cardinal Qbjectives Qf UNICEFsuppQrt fQr country prQgramme activities is the sustainability of programmesby GQvernments in the future withQut UNICEF suppQrt. CQnsidering the econQmicsituation of the assisted cQuntries where such incentives are given, thereappears to be no guarantee that the payments of these incentives will bemaintained when UNICEF assistance is discontinued. Funds expended in payinqsupplementary salary allowances could be better utilized to expand otherprogrammes.

102. The Board recommended that UNICEF field offices should discontinue thepayments of supplementary salary allowances and should rather encourageGovernments to honour their commitments under the agreements with UNICEF bystrengthening the sQcial sector through higher allocation of funds to coverbasic recurrent costs related to staff suppQrt.
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103. In support of the payments of salary top-ups and othar incentives to some
government employees, the Administration cited the economic plight in some of
the countries occasioned by drought and civil war. In one country, the
assistance was provided because the Government did not have a budget for those
activities. The Board was informed that the issue was being discussed by the
Joint Consultative Group on Programme, which is composed of UNICEF, the United
Nations Development Programme (UNDP), the United Nations Population Fund
(UNFPA), the World Food Programme (WFP) and other organizations. The
Administration realizes the importance of the issue and concurs with the view
of the Board concerning the need fer developing an appropriate policy for
consistent application. UNICEF fully participates in the ongoing exercise
with the aim of developing policy guidelines on the matter.

104. It is the view of the Board that, since the use of programme resources to
supplement government staff salaries is not specified in the Plan of
Operations agreements, the action amounts to a misapplication of project funds
in grey areas which have not been identified as programme activities.
Furthermore, the payment of incentives to a particular group of workers in
government departments on the grounds of low salaries may give rise to
possible jealousies that could inflame political and social situations. A
clear policy on the matter is immediately required to ensure its consistent
application worldwide.

World Sununit fQr Children

105. The BQard examined the accounts of the World Summit for Children and
Summit-related mobilizatiQn activities. The aCCQunts have not been closed, as
both pledges and expenditure items continue tQ be received at UNICEF
headquarters.

106. The Executive Board apprQved a total budget of $5,134,445, made up of
$2,994,762 for the Summit and $2,139,683 fQr mobilization. The operational
results indicated that Qut Qf a total pledge of $4,920,472, a sum of
$4,806,185 consisting of $2,970,664 and $1,835,521 for Summit and
mobilization, respectively, was paid, leaving $114,287 yet to be paid.

107. Actual expenditure of $4,685,348, made up of $2,885,798 for the Summit
and $1,799,550 for mobilization, was incurred, resulting in an unspent balance
of $120,837. This balance is further analysed into $84,866 and $35,971 for
Summit and mobilization, respectively.

108. According to the terms of reference of the Summit, the disposition of the
account balance will be determined by the UNICEF Executive Board. The Board
recommended and the Administration agreed to continue to follow up on the
outstanding pledges. The Division of Financial Management and Programme
Funding Office will finalize figures related to unreceived balances and actual
expenditures and submit a recommendation to the Executive Board tQ close the
Summit accounts.
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Expendable and nQn-expendable prQperty

InyentQry management in headquarters

109. As part Qf its jQint review of the management Qf nQn-expendable property
by the Qrganizations in the United Nations system, the Roard observed that the
total inventQry holdings of UNICEF as at 31 December 1991 was estimated at
$54.6 million. Despite the Administration's efforts to improve inventory
management, the timely reporting of inventory holdings of the organization was
not achieved prior to the closing of the accounts for the biennium. Out of
127 field offices, 52 failed to submit their annual inventory reconciliation
statements to headquarters in good time for inventory status to be updated.
Upon the suggestion of the Board, the dateline for the submission of annual
inventory reconciliation statements was changed from 29 February to 31 January.

110. A large quantity of obsolete inventory remained undisposed of for a long
time because the meetings of the headquarters Property Survey Board were not
very frequent. Throughout the biennillin 1990-1991 the Property Survey Board
met only three times. As a result, a pile of 56 computer pieces valued at
$248,000 and a mound of discarded furniture at the Long Island warehouse had
not been dispQse~ of during the audit. The Administration intends to ensure
that the Property ~"rvey Board meets at least three times in a year.

111. The loss Qf equipment at headquarters through pilferage was on the
increase. Since 1987, 23 cases of missing items involving $36,000 were
reported. In addition to circu1ars issued by the Administration, security
measures such as cameras, card keys and sensormatic electronic security
systems have been installed.

InyentQry management in field offices

112. At field offices, the Board noted opportunities for further improvement
in the control of non-expendable property. New acquisitions were untimely
recorded and approved items for disposal were not promptly deleted from the
inventory listing. Year-end inventory counts were not always conducted by
personnel who were independent of custodial functions. Some staff members
failed tQ surrender, prior to separation, the equipment they had received on
loan. The need for improving mQnitoring by stating the dates the equipment
issued on loan are to be returned was emphasized and accepted by the
AdministratiQn.

113. A staff member in a field office accumulated a bill of $20,000 through
unauthorized use of the office satellite telephone for private purposes.
Based on the lQW level of the staff member's salary, the recovery ef the
amount was not considered appropriate. However, the waiver was made befQre
the Executive Director's approval was obtained. Based on the concern
expressed by the Board, the Administration intends to issue instructions on
the effective control of the use of a satellite telephone by staff members.
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Field Qffice QperatiQns

Vehicle rentals fQr emergency QperatiQns

114. ExaminatiQn Qf CQntracts awarded in a UNICEF regiQnal Qffice disclQsed
that nine vehicles (five TQyota Hi-Lux pick-ups, dQuble cabin; Qne TQyota
Hi-Lux pick-up, single cabin; tWQ lQ-tQnner trucks and Qne TQYQta Landcruiser)
were rented on different periQds between April and December 1991 fQr emergency
Qperations at a tQtal CQst Qf $322,365.

115. It was noted that, at the beginning of the emergency Qperations, similar
vehicles were available for sale in the local market at prices that were
cQnsidered reasQnable.

116. AlthQugh the UNICEF pQlicy Qn guidelines fQr emergency prQcurement places
mQre emphasis Qn timely action fQr life-saving purpQses than CQst
considerations, it recognizes the need fQr prQmpt local prQcurement Qf items
that are needed and are available locally as valuable inputs, especially at
the very beginning Qf emergency operatiQns. Based on the urgent need at the
time to save lives and reduce suffering, headquarters apprQved the renting Qf
the required vehicles instead Qf purchasing them from the lQcal market as
requested by the UNICEF office.

117. We noted that the cost Qf renting the vehicles was very high and that, if
the prevailing conditions had permitted the acquisitiQn Qf the vehicles from
the market, UNICEF WQuld have performed the required services with its Qwn
vehicles at about 50 per cent Qf the CQst Qf hiring the vehicles. CQnsidering
the availability of the appropriate vehicles at the lQcal markets at
reasQnable costs at the time of hiring the vehicles, the Board is Qf the
opinion that even if the initial conditions did nQt allow sufficient time fQr
their acquisitiQn, the vehicles shQuld have been rented fQr Qnly a limited
period (Qne or tWQ months). UNICEF CQuld have used the interim periQd to
procure vehicles tQ be used in prQviding the apprQpriate services after the
expiratiQn of the initial CQntract.

118. The Board therefQre realizes the need fQr CQnstant review of decisions
taken under emergencies SQ as tQ establish their cQntinuing validity in
changing situatiQns. The Board also advises that, in the future, emergency
planning should be sufficiently cOQrdinated and regularly reviewed tQ ensure
that services are prQvided with sufficient regard tQ eCQnQmical and efficient
utilization of financial resources.

119. In agreeing with the recommendatiQn, the AdministratiQn stated that
decisions taken under emergencies will be cQnstantly reviewed to ensure that
reSQurces are utilized in the most efficient and effective manner at all times.
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Greeting Card Operation

Allowance for exchange-rate fluctuations

120. A review of the Greeting Card Operation consolidated financial statements
for the 1990 season for the year ended 30 April 1991 disclcsed a net loss of
$1.6 million on exchange rate adjustments as compared with a net loss of
$1.4 million recorded in the 1989 season. The net loss of $1.6 million
occurred when the projected exchange rate loss of $8.6 million was set off
against a gain of $7.0 million realized on periodic revaluations of assets and
liabilities held in currencies other than the United States dollar.

121. The Board observed from the recognition agreements that whereas the
national committees are expected to submit stock and cash reports by 30 April,
remittances of proceeds are to be made each year after the campaign by
31 August. In spite of this concession, long delays in the submission of
sales proceeds after the due date by national committees were observed after
each campaign. For example, five national committpros had failed to remit a
receivable of $1.0 million for the 1989 season, wh~~~ two Committees owed
$0.5 million for the 1987 and 1988 campaigns.

122. The effect of exchange-rate fluctuations is heightened by long delays in
the transfer of sales proceeds to UNICEF, especially delays beyond the
31 August deadline. There were recurring net losses in the past four fiscal
years (1987, $2.6 million, 1988, $9.2 million, 1989, $1.4 million and 1990,
$1.6 million). The Board has expressed the need to minimize the effects of
exchange-rate fluctuations by resolving the timing difference in the
recognition of sales at the balance sheet date (30 April) and the dates actual
payments are made by the sales partners (after 31 August).

123. The Administration took note of the recommendation and will, during the
ensuing review of existing agreements, discuss with national committees the
possibility of bringing forward the date of transfer of sales proceeds to
UNICEF. In addition, the Administration will continue with its ongoing
efforts to collect all outstanding accounts receivable.

lmposition of customs duties and taxes on Greeting Card Operation products

124. Article XVII entitled "Greeting Card and other UNICEF products" as
contained in the recommendation on the model Basic Cooperation Agreement
between UNICEF and Governments (E/ICEF/1991/L.1/Rev.1 of 27 March 1991)
states, inter al~, that "any materials imported or exported by UNICEF or by
national bodies duly authorized by UNICEF to act on its behalf, in connection
with the established purposes and objectives of the UNICEF Greeting Card
Operation, shall be exempt from all customs duties, prohibitions and
restrictions and the sale of such materials for the benefit of UNICEF shall be
exempt from all national and local taxes".

125. Contrary to the above, we observed from our validation of the final
accounts of UNICEF Greeting Card Operation, New York, as at 30 April 1991,
that a total sum of $136,890 stood as accounts payable to four States Members
of the United Nations as duties and taxes.
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126. We noted a statement by the General Legal Division of the United Nations
which implies that Governments in countries where cards are sold have
generally recognized that it would be inappropriate for a Member State to
impose customs duties on UNICEF Greeting Card Operation projects.

127. Upon the recommendation of the Board, the Administration assured that it
would continue its efforts with the help of the United Nations Office of Legal
Affairs to assist sales partners in obtaining exemption from customs duties
and taxes.

Untimely submission of stock and cash accounting reports

128. National committees and other sales partners are required to submit sales
r~ports and inventory accounts to the Greeting Card Operation prior to the
L~n6l closing of its accounts. In case of default, it is the policy of the
Greeting Card Operation to record the prior year's deliveries as estimated
sales for the current year in order to enable it to finalize its accounts.

129. Despite regular follow-ups, about 50 per cent of countries that come
under the Greeting Card Operation office, Geneva, failed to submit these
reports on time, nine of which were submitted after accounts had been closed.
Consequently, sales figures recorded in the 1990 campaign that ended on
30 April 1991 were based on deliveries made in the 1989 campaign.

130. Estimated sales recorded in respect of two of the defaulting countries
were significantly lower than the actual sales. In one case, actual sales
were higher by $12,662 (170 per cent) and in the other by $65,654
(234 per cent). The U1e of estimated figures as a basis for recording sales
for defaulting countries is therefore likely to have a negative effect on the
sales account, as they may have been grossly understated. Efforts to improve
clibmission of the relevant reports were noted. A circulsr letter was sent to
all sales partners requesting strict compliance with the reporting deadline of
30 April 1992.

Internal

Professional resources

131. As part of its horizontal review of t~.e 1rnal audit function in United
Nations organizations, the Board examined the resources available to the
UNICEF Office of Internal Audit to enable it adequately to discharge its
professional responsibilities.

132. We observed that three P-5 ~osts, out of a total of 13 international
Professional core posts availal'ls to the Office of Internal Audit, were vacant
as at October 1991. One post w~s, however, encumbered prior to the end of the
year. The distribution of these posts departs from the usual pyramidal shape
to a rather top-heavy structure. In this connection, 10 of the posts are in
the top echelon, with the remaining three in the middle level and none at the
bottom level. Consequently, minor audits at relatively small locations were
perforr 3d by senior-level staff members. It was learned that the present post
structure evolved irom the upgrading of the posts of regional auditors to a
level which requires sufficient experience to work with minimum supervision
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and also to bridge the gap between the regional auditors and the UNICEF
regional directors whose work they are expected to review.

133. The Board saw the Ileed for a review of the present staffing structure
through an objective application of appropriate indicators of workload to
staffing requirements, to ensure the efficient execution of the internal audit
function at a reasonable cost. The Administration said the future structure
of the Office of Internal Audit will depend on a decision of the Executive
Board during its 1993 session.

134. A review of the Internal Audit work plan for 1991 revealed that, out of
62 audits planned for the year, 34 had been completed as at 28 October 1991,
with 15 still in progress, bringing both completed and ongoing assignments to
49, or 19 per cent of the planned audits. This achievement represents only
18.8 per cent of the total 260 audits to be conducted worldwide under a
three-year rolling plan. The low rate of performance emphasizes the fact that
the present staff resources available for the execution of the internal audit
function are not commensurate with the ever-increasing growth of UNICEF
operations globally.

135. A significant number of offices, which have not been given ~overage for
periods ranging from almost five to eight years, were not included in the 1991
work plan. Three out of the 11 incumbent auditors were recruited in 1991 ­
two in March/April and the third in November. This situation prevented the
achievement of the projected audit coverage as the work plan was made on the
assumption that all the vacant posts would be filled before 1991.

136. The Board recommended the early filling of the remaining vacancies in
order to strengthen the capacity of the Office of Internal Audit to be able
adequately to discharge its audit function.

131. In accepting the recommendation, the Administration explained that the
equitable geographical distribution of posts made the recruitment process very
cumbersome, while the corporate policy in favour of the recruitment of women
was difficult to implement, as only a small percentage of women candidates
responded to repeated advertisements.

Reporting and follow-J\p

138. Internal auditing reporting standards require that the results of an
audit should be documented in a formal report and presented on a timely basis
to provide a constructive vehicle for change. Delays in the issuance of audit
reports were noted in a few cases.

139. In one instance, delays of up to three years occurred in the submission
of 10 reports by one auditor between 1988 and 1990, despite repeated
reminders. Although the auditor's contract was not renewed upon the
recommendation of the Director of the Office of Internal Audit, the auditor
was subsequently given a lateral transfer to a field office as a UNICEF
representative, plus a verbal reprimand for irresponsible performance! There
was a remarkable decline in the delay in releasing audit reports in 1991 and
this was attributed to closer supervision made possible by the location of the
auditors at headquarters.
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140. Examination of the annual report of the Office of Internal Audit on the
status of implementation of its recommendations disclosed a catalogue of
recurring internal control weakness already reported in internal audit
reports, which implied that most of the identified weaknesses were not
resolved. From the log of audit observations, we noted that 44 reminders were
sent to the auditees owing to untimely response to a total of 102 separate
audit observation summaries issued in 1991. In some cases, the comments of
the auditees were never received.

141. The lapses reported in the internal audit reports generally pertain to
non-adherence to established procedures, rather than the lack of effective
procedures. Such a situation is quite serious because it would seem to
suggest that UNICEF lacks the will and determination to enforce its own
procedures. In this connectiou, the Board identifies itself with the internal
audit recommendation that heads of offices should be held personally
accountable for less-than-adequate performance of duties in their areas of
authority.

142. The Board also observed that a number of measures have been taken by the
Administration to enforce the implementation of internal audit
recommendations. These include the establishment of an Internal Audit
Committee with the mandate to oversee the implementation of audit
recommendations. In addition, an agenda item (discussion and follow-up on
audit matters of corporate concern) has been included on the agenda of the
meetings of UNICEF representatives. The effectiveness of these measures will
be assessed by the Board in its future audits.

Appropriate locat~on for internal auditors

143. At the request of the UNICEF Executive Board, the Board of Auditors
examined the relative merits and demerits of the disparate views expressed by
members at the 1991 regular session of the Executive Board on the location of
auditors either in the regional offices or at headquarters and to make
appropriate recommendations.

144. The Board accordingly reviewed the policies and procedures that govern
the operations of the outposted regional auditors to enable it to assess the
quality of audits performed by them. UNICEF document EXD-2856 of 6 May 1983
outlines the objectives, functions, organization and working methods of the
Office of Internal Audit in UNICEF. By this document, regional/resident
auditors are required to maintain their audit work papers in the regional
offices. Section 3.4 further states that "opportunity for professional
consultations with, and guidance to, the outposted auditors and review of
audit plans and work papers are provided through the auditors visit to
headquarters and the Director's and/or Deputy Director's visit to the region".

145. We noted that professional consultation and review of working papers were
provided on an irregular basis. Regional auditors had to work independently,
without the opportunity to discuss specific audit problems or share
experiences with their colleagues.
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146. The Director of Internal Audit is responsible for providing appropriate
audit supervision from the planning stage up to the conclusion of an audit
assignment as required by the Standards for the Professional Practice of
Internal AUditing issued by the Institute of Internal Auditors, of which the
staff of UNICEF Internal Audit are collectively members. By these standards,
supervision includes approving the audit programme and ensuring that the
approved programme is carried out, unless deviations are both justified and
authori~ed. Supervision also involves reviewing audit working papers to
determine if they adequately support the audit findings, conclusions and
reports.

147. The Board noted that, based on a decision to ensure timely reporting and
to reduce costs, the auditors in the field were permitted to issue their
reports without the prior review by their supervisors. It was explained that
a post review was carried out by the supervisors and the results communicated
to the auditor to ensure improvement in his future performance. The Board is,
however, sceptical of the merits in this sort of post facto review.

148. There was a consensus of opinion a~mong previous regional auditors
interviewed that, apart from the professional isolation they faced and the
lack of supervision over their work, there was a partial loss of their
independence and objectivity since they were invariably regarded as an
integral part of the regional offices and had to participate in the regional
management decision-making process. Additionally, they were very handicapped
when preparing for an audit assignment as they had no access to vital
reference materials and documents that could enhance the preparatory phase of
the audit.

1490 Moreover, the regional auditor's contacts with their supervisors,
experienced colleagues, or even fellow regional auditors were irregular. The
Board was also informed that, on the average, it costs $40,000 per family to
rotate regional auditors at three-year intervals. In the opinion of the
Office of Internal Audit, even if the operational cost of centrally located
internal audit staff was not re~uced by the savings on rotation cost, the
quality of audits would be greatly improved.

150. The Administration said the other major constraints were that complex
audit observations requiring further clarification at headquarters, in
New York, sometimes involving several divisions, had to be addressed by
regional officers without adequate access to detailed background material.
Although this concern can be addressed by referring complex audit observations
to headquarters for redress, such an approach will not permit timely action.

151. Within their experience as former regional auditors, the Director and
Deputy Director are familiar with the managerial drawbacks of the
decentralized approach. It was to address the professional concerns and
frustrations expressed by the regional auditors that a decision was made to
relocate the auditors at headquarters. The Administration said it has never
intended to change the regional auditor concept because that concept has
proved successful.

152. The Board would like to observe that the opportunities for professional
consultations based on the visits of outposted auditors to headquarters and
the visits of headquarters supervisory staff to the field offices, as
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envisaged in sectiQn 5.4 Qf dQcument EXD-2856, were nQt realized as nQted in
paragraph 145 abQve. SecQndly, the level Qf supervisiQn by the DirectQr of
Internal Audit as required by the Institute Qf Internal AuditQrs Standards fQr
the PrQfessiQnal Practice Qf Internal Auditing was nQt pQssible in an
arrangement where the internal auditQrs are scattered in field Qffices.

153. DecentralizatiQn may achieve desirable results if the Internal Audit
Office were staffed with a reasQnable number Qf auditQrs tQ permit the
grQuping tQgether Qf some Qf them in different lQcatiQns, in Qrder tQ wQrk
tQgether independently as units. HQwever, the present staffing level, which
allQws Qnly Qne auditQr in a regiQnal Qffice, has:

(a) Given rise tQ prQfessiQnal iSQlatiQn;

(b) Hindered adequate supervision Qf the audit function culminating in
SQme repQrting deficiencies;

(c) Appeared tQ cQmprQmise the independence Qf the auditQr thrQugh
fraternizatiQn and undue invQlvement in the pQlicy-making prQcess.

154. Until these deficiencies are resQlved, it is the cQnclusiQn Qf the BQard
that the audit functiQn will be mQre efficiently and effectively perfQrmed in
a centralized envirQnment.

Write-Qffs Qf cash, receivables and prQpe~

155. The AdministratiQn infQrmed the BQard that, after due cQnsultatiQn with
UNICEF Qffices and when apprQpriate, with dQnQrs, incQme had been adjusted tQ
reflect reductiQn Qf aCCQunts. GQvernmental and nQn-gQvernmental receivables
tQtalling $7.5 milliQn were written Qff fQr the biennium 1990-1991. Of this
amQunt, $2.1 milliQn was fQr general reSQurces and $5.4 milliQn was fQr
supplementary funds. In additiQn, an amQunt Qf $562,441 of product inventory
in Greeting Card Operation warehouses and $118,652 of accounts receivables
were written off against Greeting Card Operation income in 1990-1991.

156. The Board was also informed that out of $539,353 written off as losses,
$8,235 involved cash, while $531,118 pertained to the value of obsolete
supplies in the UNICEF Supply Division warehouse.

Ex gratia payments

157. One ex gratig payment in the amount of $8,000 was made for medical
expenses not covered by insurance in respect of a consultant.

Cases Qf fraud and presumptive fraud

158. The Board was ~nformed of 12 cases of fraud and missing office equipment
that came to light in the biennium 1990-1991. One out of nine cases of
financial irregularities committed by UNICEF staff members did not result in a
financial loss to the organization due to timely action. In seven cases,
recoveries of funds .nisappropriated were made and the staff members were
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either separated or dismissed. In one case, a small part of the amount
embezzled through the use of wrong specifications in tha execution of a
contract was written off as a loss to UNICEF and investigation into another
case involving a bank is ongoing. Increasing losses of office equipment
through pilferage were reported at UNICEF headquarters. Remedial measures to
protect property have been introduced.
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ANNEX I

FQ!!Qw-UP Qn actiQn taken tQ implement the recQmmendatiQns
Qf the BQard Qf AuditQrs in its repQrt fQr the periQd ended

31 December 1~ ~I

I. RECOMMENDATION 6 (a)

1. The tQtal charge Qf $8.3 milliQn Qn the Emergency Reserve Fund fQr the
biennium, which was distributed amQng genera! reSQurces prQgramme expenditures
in the beneficiary cQuntries tQ the Fund, should be adjusted and disclQsed
separately in statement VI (this recQmmendatiQn has been implemented).

11. RECOMMENDATION 6 (b)

2. The pQlicy of recQgnizing cash advances tQ GQvernments in the aCCQunts Qf
UNICEF as prQgramme expenditures must be supported by sufficient evidence on
the effective utilizatiQn of these advances for purposes intended. In this
connection, the following must be considered:

(a) A more effective procedure for advancing and monitoring cash
advances tQ Governments should be instituted to ensure adequate compliance
with the pQlicy on timely liquidation of these advances;

(b) The format Qf form 153 should be reviewed to take account of the
ageing of advances and tQ include other relevant management information;

(c) In Qrder tQ facilitate monitQring, field Qffices shQuld submit
expenditure returns Qn cash advances directly tQ the Accounts SectiQn;

(d) Field Qffices shQuld be directed tQ include the pQlicy Qn cash
advances in all memQranda Qf understanding with Governments. For example, as
spelt Qut in Financial Circular NQ. 15, nQ further transfer Qf funds may be
made if a certificate Qf utilizatiQn of priQr financing is outstanding for
more than six months.

A. Measures taken by the AdministratiQn

3. As indicated in the present report of the Board, a number of steps were
taken to ensure appropriate monitoring and control of cash assistance to
Governments. A more coordinated and systematic monitoring system over
advances to Governments is now in place. Financial Circular No. 15
(Revision 1) and supplementary guidelines fQr field Qffices were issued Qn
28 June 1991 to clarify UNICEF policies and procedures on non-supply
assistance. The responsibility of ensuring compliance with the Circular and
Guidelines has been assigned as an important component of the functions of a
senior staff member of the Accounts Section, Division of Financial Management.

~I Official Records Qf the General Assembly. Forty-fifth Session,
Supplement No. SB (A/45/5/Add.2 and Corr.l), sect. 11, para. 6.
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4. As a result of the efforts of the Secretariat end the field offices,
there have been substantial improvements in the status of cash assistance to
Governments. The Board of Auditors in their last interim audit positively
noted the $22,611,058 reduction in the cumulative balance of the advances from
$84,497,532 as at 31 December 1990 to $61,886,475 in 30 June 1991.

5. The external auditors in their last interim audit, reiterated the need
for the ageing of the advances to ascertain their status. The Administration
is cognizant of this requirement in Financial Circular 15 (Revision 1) and
will prepare the ageing of the outstanding advances starting from the
31 December 1991 reports which are only being received. The information will
be provided to the Board of Auditors in their next audit.

B. Comments of the Board

6. The Board recognizes that a number of measures already taken by the
Administration have succeeded in improving accountability for cash advances.
However, the problem of outstanding advances is far from resolved. The
Board's audit visits to field offices revealed that in many cases new advances
continued to be released when expenditures on the utilization of prior
advances had not been submitted. Additional measures to ensure further
improvement in the monitoring and liquidation of cash advances have been
discussed in the present report.

Ill. RECOMMENDATION 6 (c)

7. The Administration is urged to continue with its efforts of securing the
review of UNICEF financial regulation 4.10 with a view to ensuring consistency
in the recording of gains and losses on currency exchange (this recommendation
has been implemented).

IV. RECOMMENDATION 6 (d)

8. The need to siphon excess liquidity into the provision of additional
services should be considered.

A. Measures taken by the Administration

9. The medium-term financial plan is now designed to accelerate programme
activities by the utilization of excess liquidity. At the same time, a
working group of the Financial Advisory Committee has been established to
review existing liquidity requirements and recommend possible change in the
policy.

B. Comments of the Board

10. The Board noted improvement in this area. The liquidity ratio declined
slightly and the surplus of income over expenditure reduced significantly as
at 31 December 1991, although expenditures still lagged behind contributions.
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V. RECOMMENDATION 6 (e)

11. In order to ensure accuracy and reliability of accounting data, the
Administration should continue to explore the possibility of instituting
effective action to improve the coding of accounts and to enhance the
integrity of data at the field office level.

A. Measures taken by the Administration

12. The Administration continues to conduct training activities for field
office personnel to ensure the submission of accounts in a correct and timely
manner. In 1991, the group training activities were supported by field office
visits, particularly to focus on discussions regarding programme accounts.
Where possible, field offices were encouraged to send their staff to New York
and meet with relevant personnel. The progress made in improving central
accounting and financial systems has also contributed to strengthening data
integrity and accuracy in the field offices. Dialogues and studies to improve
the electronic data-processing systems for field office reporting of accounts
to headquarters, in order further to enhance data integrity, continue to be
undertaken.

B. Comments of the Board

13. The Board's review did not reveal any significant coding or accounting
errors.

VI. RECOMMENDATION 6 (f)

14. Project planning should adequately articulate implementation requirements
to enhance programme delivery. In addition, circumspection is advised in the
reallocation of funds from slow-moving projects to fast-moving ones, 50 that
the policy does not result in the unconscious neglect of projects located in
"difficult" areas which have perennial implementation problems.

A. Measures taken by the Administration

15. UNICEF continues to enhance programme implementation in terms of overall
programme delivery and in meeting the specific needs and priorities of the
country programmes. A major improvement can be noted in the number of general
resources country programmes with low implementation rate (below 75 per cent),
that is, from 15 in 1989 to 13 in 1990 and to only 7 in 1991.

16. The number of countries with low implementation rate decreased from 48 in
1989 to 37 in 1990. However, this number increased again to 46 in 1991. The
Administration is in the process of analysing the specific reasons for low
implementation of each of these supplementary-funded country programmes. In
the process, any generic issues involved will be identified. At the
conclusion of the analysis, the Administration should be able to identify
feasible solutions to sustain improved implementation of supplementary-funded
country programmes.
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B. Comments of the Board

17. The Board's analysis disclosed that the overall programme implementation
level showed an increase between 1989 and 1990 but declined in 1991. This
decline was attributable to the generally low performance level of
supplementary-funded projects owing, in part, to a switch to the
implementation of emergency programmes in 1991.

VII. RECOMMENDATION 6 (g)

18. The monitoring of project implementation needs further improvement so
that over-expenditures that would otherwise be absorbed by general resources
in the absence of supplementary funding could either be eliminated or kept to
a minimum.

A. Measures taken by the AdministratiQn

19. The Ad~inistratiQn adQpted, as one Qf its principal priorities in 1991,
the improved monitoring of prQgramme implementation. Starting in 1991,
special repQrts on call-forwards with over-expenditures were generated at
regular cut-Qff periQds. These repQrts were distributed to countries/offices
concerned with the instruction that appropriate action be taken on such
over-expenditures. Detailed analysis and reconciliation were also undertaken
in 1991 to determine the reasons for the over-expenditures and field offices
were advised tQ take the necessary and appropriate steps to avoid
Qver-expenditures.

B. COmments Qf the BQard

20. Measures taken have not succeeded in addressing the problem. Out of a
deficit of $7.0 million incurred in the biennium 1990-1991 on
supplementary-funded prQjects, $5.0 million was charged to general resources
for lack Qf dQnor funding, while $2.0 million was being investigated. Further
weaknesses noted by the Board have been discussed in the present report.

VIII. RECOMMENDATION 6 (h)

21. With the rate of expansion in the operational activities of UNICEF, which
has exceeded its staff resources, it will be necessary for the Administration
to take steps to assess staff needs, especially of the operational divisiQns,
with a view to taking appropriate corrective action (this recommendation has
been implemented).

IX. RECOMMENDATION 6 (1)

22. During the fund-raising activities, prospective donors should be
encouraged to provide sufficient information on their contributions in order
to facilitate their accounting, acknowledgement and effective utilization. In
this connection, a standard advice form indicating the relevant information
may be completed by donors.
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III

..
A. ~..t.M AdministrAtJ&n

23. The Administration supports the recommendation. In the meantime,
discussions have been held by the responsible divisions in the secretariat for
the purpose of defining ways to improve co~~unications with donors. This is
intended to ensure that information recaiveQ will support efflclent cash
management.

24. Sufficient information is still required on supplementary contributions.

X. RECOMNENDATlON 6 (j)

25. Payment of bills should as far. as possible be delayed until the last date
in order to explore the possibility of obtRining maximl~ rsturns on monies
that can be put into short-term investments (this recommendation has been
implemented) •

Xl. RE~OMMENDATION 6 (k)

26. The existing procedures for reporting staff indebtedness before the
payment of the final cash advance on separation require adequato monitoring,
so that all monies due from separating staff members can be fully dnd promptly
recovered prior to separation.

A. M..e..llSJ.U.:JUi..-t-Wutll...a..the Administration

27. The Admi~istration has taken steps to strengthen overall control over
staff personal accounts. ~ha integ~ation of all staff-related accounts under
one supervisor was implemented in 1991 to further streamline existing
procedures and ensure adequate monitoring thereof.

28. A thorough review and evaluation of the needs of the staff personal
accounts system was carried out i.n 1991. This focused on internal control and
accountability, &nd on procedures that wi~l assure prompt recovery on
traneactions of st~ff personal accounts. Systems development will be
undertaken in 1992 for implementation in 1992-1993.

29. The Administration has, likewise, continued to exert efforts to roview
and ensure correctness of existing account balances. A special project to
verify the prior year's balance will be concluded in 1992.

B. Ccmments of ..tWL13..~

30. Measures to clean up the staff personal accounts are ongoing. Two
working groups have been established - one for the clean-up of the staff
personal accounts and the other to explore the possibility of automating the
procedures for making these transactions.
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XII. RECOMMENDATION 6 (li

31. The need for the centralized control of "attractive" inventory items,
such as ~omputers and vehicles, should be considered. For this purpose, field
offices should submit copies of their inventory as of 31 December each year to
be reflected in the headquarters master inventory list (this recommendation
has been implemented).

XIII. RECOMMENDATION 6 (m)

32. Action should be taken to ensure the conclusion of a formal and adequate
custodial arrangement of UNICEF drugs and equipment in a field office.

A. M~~x~ken by the~inistra~iQn

33. As was reported in 1991, a new country office was established to
facilitate operations in that country and corrective measures were taken to
ensure adequate custodial procedures. There has been no reported recur~0nce

of the auditors' finding thereafter.

B. CQ...rnments~ the BQaui

34. The recommendation should be considered implemented as no further reports
ef inadequate control ef property in the field office have come to the notice
er the Board.

XIV. RECOMMENDATIONS 6 (n) AND 6 (0)

35. UNICEf must ~trictly adhere to its policy of refraining from contracting
coastruction projects with high commit~ents that might overburden its
fiuancial resources in the event that counterpart contribu~ion5 are not
forthcoming (this recommendation has been implemented).

36. The requesting units of the Greeting Card Operation should be required to
allow adequate lead time in their requisitions in order to ensure that
materials are procured under optimum delivery, price and quality conditions
(this recommendation has been implemented).
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ANNEX II

Liguidity position

GENERAL RESOURCES AND SUPPLEMENTARY FUNDS

Computation of increase in current Assets and
lillbilities as at 31 December 1991

(United States dollars)

Increase/
1991 1989 decrease

AuJrt.a

Short-term

Cash holdings 403 264 004 310 797 592 92 466 412

Contributions receivable
for current and prior
years 288 926 067 222 870 613 66 055 454

Accounts receivable
advances and deposits 156 969 435 129 319 634 27 649 801

Inventories 40 505 223 34 252 556 6 252 667

TotAl 889 664 729 697 240 395 192 424 334

Long-term

Contributions receivable
for future years 86 703 398 53 154 261 33 549 136

Capital assets 8 072 308 4 329 001 3 743 301

Total, short-term and
long-term Assets 984 440 435 154 123 6~ 229 116 177
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1991

Liabilities and fund balance

Long-term

1989
Increase/
decrease

•

1.

Special accounts:
Procurement Services
and other services

Fund balance

Total

Short-term

Contributions for
following years pledged
and received in advance

Income received in advance
for Greeting Card and
related operations

Accounts payable and other
unliquidated obligations

Total, short-term
liabilities

Total, fund balance
and short-term
liabilities

47 121 373

115 610 312

762 731 685

143 819 947

59 636 849

579 262 114

638 898 963

59 357 193

(12 515 476)

136 348 198

123 832 722

84 462 754

Increase (decrease) in current assets
~: increase in current liabilities
Increase (decrease) in net current assets

Increase (decrease)
in n&t current assets 762 731 685 638 8g8 963 123 832 722

229 716 177
U5 884 055
123 832 722

-37-

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



1. Increase/decrease in current assets and current liabilities is shown in
annex 11.

2. The table below shows the sources and application of funds during the to
bienniwn under review. Ch

Sources of funds General Supplementary funds Total
ex

resources te
Contributions from ne
Governments 794 439 778 381 982 247 1 172 422 025

Other contributions 44 854 015 186 667 970 231 521 985 st
en

Greeting Card and
related operations 159 384 247 159 384 247

ac
United Nations system 21 319 792 21 319 792 th

Fi
Other income 74 901 936 74 901 936

Translation adjustment (36 784 163) 1 052 352 (35 731 811)

Increase in medical
insurance plan 2 305 313 2 305 313

Increase in procurement
services - staff-related
costs 23 551 23 551

Increase in capital
asset fund 22 184 341 22 184 341

Total 1 061 309 018 591 022 361 1 652 331 379

Application of funds

Write-off of pledges
and other items 2 678 423 5 356 242 8 034 664

Expenditures 947 538 612 538 134 904 1 485 673 517

Increase in interfund
transfer 22 000 000 22 000 000

Decrease in revolving
fund - speci.al events 275 000 275 000

Decrease in liabilities -
special account -
procurement services 12 515 476 12 515 476

Total 985 007 511 543 491 146 1 528 498 657

Increase in
working capital 76 301 501 47 531 215 123 832 722
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Ill. AUDIT OPINION

We have examined the following appended financial statements numbered I
to VIII, properly identified, and relevant schedules of the United Nations
Children's Fund for the financial period ended 31 December 1991. Our
examination included a general review of the accounting procedures and such
tests of the accounting records and other supporting evidence as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

As a result of our examination, we are of the op~n~on that the financial
st~tements present fairly the financial position of the organization as at the
end of the period and the results of its operations for the period then ended.

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with the stated
accounting principles, which were applied on a basis consistent with that of
the preceding financial period. The transactions were in accordance with the
Financial Regulations and legislative authority.

(Signed) Osei Tutu PREMPEH
Auditor-General of Ghana

(Signed) Eufemio C. DOMINGO
Chairman, Commission on Audit
of the Philippines

(Signed) Heinz Gunter ZAVELBERG
President of the Federal Court
of Audit of Germany
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IV. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE BIENNIUM ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1991
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STATEMENT I

Statement of income and expenditures for the biennium ended 31 December 1991

(United States dollars)

1990-1991 1988-1989

Genera~ Supplementary
resources funds Total

General-- -Supplementary
resources funds Total

INCCJ4E
Contributions from Governments
Cootr'butions from

non-governmental sources
Greeting Card and related

operations
Net income from operations
Income adjustment due to change

in accounting method
United Nations system
Other income
Translation adjustment

(schedule 1)

(sci')edul e 1)

(schedule 1)
(schedule 2)

794,439,778.20 381,982,247.1i

44,854,015.24 186,667,969.83

159,384,247.09

21,319,792.31
74,901,935.74

(36,784,162.99) 1,052,352.08

1,176,422,025.31

231,521,985.07

159,384,247.09

21,319,792.31
74,901,935.74

(35,731,810.91)

629,840,400.97

47,183,320.00

86,236,202.88

43,498,995.14

72,185,870.51
(18,265,194.40)

366,218,093.75

139,926,718.80

16,519,011.21

(4,763,935.63)

996,058,494.n

187,110,038.80

86,236,202.88

43,498,995.14
16,519,011.21
72,185,870.51

(23,029,130.03)

804,426,826.62 538,134,904.14 1,342,561,730.76

(statP.ment VII) 143,111,785.86 143,111,785.86
~----. __ ._---- .---------_ .. - .-_._---._-- .. --
947,538,612.48 538,134,904.14 1,485,673,516.62

89,257,200.80 52,887,457.19

1,036,795,813.28 591,022,361.33

Write-off of pledges and other items (note 4)

234,633,911.89

5,311,419.60

458,714,499.92
134,755,290.12

427,779,554.52
14,147,931.61

75,972,402.00

4,778,770.29

517,899,888.13 1,378,579,483.23

1+27,779,554.52
14,147,931.6i

158,661,509.89

532,649.31

593,469,790.04 441,927,486.13 1,035,397,276.17

108,548,295.17 108,548,295.17

707,018,085.21 441,927,486.13 1,143,945,571.34

458,714,499.92
134,755,290.12

860,679,595.10

142,144,657.99

8,034,664.53

637,286,799.19
167,140,027.43

518,389,114.81
19,745,789.33

1,627,818,174.61

5,356,241.69

518,389,114.81
19,745,789.33

2,678,422.84

637,286, m.19
(statement VII) 167,140,027.43

Administrative services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF INCOME OVER EXPENDITURES
3EFORE WRITE-OFF

TOTAL INCOME

EXPENDITURES
For progrEl/IIlle cooperation from:

General resources
Progr~nme support services
Supplementary funds other than

United Nations system
United Nations system

Total programme cooperation

I....
N
I

============== =============~ ===~==~=========

EXCESS OF INCOME OVER EXPENDITURES
AFTER WRITE-OFF 86,578,777.96 47,531,215.50 134,109,993.46 158,128,860.5B

::=:;:::=::~=~=::==~

71,193,631.71
======:===::==

229,322,492.29
============:::

Statements 11 to VIII and notes 1 to 16 form an i:1tegral part of this statement and should be r-ead i,., cor.jLAnction witi') it.

(Signed) I(ano YAMA!olOTO
C~tJ'ot [er

(Signed) James P. GRANT
----- E~ecutive Director
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STATEMENT lA

Statement of income and expenditures for the biennium ended 31 December 1991

(United States dollars)

1991 1990

397,569,298.85 199,781,229.73 597,350,528.58
I NCCIlIE

Contributions from Governments
Contributions from

non-governmental sources
Greeting Card and related operations
United ~ations system
Other income
Translation adjustment

General--- --Supplementary
resources funds

396,870,479.35 182,201,017.38

18,270,270.36 114,614,319.26
69,640,718.95

11 ,359,348.18
35,244,520.68

(14,283,880.62) (7,202,824.88)

Total

579,071,496.T3

132,884, 58'~ .62
69,640,718.95
11,359,348.18
35,244,520.68

(21,486,705.50)

Generar Supp{elMntary
resources flXlds

26,583,744.88 72,053,650.57
89,743,528.14

9,960,444.13
39,661,415.06

(22,500,282.37) 8,255,176.96

Total

913,637,395.45
89,743,528.14
9,960,444.13

39,661,415.06
(14,245,105.41)

t
.~.

W
I

TOTAL INCOfolE

EXPENDITURES
For programme cooperation from:

General resources
Programme support services
Supplementary funds other than

United Nations system
United Nati~s system

505,742,108.72 300,971,859.94 806,713,968.66

317.843,567.62 ! 17,843,567.62
86,237,829.44 86,237,829.44

260,146,233.09 260,146,233.09
13,101,457.48 13,101,457.48

531,057,704.56 290,050,501.39 8?1,108,205.95

319,443,231.57 319 i 443 ,231.57
130,902,197.99 80. 9G2, ~97. 99

258,242,881.72 258,242,881.72
6,644,331.05 6,644,331.85

404,081.397.06 273,247,690.57 677,329,087.63

478,540,978.67 273,247,690.57 751,788,669.24

Total prograrr~ COQ~ratlon

AdmInistrative services

TOTAL EXPENDiTURES

74,459,581.61 74,459,581.61

400,345,429.56 264,887,213.57 665,232,643.13

68,652,204.25 68,652,204.25
_.~_. __ ._--_ .. --.------.---- --------------
468,997,633.81 264,887,213.57 733,884,847.38

EXCESS OF INCOME OVER EXPENDITURES
BEFORE WRITE-OFF

Write-off of pledges and other items

EXCESS OF INCOME OVER EXPENDITURES
AFTER WRITE-OFF

27,201,130.05 27,724,169.37 54,925,299.42

1,401,310.02 1,723,579.14 3,124,889.16

25,799,820.03 26,000,590.23 51,800,410.26
============== ============== ==========~=:=

62,060,070.75 25,163,287.82 87,223,358.57

1,281,112.82 3,632,662.55 4,913,775.37

60,778,957.93 21,530,625.27 82,309,583.20
======~====:== ~============= ====~=========

.....,~~,:-.~;~
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STATEMENT II

Statement of assets, liabilities and fund balances as at 31 December 1991

(United States dollars)

1991

ASSETS

1989

Cash holdings
Contributions receivable:

For current and prior years
For future years

Accounts receivable, advances
Inventories
Capital assets

TOTAL ASSETS

L1ABILlflES

(schedule 3) 403,264,004.25 310,797,592.19
(schedule 4) 288,926,066.96 222,870,613.22(schedule 8) 86,703,397.68 53,154,261.35and deposits (schedule 6) 156,969,435.24 129,319,634.13(schedule 7) 40,505,223.02 34,252,555.71(note 16) 8,072,308.13 4,329,001.02

------~------- -.------------984,440,435.28 754,n3,657.62-------------- ---------------------------- --------------

Contributions for following years
I

pledged aM r~ceived in advance (schedule 8) 143,819,947.26 59,357,193.39~ Income received in advance for
~ Greeting Card and related operations 466,148.96 11,997,617.73I Accounts payable and other

unliquidated obligations (schedule 9) n,422,653.58 44,469,883.52Special accounts:
Procurement services and other services (schedule 10) 47,121,373.66 59,636,849.34

-.------------ -------- ... -----TOTAL LIABILITIES 268,830,123.46 175,461,543.98

FUND BALANCE (statement Ill) 715,610,311.82 579,262,113.64------ .... -.. --. .-.--.----- .. -..TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 984,440,435.28 754,723,657.62============== ==============

Statements III to VIII and notes 1 to 16 fC:-J1l an integral part of th i s statement and should be read in conjln:t ionwith it.

(Signed) Kano YAMAMQTO
Coq>troller (Signed~ James P. GRANT

xecutive Director
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STATEMENT III

Statement of fund balances for the biennium ended 31 December 1991

(United States dollars)

I
or.
U1
I

FUND BALANCES, 1 JANUARY 1990

Increase in medical insurance plan
Increase in procurement services -

staff and related cost
Increase in capital asset fund
Interfund transfer
Decrease in revolving fund . special events
Excess of income over ex~nditures

for the biennium ended 31 December 1991

FUND BALANCES, 31 DECEMBER 1991

COMPOSITION OF FUND BALANCES, 31 DECEMBER

General resources

Supplementary flM'lds

Fund for procurement services ­
staff and related cost

Revolving fund - special events

Fund for insurance

Fund for medical insurance plan

Capital asset fund

TOTAL FUND BALANCE

(statement 1)

(schedule 11)

General
resources and
other flM'lds

265,273,989.63

2,305,312.62

23,551.42
22,184,340.68

(22,000,000.00)
(275,000.00)

86,578,m.96

354,090,972.31
==============

Supplementary
funds

313,988,124.01

47,531,215.50

361,519,339.51
----------------------------

1991

322,011,719.94

361,519,339.51 AI

854,847.79

300,000.00

4,448,265.76

26,476,138.82

715,610,311.82
==============

Total

579,262,113.64

2,305,312.62

23,551.42
22,184,340.68

(22,000,000.00)
(275,000.00)

134,109,993.46

715,610,31'.82
----------------------------

1989

257,432,941.98

313,988,124.01 b/

831,296.37

275,000.00

300,000.00

2,142,953.14

4,291,798.14

579,262,113.64
==============

AI This amount is net of the 1991 over-expenditures of 12,020,699.85 reported in E/ICEF/1992/AB/L.11.

~ This amount is net of the 1989 over-expenditures of 14,835,863.20 reported in E/ICEF/1990/AB/L.10.
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STATEMENT IV

Statenent of cash flows for the biennium ended 31 December 1991

(United States dollars)

--------------._----------------------------------------------------------_._----.------------------------~----------_._._-----_._----

1990-1991 1988-1989
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH FROM:

Excess of income over expenditures
after write-off

AdjustlMl'\ts to reconci le net iocOllle to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Capital asset fund
Interfund transfer
Fund for medical insurance plan
Fund for insurance
Fund for procureMent services ­

staff and related cost
Revolving fund . special events

Total adjust.ents

(statement I) 134,109,993.46

22,184,340.68
(22,000,000.00)

2,305,312.62

23,551.42
(275,000.00)

2,238,204.72

229,322,492.29

2,142,953.14
50,000.00

131,296.37

2,324,249.51

I..
01
I

Contributions receivable for current and prior years

Contributions receivable for future year

Accounts receivable, advances and deposits

Inventories

Capital assets

Contributions for following years pledged
and received in advance

Income received in advance for
Greeting Card and related operations

Prepaid expenditures for Greeting Card
and related operations

Accounts payable and other unliquidated obligations

Special accounts

Total changes in assets and liabilities

Net funds frOlll (used in) operations

Cash and cash equivalents at begiming of biennium

Cash and cash equivalents at end of biennium

(66,055,453.74)

(33,549,136.33)

(27,649,801.11 )

(6,252,667.31)

(3,743,307.11)

s:. ,462,753.87

(11,531,468.n)

32,952,nO.06

(12,515,475.68)

(43,881,786.12)

92,466,412.06

310,797,592.19

403,264,004.25
=================

(53,687,621.16)

82,365,223.89

(88,710,117.88)

9,607,385.03

2,455,559.59

(93,125,094.28)

(1,045,139.41)

15,267,880.76

6,713,143.64

7,597,115.06

(112,561,664.76)

119,085,on.04

191,712,515.15

310,797,592.19
=================

--------------------- u •• • _
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STATEMENT V

Status of funding for approved general resources and supplementary funds

As at 31 Decl!llb!r 1991

(United States dollars)

---w

Supplementary funds

I
~
-..I
I

Unspent balances of programmes
as at 1 January 1990

Approved at the El1ecutive Board sessions IV

New progr8llllleS
Savings and deficits

Made between Executive Board sessions

Adjustments to programmes

Savings of 1990-1991 budget

Recovery from packing and
assembly activities

Expendi tures

Unspent balances of programmes
as at 31 December 1991

Fmd balance as at 31 December 1991
Translation adjustment, 1987-1991

Subtotal

To be financed from future income

General
resources

852,123,932.41

1,190,988,460.00
(242,931.60)

82,253,652.43

25,619,019.11

(6,891,580.16)

(10,029,206.55)

2,133,821,340.30

941,538,612.48

1,186,282,727.82

322,011,719.94

322,011,719.94

864,211 ,007.88
==================

Governments and
others

369,201,334.33

575,381,926.94

10,656,043.65

955,239,304.92

518,389,114.81

436,850,190.11

354,113,578.18
1,840,711.19

355,954,289.37

80,895,900.74
------------------------------

United Nations
system

8,592,349.99

24,670,748.13

(50.52)

33,263,047.60

'19,745,789.33

13,517,258.27

7,405,761.33

7,405,761.33

6,111,496.94
================

Total

1,229,911,616.79

1,190,988,460.00
(242,937.60)

682,306,327.50

36,275,012.84

(6,891,580.16)

(10,029,206.55)

3,122,323,692.82

1,485,673,516.62

1,636,650,176.20

683,531,059.45
1,840,711.19

685,371, nO.64

951,278,405.56
----------------------------------

-11 E/ICEF/1990/P/L.1, E/ICEF/199O/P/L.36, E/ICEF/1990/P/L.38, E/ICEF/1989/P/L.41, E/ICEF/1989/12, E/ICEF/1991/AB/L.12,
E/ICEF/1991/P/L.2, E/ICEF/1991/P/L.39, E/ICEF/1991/P/L.40, E/ICEF/1992/P/L.44 and E/ICEF/1991/15.

M

- _.~;. -r -et

I
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STATEMENT VI

(United States dollars)

t balances

I

---------------------------------------- _______________________________________________________________________________________ a _____________ • ________

Approved ~ogr8llllles Approved progr-.nes
lnlpent lances New Total Total ~spent balances

Area and c~try assistance at 1 January 1990 programnes progranmes expenditures as at 31 December 1991
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
AFRICA

Angol& 9,026,280.55 24,760,795.37 33,787,075.92 18,625,832.93 1:5,161,242.99
Benin 5,338,411.03 3,870,681.06 9,209,092.09 4,790,826.19 4,418,265.90
Botswana 595,470.30 2/.54,217.97 3,049,688.27 1,631,264.88 1,418,423.39
Burkina Faso 5,385,959.87 6,356,866.05 11,742,825.92 8,666,185.67 3,076,640.25
Burundi 5,903,394.34 1,900,524.10 7,803,918.44 6,034,204.50 1,769,713.94
Cameroon 2,482,221.43 4,740,030.91 7,222,252.34 3,107,287.46 4,114,964.88
Cape Verde 676,862.51 3,568,175.95 4,245,038.46 1,668,833.43 2,576,205.03
Central African Republic 3,840,707.52 3,027,580.47 6,868,287.99 5,627,867.18 1,240,420.81
Chad 5,003,938.84 8,699,473.30 13,703,412.14 7,933,246.16 5, no, 165.98
COIIlOros 300,958.19 1,510,267.24 1,811,225.4~ 1,342,854.57 468,370.86
Congo 931,606.94 2,718,245.65 3,649,852.59 2,566,911.00 1,082,941.59
Cote d'lvoire 2,049,401.27 2,649,456.05 4,698,857.32 4,233,685.15 465,172.17

I Equatorial Guinea 4~3, 121.47 2,880,000.00 3,313,121.47 1,619,679.n 1,693,441.10
IIlo Ethiopia 36,627,075.69 18,966,087.34 55,593,163.03 40,061,379.73 15,531,783.30co
I Gantlia 1,019,708.72 669,394.31 1,689,103.03 1,473,801.27 215,301.76

Ghana 3,307,692.60 13,545,741.57 16,853,434.17 4,926,243.11 11,927,191.06
Guinea 4,365,968.17 11,529,693.54 15,895,661.71 7,821,586.92 8,074,074.79
Guinea-Bissau 1,489,725.17 3,660,958.40 5,150,683.57 3,400,169.62 1,750,513.95
Kenya 12,691,538.82 8,194,180.06 20,885,718.88 13,394,703.70 7,491,015.18
Lesotho 2,083,307.11 m,650.17 2,860,957.28 2,685,728.62 175,228.66
Liberia 1,255,623.89 12,810,642.73 14,066,266.62 4,701,353.13 9,364,913.49
Madagascar 2,536,328.83 15,134,574.70 17,670,903.53 7,835,996.12 9,834,907.41
Malawi 5,876,469.92 4,345,197.67 10,221,667.59 8,218,095.44 2,003,572.15
Hal i 12,246,476.51 6,132,798.80 18,379,275.31 12,328,611.52 6,050,663.79
Mauritania 2,440,871.31 2,157,112.03 4,597,983.34 3,654,632.21 943,351.13
Mauritius 200,150.76 1,315,921.57 1,516,072.33 737,485.47 n8,586.86
Mozant>ique 24,183,610.39 45,120,417.06 69,304,027.45 32,059,408.16 37,244,619.29
Namibia 2,481,636.95 6,939,480.11 9,421,117.06 6,332,657.31 3,088,459.75
Niger 8,719,136.50 2,325,127.38 11,044,263.88 5,459,593.24 5,584,670.64
Nigeria 26,886,627.06 71,721,013.29 98,607,640.35 39,095,628.29 59,512,012.06
Rwanda 5,232,712.24 4,173,660.69 9,406,372.93 6,627,453.56 2,n8,919.37
Sao Tome and Principe 742,974.12 2,302,566.07 3,045.540.19 658,766.95 2,386,m.24
Senegal 3,339,303.67 7,966,887.54 11,306,191.21 8,079,406.36 3,226,784.85
Sierra Leone 2,143,218.84 11,956,790.94 14,100,009.78 6,644,825.61 7,455,184.17
Somal ia 6,316,076.79 9,715,127.Cl5 16,031,203.84 8,542,613.12 7,488,590.72
Swaziland 1,597,544.73 2,494,251.41 4,091,796.14 1,749,618.20 2,342,ln.94
Toga 5,165,676.54 2,187,000.00 7,352,676.54 2,985,050.06 4,367,626.48
Uganda 10,530,860.61 60,149,~08.67 70,679,969.28 26,699,839.98 43,980,129.30
United Republic of Tanzania 28,685,329.85 20,050,081.56 48,735,411.41 30,753,781.33 17,981,630.08
Zaire 2,034,746.01 21,345,000.00 23,379,746.01 13,785,148.89 9,594,597.12
Zant>ia 3,184,154.70 10,175,620.71 13,359,775.41 5,564,708.13 7,795,067.28
Zint>abwe 4,593,640.96 6,256,246.05 10,849,887.01 4,398,688.74 6,451,198.27

STATEMENT VI (continued)
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STATEMENT VI (continued)

Area and country assistance

Regional

Area total

EAST ASIA AND THE PACIFIC

Approved programmes
lI"Ispent balances
at 1 January 1990

14,090,423.83

278,036,945.55

New
programmes

15,734,873.11

468,989,518.65

Total
programmes

29,825,296.94

747,026,464.20

TotaL
expenditures

11,692,198.61

390,217,852.29

Approved programmes
lI"Ispent balances

as at 31 December 1991

18,133,098.33

356,808,611.91

I
~

10
I

Cantxxlia
China
Democratic People's Republic

of Korea
Indonesia
Lao People's Democratic Republic
Malaysia
Mongol ia
Myarvnar
Pacific Island countries
Papua New Guinea
Phi l ippines
Republic of Korea
Thai land
Viet Nam
Regional

Area total

SOUTH ASIA

Afghanistan
Bangladesh
Bhutan
India
Maldives
Nepal
Pakistan
Sri Lanka

Area total

8,620,070.14
62,814,557.94

1,085,880.42
15,806,281.30
4,049,726.78
1,101,920.32

120,527.31
9,136,959.12
2,958,361.36

971,264.62
11,181,743.32

11,072.19
10,453,070.36
14,997,485.28
5,264,748.33

- ... _------ ... ----
148,573,668.79

(332,277.51)
86,898,634.67
7,376,958.17

86,871,928.23
646,208.88

19,057,489.86
36,441,893.72
7,659,644.76

244,620,480.78

15,471,817.98
8,826,481.86

58,473,289.57
3,217,952.94

2,430,000.00
26,616,280.63

227,294.76
1,574,850.84

22,038,848.31
1,529,952.34
4,105,061.67

41,015,466.38
19,062,082.16

204,589,379.44

345,916.16
36,953,039.52

711,140.91
248,009,671.98

2,185,572.47
6,499,261.61

10,920,826.56
9,482,570.28

315,107,999.49

24,091,888.12 12,659,220.58 11,432,667.54
71 ,641 ,039.80 30,719,768.36 40,921,271.44

1,085,880.42 672,54/•• 94 413,335.48
74,279,570.87 21,252,483.20 ~3,027,087.67

7,267,679.72 4,286,935.14 2,980,744.58
1,101,920.32 844,436.50 257,483.82
2,550,527.31 461,266.46 2,089,260.85

35,753,239.75 14,312,958.03 21,440,281.72
3,185,656.12 2,677,007.64 508,648.48
2,546,115.46 1,780,971 .70 765,143.76

33,220,591.63 16,673,726.75 16,546,864.88
1,541,1i14.53 871,957.82 669,066.71

14,558,132.03 7,666,922.25 6,891,209.78
56,012,951.66 19,825,987.85 36,186,963.81
24,326,330.49 18,263,025.63 6,063,804.86

----_ ... _-------- --------------- -_ .. __ ................. _--
353,163,048.23 152,969,212.85 200,193,835.38-_ .. _---- ......... _--- . _-._ .. _----- ....... .......... -- .. _--_ .. __ ..

13,6315.65 13,638.65
123,851,674.19 65,752,056.70 58,099,617.49

8,088,099.08 5,708,622.05 2,379,477.03
334,881,600.21 119,996,085.80 214,885,514.41

2,831,781.35 1,290,941.21 1,540,840.14
25,556,751.47 15,303,756.81 10,252,994.66
47,362,720.28 28,905,272.83 18,457,447.45
17,142,215.04 9,564,327.91 7,577,887.13

----------_ ... _-- -----------_ .... -----------.- ... -
559,728,480.27 246,534,701.96 313,193,778.31
--------------- ------------ ... - ... ------- .. _------

'I

R"
H~

_J

I
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STATEMENT VI (continued)

~II

I

Area and country assistance

Approved programmes
unspent balances
at 1 January 1990

New
progranrnes

Total
progranrnes

Total
eXpendi tures

Approved programmes
l.nSpent balanc'!s

as at 31 December 1991

MIDDLE EAST AND NORTH AFRICA

Algeria 184,502.98 4,027,000.00 4,211,502.98 878,602.35 3,332,900.63
Bahrain 50,673.56 50,673.56 50,673.56
Djibouti 1,558,805.13 1,993,337.61 3,552,142.74 2,282,021.27 1,270,121.47
Egypt 19,983,588.49 851,053.52 20,834,642.01 8,061,120.53 12,m,521.48
Iran (Islamic Republic of) 1,250,054.15 10,488,553.36 11,738,607.51 7,971,067.28 3,767,540.23
Iraq 1,882,797.97 38,524,778.96 40,407,576.93 25,099,285.72 15,308,291.21
Jordan 62,272.77 10,551,399.81 10,613,672.58 7,040,632.67 3,573,039.91
Kuwait 99,221.00 99,221.00 19,884.33 79,336.67
Lebanon 2,972,031.22 5,144,105.20 8,1 16, 136.4~ 6,821,122.66 1,295,013.76
Lebanon rehabilitation 425,976.25 (425,917.75) 58.50 58.50
Morocco 2,718,846.27 2,960,597.45 5,679,443.72 5,171,843.78 507,599.94
Oman 263,935.89 4,151,053.24 4,414,989.13 993,656.59 3,421,332.54
Palestinian children and mothers 972,314.86 3,436,388.21 4,408,703.07 3,221,093.46 1,187,609.61
Saudi Arabia 72,552.28 (53,145.52) 19,406.76 19,'06.76
Sudan 19,095,249.52 78,180,418.51 97,275,668.03 51,501,590.74 45,774,077.29
Syrian Arab Republic 638,893.37 3,169,869.92 3,808,763.29 1,843,075 .20 1,965,688.09
Tunisia 549,338.00 4,759,930.13 5,309,268.13 1,311,325.23 3,997,942.90
Turke'f 1,186,779.21 16,611,555.81 17,798,335.02 5,306,900.68 12,491,434.34

I Yemen 8,407,798.16 5,679,344.96 14,087,143.12 6,892,843.93 7,194,299.19
01 Regional 128,985.71 53,145.52 182,131.23 B2,593.59 49,537.64
0 .. _---_ ... --_ .... _-- .... oo ........ - .. ---_ ... --- -----_ ... _---_ .. _... --------------- --------_ .. _----I

Area total 62,405,395.79 190,202,689.94 252,608,085.73 134,618,798.83 117,989,286.90
--------------- ------- .. -.. ------ -----------_ ...... ...-_._---------- ----_ ... _--------

EUROPE

Albania 908,915.38 908,915.38 281,914.94 627,000.44
Sulgaria 50,000.00 50,000.00 2,048.40 47,951.60
Romania 4,185,699.87 4,185,699.87 2,690,034.64 1,495,665.23
Union of Soviet Socialist Republics JV 336,570.43 336,570.43 293,097.33 43,413.10
yugoslavia ~,337,985.44 1,337,985.44 1,337,985.44

-._-----.------ -.. -------------- ----------- .. --. ---------- .. ---- ---------------
Area total 6,819,171.12 6,819,171.12 3,267,095.31 3,552,075.81

---_ .. _.. -------- • ___________ m .. __

-_ .. ----------- --------------- ---_ .. _-- .. -.. ----
THE AMERICAS AND THE CARIBBEAN

Argentina 1,000,299.72 4,598,822.29 5,599,122.01 2,237,212.12 3,361,909.89
Bel ize 97,495.94 218,347.65 315,843.59 192,384.10 123,459.49
Bolivia 5,944,889.12 8,560,156.79 14,505,045.91 9,108,603.40 5,396,442.51
Brazil 4,899,286.07 14,327,953.77 19,227,239.84 10,137,285.34 9,089,954.50
Chile 410,306.04 3,949,400.00 4,359,706.04 1,312,452.99 3,047,253.05
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STATEMENT 'It (continued)

Area and r.ountry assistarce

Approved pfogralmJes
unspent balallct>s
at , January 199Q

New
prografTlTles

Toeal
prograrrmes

Total
eXpP.rx:Jitures

Approved pr0grarmteS
unspent ba:ances

as at· 31 Dec~r 1991

I
(J1

f-'
I

Colcnbia
Costa Rica
cuba
Dominica
Dominican Republic
Ecuador
El. Salvador
G:.Jatemala
Guyana
Hiliti
Honduras
JmM i ca
Mexico
Nicaragua
PanaIM
Paraguay
Peru
Saint Luc.ia
Uruguay
VCile!u~la

Regional

Arf:~:J tctal

GLOBAL ASSISTANCE

Food and nutritio;"l ::;urvei l lance
Regl0nal ~omen's projects
Project preparation ard training
Emerqency Reserve Fund RI
Syriim Eme,"r;ency Oppr"tion
Tr-ail"ing of Ccnm.Jnic3tors for

chi id survivc:l and de'/elopnent
Parliamentarians and the media
Int~rnat'onal Child Development

Centre

5,331,903. '13 2,090,906.66 7,422,815.59 5,073,795.27 7.,3t.9,020.32
334,000.12 8,439.92 342,500.04 330,266.88 12,233.16

700,000.00 700,000.00 686,263.48 13,736.52
7,589.75 7,5S9.75 7,589.75

1, 020,66: .07 995,257.06 2,015,9i8.13 1,890,293.74 i16,624.39
295,754.64 5,t.43,364.65 5 , 739, , 19.29 4,108,453.57 1,630,665.72

2,169,033.32 i , 730, 977•Ol... 3,900,010.36 3,356,303.23 543,707.13
j ,871 ,627.60 3,315,111.53 ~ , 192, 739. 13 4,393,479.67 799,259.46

388,143.71 1,480,000.00 1,868,143.71 1,047,876.64 820,267.07
2.480,3i8.91 9,443,021.51 1~,923,340.42 4,753,071.39 7,170,269.03
1,bt.0,8a.62 4,525,199.15 6.166,026.77 3,196,O7?45 2, 969 , 947.32

769,111.02 2,302, 134 .03 3,071,245.05 1,768,955.54 1,302, 2B'}. 51
2,074,426.61 il,468,829.44 13,543,256.05 7,465,097.35 6.078,158.70
3,ln,909.27 4,503,258.38 7,696,167.65 6,208,',116.05 1,487,251.60

16,52Q.17 (15,155,7M 1,373.41 1,373.41
1,363,532.53 852,088.04 2,215,620.57 1,594,571.14 621,049.43
5. 706,622.03 4,787,779.01 10,494,401.04 9.256,538.7.7 1,237 ,862.77

10,244.14 10,244.14 10,244.14
?{/i , 936.4";, 269,936.45 708,890.59 61,045.86

3,750,000.00 3,750,000.00 Tt?, 15~.90 3.022,846.10
22,305,993.88 44,422,406.35 06.728,400.23 25,345,927.12 41,3B2,4'i3.11

w __ ._. _______ ._ ---------------- -- .. ----------- .. _------------- -------_ .. _-----
63,607,507.66 133,458,29;'. ')1 197,065,805. 17 104,410,244.64 92,655,5~(\ 53

-_._--- ---._.- ----~._-----_.-- -._- .. -------- ------._------- -- .... ---_.-----

';,688,346.91 8511,803.81 5,53Y,150.72 2,451,920.31 3,087,229.91
139,23;;.93 i39,232.93 69,930.95 69,3U1.98

31 ,5/,4,69':: . Of, 33,069,BOe.50 64 ,614,503.56 33,676,601.05 30,Q37,902.5i
1,301,847. on 10,698,732.88 12,000,579.88 8,346,804.20 3,653,775.68

18,47:>,000.00 18,475, (MO .00 18,475,000.00

748,5 /.4.74 (166,132.54) 582,412.20 (M., 219.98) c26,632.18
92,653.~5 92,653.45 ;12,653.45

6,053,509.00 B,87'5,550.36 14,929,059.36 7,832.696.43 7,096,362.93

.. ~;;j
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STATEMENT VI (concl~~)

Area and country assistanc~

Approved prO£lrllllllll!S
WlSpent ba Iancl!S
at 1 January 1990

New
progr8llllles

Total
progranmes

Total
expenditures

ApprovP.d progrllllllll!S
WlSpent balances

as at 31 Decenb!r 1991

fIr:

I
(J1
l\J
I

Global communication 2,030,000.00 2,030,000.00 286,032.09 1,743,967.91
Child survival and development 66,528,789.12 1(12,235,883.55 168,764,672.67 81,963,590.04 86,801,082.63
WHO/UNICEF joint nutrition 13,168,791.18 (1,992,378.67) 11,176,412.51 7,051,474.41 4,124,938.10
Essential drugs for primary

health care in Africa 6,412,693.83 (49,853.30) 6,362,840.53 1,768,967.45 4,593,873.08
-- ..... ---------- --_ .. _---------.- .. _.. _---.--------. -_ .. _... --~._------ ------ .. --------

Total global assistance 130,679,103.22 174,027,414.59 304,706,517.81 143,403,797.45 161,302,720.36
--_ ........ _------- --_ .. _.. -....... _..... _-- ----------------- ---_ .. -.. _------- .... -- .. _---------

TOTAL PROGRAMME ASSISTANCE 927,923,101.79 1,493,194,470.74 2,421,117,572.53 1,175,421,703.33 1,245,695,869.20.... -... --- ........... - --_._---------.- -----------~----- -- ... ---------- ---_ ... _---- .. _.. -.
Programme support services 163,681,027.00 217,175,400.93 380,856,427.93 177,169,233.98 203,687,193.95

Administrative services 138,313,488.00 192,065,410.91 330,378,898.91 143,111,785.86 187,267,113.05

Recovery from packing and
assembly activities (10,029,206.55) (10,029,206.55) (10,029,206.55 )

.. ------ ....... ----- --- .. -------- .. ------ ----------------- ..... _------_ ..... _-- ------_ ... _-- .. ---
TOTAL BUDGET 301,994,515.00 399,211,605.29 701,206,120.29 310,251,813.29 390,954,307.00.. _ ... _... _--- ... _- ......... ..._-_ ...... _-_ ..... _----- .. - ----------------- ... -...... _... --_ ............... - ... -........ - .. _---_ .. -- ..
TOTAL ASSiSTANCE 1,229,917,616.79 1,892,406,076.03 3,122,323,692.82 ~,485,673,516.62 1,636,650,176.20

======:========= =============;===== ----------------- ================ ================------------------

JV In a letter dated 24 December 1991, the Presiaent of the Russian Federation informed the Secretary-r.eneral
that the membership of the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics in all United Nations organs was being continued
by the Russian Federation with the support of the 11 member countries of !he Commonwea~th of Independ~nt States.

jV In 1990, the Executive Director made a total allocation of $4,000,000 from the Emergency Reserve
Fund as follows: $265,000 to the African emergency; $100,000 to Djibouti; $3,734 to the Islamic Republic
of Iran; $1,679,266 to the Sudan; $50,000 to Namibia; $80,000 to the CSte d'lvoire; $100,000 to Guinea;
$580,000 to Liberia; $70,000 for the West Bank/Gaza; $40,000 to the United Republic of Tanzania; 5100,000 to
Madagascar; sao,ooo tu Sierra Leone; $692,000 to Angola and 5160,000 to Yemen.

In 1991, the Executive Director made a total allocation of 16,132,412 from the Emergency Reserve
Fund as follows: $573,100 to the African emergency; 1693,000 to Afghanistan; 5265,000 to Angola; $54,444 to
Albania; $865,332 to Bangladesh; $50,000 to Bolivia; $92,000 to Cameroon; 5250,000 to Chad; 550,000 to
Costa Rica; $35,218 to Equador; 550,779 for the situation between Kuwait and Iraq (Kuwait); 5200,000 to Haiti;
5339,130 to the Islamic Republic of Iran; 593,500 to Kenya; 5111,000 to Malawi; 5175,000 to Mauritania; $25,000
to Mauritius 550,000 to Mozambique; 575,000 to Myanmar; $25,000 to Panama; $438,000 to Peru; 5100,000 to
the Phi~lippines; 5251,000 to Sierra Leone; $685,000 to Somalia; $£JO,OOO to Viet Nam; 5100,000 for the
West Bank/Gaza; 535,909 to Yemen and $250,000 to YugOSlavia.
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STATEMENT VII

Status of approved budget estimates for the biennium ended 31 December 1991

(United States dollars)

Obligations incurred JV

Approved
budget

estimates

Progranme
support
services

Acininistrative
services

Unencumbered
8IIIOU'lts

I
U1
W
I

Budget expenditures

Category 1 - Staff costs
International staff costs
Local staff costs

Category 2 - General operating costs
General operating costs (headquarters)
General operating costs (field)
Capital expenditures (headquarters)
Capital eXpenditures (field)

Category 3 - Packing and ass~~ly costs

Total all categories

~:

Recovery/income from packing/assembly activitiesjbf
All other income
Contributions from assisted Governments towards local

budget costs

Subtotal

Total

102,286,35i.00 53,365,m.49 45,095,066.59 3,825,506.92
91,009,169.00 47,551,400.78 40,181,811.00 3,275,957.22

64,201, '142.00 34,169,891.61 28,874,188.86 1,157,061.53
57,359,216.00 32,276,598.82 27,274,321.53 (2,191,704.35)
2,196,223.00 1,378,810.68 1,165,120.46 (347,708.14)
1,186,250.00 616,882.89 521,2n.42 48,089.69

8,934,249.00 7,809,871. 71 1,124,3n.29
------------_ .. ----_ ... -------- --_ ..... _-_.-_ ... - ---------------
327,172,600.00 1n,169,233.98 143,111,785.86 6,891,580.16
--- .. _-- ... -_ ...... - ... _----- ..... -_ .... - - .. _----------- --_ .. ----------

16,000,000.00 1l,341,749.47 (341,749.47>
7,150,000.00 8,27(.,930.06 1,732,222.53 (2,857,152.59)

1,850,000.00 714,943.81 639,116.44 495,939.7S-----_ .. __ ... _--- .. _-_ ..... ----- ..... - -- .. _---------- ---_ ... -..... --._---
25,000,000.00 25,331,623.34 2,371,338.97 (2,702,962.31)

- .. -- ..... -----.-- _.................... _-_ ..... - --------_ .. _-- ... ...--- ..... _--_ ........ -

302,172,600.00 151,837,610.64 140,740,446.89 9,594,542.47
-------------- -------------- -------------- ===============-------------- -------------- --------------

.i1I Obl igations were incurred as follows: 1991 1990 Total

Programme support services
Administrative services

Total

(statement I)
92,221,667.88
74,459,581.61

166,681,249.49
==============

84,947,566.10
68,652,204.25

153,599,nO.35
==============

1n,169,233.98
143,111,785.86

320,281,019.84
==============

jV Programme support services
Less: Recovery from packing

and assembly activities

Net programme support services (statement I)

92,221,667.88

5,983,838.44

86,237,829.44
==============

84,947,566.10

4,045,368.11

80,902,197.99
==============

1n,169,233.98

10,029,206.55
----------_ .. _.
167,140,027.43
============~=

.' .,jI
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STATEMENT VIII

CAPITAL ASSETS FUND

Statement of assets, liabilities and fund balance as at 31 December 1991

1989

181,038.70
394,847.05

1,812,847.63
247,397.31
186,036.90
268,276.56
32,142.85

1991

542,774.26
394,847.05

1,812,847.63
247,397.31
186,036.90
268,276.56
32,142.85

351,537.05
1,658,465.98

44,337.95

19,627,969.54

(United States dollars)

Dar es Sala8ll1
Harare
New Delhi
IoIi8ll1ey

Port-au·Prince
Sans'a
Santiago
Accra
Bogota
Bamako

Office buildings

Cash holdings

ASSETS

Subtotal 5,538,663.54 3,122,587.00

UNICEF housing

Lagos
Harare
K~la

Jakarta
Brasilia
Juba
Winc:lhoek
BujU1b.lra

65,205.61
212,106.46
250,000.00

146,476.57
21,617.96

374,099.14
240,000.00

65,205.61
212,106.46
250,000.00
226,407.23
146,476.57
21,617.96

247,397.31

Subtotal 1,309,505.74 1,169,211.14

TOTAL ASSETS 26,476,138.82
=========-======

4,291,798.14
===~===========

LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCE

From regular budget appropriations:
Prior periods
Prior period adjustment
Current period

Current per iod income
Transfer from general resources

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

4,291,798.14
126,701.83

57,638.85
22,000,000.00

26,476,138.82
===============

4,044,400.83

247,397.31

4,291,798.14
===============
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NQtes tQ the financial statements

.IncQme and expenditures

1. TQtal income frQm cQntributiQns fQr the uienniurn ended 31 December 1991
was $1,429,263,803, an increase Qf $229,576,258 cQmpared tQ the 1988-1989
bienniurn. TQtal incQme frQm cQntributiQns fQr the years ended
31 December 1990 and 31 December 1991 were $705,948,368 and $723,315,435,
respectively.

2. CQntributiQns fQr the bienni\~ ended 31 December 1991 cQnsisted Qf
$839,293,794 fQr general reSQurces and $589,970,009 fQr supplementary fu~ds.

CQntributiQns fQr 1991 cQnsisted Qf $415,140,750 fQr general reSQurces and
$308,174,685 fQr supplementary funds. CQntributiQns fQr 1990 CQnsisted Qf
$424,153,044 fQr general resources and $281,795,32~ fQr supplementary funds.

3. Net incQme frQm the Greeting Card and related QperatiQns for the bienniurn
ended 31 December 1991 was $159,384,247. The net incQme fQr 1991 was
$69,640,719, while that fQr 1990 was $89,7~3,528.

4. The amQunt Qf $8,034,665 shQwn on statement r includes the write-Qff and
adjustment Qf pledges fQr the bienniurn ended 31 December 1991 tQtalling
$7,495,312. Adjustments fQr write-Qffs Qf Qther assets and lQsses amQunted tQ
$539,353. The writ -Qff and adjustment Qf pledges cQnsist of:

)0
General

reSQureu
S~pplementary

tunds

(Jnited States dQllars)

)1
(a) Balance Qf supplementary.6

)0 funds cancelled by dQnQrs

~3

j7 (b) Balance Qf supplementa.ry
~6 funds cancelled Qn
51 cQmpletiQn Qf prQject

(c) Unpaid pledges
14

14
(d) Transfer Qf funds tQ

:== Special ACCQunts

Total write-Qffs and
adjustments

2 139 070

2 139 070

1 670 040

2 693 168

470 705

522 329

5 356 242

1 670 040

2 693 168

2 609 775

522 329

7 495 312

13

14
:=:

fl

5. IncQme frQm miscellaneQus SQurces fQr the bienniurn ended 31 December 1991
was $74,901,936 (schedule 2). It cQnsisted mainly Qf $48,176,172 in interest
Qn funds held in interest-bearing depQsits and in current accounts with banks,
and $6,312,543 incQme frQm packing and assembly activities. These include the
excess of the 6 per cent freight recovery over actual inward freight for
procurement services, sales and the operations of the L~ICEF Supply Division
warehouse at Copenhagen.
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6. The actual expenditures for packing and assembly activities are reported
as programme support services costs in statement VII. The 10 per cent
surcharge on UNICEF programmes to cover programme support services costs for
packing and assembly, which amounted to $10,029,207 in 1990-1991, is offset
against total programme support costs, as reported in statement I and noted in
statement VII.

7. Supplies shipped by the Supply Division warehouse at Copenhagen in
1990-1991 were valued at $85,838,445, which include an operational surcharge
of 10 per cent to recover packing and warehousing costs (E/ICEF/1985/AB/L.1,
para. 285) and a freight charge of 6 per cent. The surcharge is recorded
separately in the accounts of UNICEF and reported as a reduction against
programme support servic· costs. Of the total supplied shipped during the
year, 68 per cent went as input to UNICEF country programmes and 32 per cent
were delivered on a reimbursable basis on behalf of Governments, other
agencies in the United Nations system and non-governmental organizations.

Assets, liabilities and fund balances

8. Changes in the value of the United States dollar (the accounting unit) in
relation to other currencies in which assets and liabilities were held
resulted in a net decrease of $35,731,811 in the accounting value of these
assets and liabilities during the biennium ended 31 December 1991.

9. As at 31 December 1991 cash totalled $403,264,004 (statement 11).
Included in this amount is $47,121,374 held on behalf of donors, mainly for
procurement of goods and services on a reimbursable basis. Cash details are
given in schedule 3.

10. The application of the 1 January 1992 United Nations exchange rate to the
balance of the call, investment and current bank accounts would have resulted
in a revaluation increase in the cash holdings to the amount of $4,679,591.

11. Contributions receivable for current and prior years totalled
$288,926,067 as at 31 December 1991. Included in contributions receivable are
$263,361,612 for supplementary funds, the payment of which is normally related
to the progress in implementing specific projects and occurs in accordance
with payment schedules agreed upon with donors. Details and ageing are given
in schedules 4 and 5, respectively.

12. The 1990-1991 biennium-end balances of cash and receivables include
Russian roubl~s which have been significantly devalued between December 1991,
when the exchange rate was 1.75 roubles to US$ 1, and March 1992 when the
exchange rate is 100 roubles to US$ 1. The impact of this March 1992
devaluation on the balance sheet accounts is shown below.

13.
31
yea
Det

14.
31
Car
acc

15.
$40
Sup
Det

16.
con
cos
dep
sig
pol
adm
not

Rouble
balances

31 December 1991

United States
dollar

equivalent
31 December 1991

United States
dollar

equivalent
March 1992

Devaluation
impact

(United States
dollars)

Cash 32 219 947.4 18 411 398.54 322 199.47 (18 089 199.07)
Receivables 15 000 000.0 8 571 428.57 150 000.00 ( 8 421 428.57)

Total 47 219 9il.d 26 982 827.11 472 199.47 (26 510 627.64)
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13. Contributions pledged and received in advance totalled $143,819,947 as at
31 December 1991. These contributions will be recorded as income in following
years in accordance with the conditions specified in the relevant pledge.
Details are given in schedule 8.

14. The aggregate of accounts receivable, advances and deposits as of
31 December 1991 totalled $156,969,435, including the accounts of the Greeting
Card Operation, which total $101,360,574 (see the summary of significant
accounting policies, paras. 10-13). Details are given in schedule 6.

15. The aggregate value of inventory as at 31 December 1991 totalled
$40,505,223, consisting mainly of programme supplies in stock at the UNICEF
Supply Division warehouse at Copenhagen and Greeting Card Operation stock.
Details are given in schedule 7.

16. Capital assets reflected in the financial statements of 31 December 1991
consist of office buildings and staff housing presented at their acquisition
cost, as well as Greeting Card Operation machinery ar'd equipment that is
depreciated over the estimated useful life of these assets (see the Summary of
significant accounting policies, paras. 20-22 for UNICEF capital assets
policies). Computer equipment acquired in 1991 has been charged against the
administrative budget, a procedure consistently applied since 1986, and are
not reflected in the statements.
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SCHEDULES TO lHE fINANCIAL STATEMENT~

SCIIEOUlE 1

Contr!butio~s received o!_~~iged for the bienn~um ended 31 Oec~Rber 1991

,United States dollars)

l
!
!

General resources S~ppl~nentary fu~s

Donar cOIJntry

GQv'."rtllOCnts
and inter'

gU'Ier'rfllerota l
ageticies

Non­
q<Jverrrnt:nral.

~ources SlJbtc>t~l

GoverrliKmts
and inter­

governmental
"gene i e:;

lIon'
gove r M1ental

sources

Uni tet::
Hatier,s
system Subtotal Total

&!lH'Z"

----._--- .. _----- -----------_._. ----------------_._-_ .. --------._------------_._------------------_ .. _--------------------- .---------_ .. ------------------------------
Afghanistan 70,000.00 fO,COO.ao 70,000.00
Albania 400.00 400.')0 400.00
Algeria 60,254.99 60,25/,.99 60,254.99
;''''90la 15.000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00
.,rgentina 22,~;242. CO 2U,242.00 l22,242.00
Austral ia 5,626,153.e5 7, iB.4f. 5,{,53,267.29 13.819,453.12 1,925,47.3.50 15,71,4,886.62 21,378,153.91
Austria 3,4i3,547.19 ·06,746.58 3,820,293.7; 48,557.24 1,054,225.55 1, 102, 78~.39 4,923,On.i6
Bahamas 1,400.00 1,l,00.00 1,400.00
Bangladesh 18,980.00 13,Q80.00 18,980.00
Barbados 4,000.0(. 500.00 4,"i00.00 4,500.0U

I
Belarus 1,236,039.1H 1.230,039.83 1,236,039.83

Vi Belgiur 4,~69.65a.12 2,431,267.43 0,800,925.5,) 529,860.13 763,O2~.40 1,292,882.53 8,O'i3,808.08
CJ) aelize S,OOD.OO 5,OOO.CO 5,000.00
I Benin 6,000.Oii 6,000.00 6,000.00

RHptan 12,763.30 12,763.80 12,763.80
dol i-"16 35,000.00 35,000.00 35,000.00
Bot.;;tani1 29,480.00 29,480.00 29,480.00
Brazil 164.28 164.28 2,064,589.24 2,064,589.24 2,064,753.52
6r;:i~h V;rgin Islands 310.00 310.00 ::;10.00
fin,ne' [larul:salam 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00
BI~i9aria 32,540.59 32,540.59 32,540.59
8u;,!dna Fa~o 3,7i?.03 3,712.03 3,712.03
[;u('ul"'odi 10.611.74 10,611.74 10,611.74
Cam-?roo'1 115; 7B5. 7B 115,785.73 115,785.78
Canada 29. 892, 097. 48 1,091.26 29,893,188.74 48,319,58-!:.67 22,528,663.10 70,848,249.n 100,741,438.51
L:are Verd,~ 965.19 965.19 965.19
Central A'fl'ican Republ ic 5,357.14 5,357.14 489,034.08 489,034.08 494,391.22
Chad 7,326.01 7,326.01 7,326.01
Chi le 145,929.41 145,929.41 50,000.00 50,000.00 195,929.41
,:hinll 1,320,000.00 750.00 , ,320, ?'SO.OO 1,320,750.00
CclCllbia 904,055.45 904,055.4:' 904,055.45
C03ta RIca 10,342.47 10,842.47 10,842.47
Ccte d'i,:/oire 1,064.75 1,064.75 1,064.75
':uba 66,003.92 66,003.92 66,003.92
Cyprus 3,OB3.'33 23,406.2; 26,489.54 26,489.54
C!erhoslovakia 112,103.01 112,103.01 112,103.01
OelHccratic People's Republic

of Korea 46.8"4.84 46,844.84 46,844.84
Der.nark 34,716;825.78.GJ 234/,88.8~ 34,951,314.67 3'1,922,509,16 139,884.62 38,062,393.78 73,(H3,708.45
Dj 1bouti 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00

SCHEDULE 1 (continued)
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SCHEDULE 1 (continued)____________________________ ~ _____________ • _________ • _ ___________________ • __ • __ • __ • _______ • ________ • __ • __ w __ _____ •• __ • ____ • _____________________________ • ____ ~_. __ ___

General resources Supplmentary fl.rlds
Governments Governmentsand inter- Non- and inter- Non- Unitedgovernmental governnental governnental governnental NationsDonor cOU'ltry agencies sources Subtc1:al agencies sources system Slbtotal Total

• __ • _____ • __ • __________ • ______________________________ ___________ ,. ______ • ___ • _______ ~ ___________ u __________ ____________________________ r __ • __ • __________ • ________ ••••

DOIIIinica 2,343.48 2,343.48
2,343.48Ecuador 56,229.05 56,229.05 10,000.00 10,000.00 66,229.05Egypt 44,151.27 1,596.39 45,747.66

45,141.66El Salvador 75,000.00 345.30 75,345.30
75,345.30Ethiopia 98,550.72 80.00 98,630.72
98,630.72Fiji 1,462.05 1,462.05

1,462.05Finland 17,929,518.62 123,084.07 78,052,602.69 8,043,561.09 4,286,383.00 12,329,950.09 90,382,552.78France 13,814,391.34 4,088,784.60 17,903,681.94 1,923,056.31 1,923,056.37 19,826,738.31Germany 21,228,742.52 12,521,243.41 33,749,985.93 11,313,916.42 11,679,539.76 22,993,456.18 56,743,442.11Greece 350,000.00 210,146.55 560,146.55 10,000.00 383,734.21 393,734.21 953,880.16Guatemala 61,939.35 3,533.38 65,472.73
65,472.73Guyana 725.45 725.45

725.45Haiti 5,000.00 113.82 5,113.82 5,259.01 5,259.01 10,372.83Holy See 4,000.00 4,000.00
4,000.00Honduras 27,924.53 27,924.53

21,924.53I
Hong Kong 19,221.59 19,221.59

19,221.59Hl.l"lgary 81,110.20 81,110.20
81,110.20

Ul Iceland 164,949.38 164,949.38
164,949.38

10
i India 2,888,843.91 82,500.00 2,971,343.91 70,000.00 70,000.00 3,041,343.91Indonesia 600,000.00 5,915.66 605,915.66 605,915.66Iran (Islamic Republic of) 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00Iraq 193,548.38 193,548.38 1,016,129.03 1,016,129.03 1,209,617.41Ireland 935,549.70 409,404.82 1,344,954.52 407,845.76 46,875.00 454,720.76 1,799,675.28Israel 100,339.81 100,339.81

100,339.81Italy 84,676,762.14 2,958,461.99 87,635,224.73 9,547,060.57 5,932,076.17 15,479,136.74 103,114,361.47Jamaica 2,428.57 2,428.51
2,428.57Japan 43,660,000.00 6,871,460.41 50,531,460.41 1,301,124.99 21,273,267.89 22,574,392.88 73,105,853.29Jordan 29,940.66 275.00 30,215.66

30,215.66Kenya 25,495.65 25,495.65
25,495.65Kuwait 200,000.00 168.33 200,168.33 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,200,168.33Lao People's Democratic

10,000.00
Replblic 10,000.00 10,000.00Lebanon 5,000.00 5,000.00

5,000.00Lesotho 3,118.02 258.81 3,376.83
3,376.83Liberia 88.10 88.10

88.10Liechtenstein 3,496.50 3,496.50 3,496.50 3,496.50 6,993.00Luxedxlurg 155,885.79 206,059.01 361,944.80 45,147.94 45,147.94 407,092.74Madagascar 4,256.08 4,256.08
4,256.08Malawi 5,852.83 137.93 5,990.76
5,990.76Malaysia 168,330.00 364.47 168,694.47 105,000.00 18,545.46 123,545.46 292,239.93

1-::,"
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SCHEDULE 1 (contirud)

------------------- ...-........-....._.- .._.- ...-._ ......._.- ....-...... - .....-.._.- ••...•... -- ... -._ .... __ ._...._..... - ... -_ ....._..._•..•........ __ ._._-_..........
General resources Suppl-.tary f ....

Goverrlllents Goverrnents
and inter- Non- end inter- Non- United

goverlWefltal goverl'lllental goverlWefltal goverl'lllental Nations
Donor country agencies sources Slbtotal agencies sources systelll Slbtotal Total

---~----~_._--------~----------_._----_._----_.. _- .. ------._---------------------------------------------------------------_._---- .._--_._----_.----_._--------_.-._-
Maldives 8,526.81 8,526.81 8,526.81
Mal i 1,287.44 1,287.44 93,076.92 93,076.92 94,364.36
Malta 7,046.13 7,046.13 7,046.13
Mauritius 10,892.42 304.45 11,196.87 11,196.87
Mexico 145,917.34 2,n2.57 148,639.91 30,816.07 "! ',816.07 179,455.98
Monaco 26,317.10 26,317.10 26,317.10
Mongol ia 5,995.00 5,995.00 5,995.00
Morocco 140,000.00 140,000.00 140,000.00
Mozantlique 100.00 100.00 100.00
Myarwnar 503,733.16 38.34 503,n1.50 503,n1.50
Netherlands 35,344,551.63 2,507,467.62 37,852,019.25 24,958,095.04 27,808,819.00 52,766,914.04 90,61~,933.29

New Zealand 1,020,305.48 13,306.63 1,033,612.11 236,508.06 144,588.35 381,096.41 1,414,708.52
Nicaragua 11,730.00 11,730.00 11,730.00
Niger 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Nigeria 843,817.20 996.74 844,813.94 3,600,621.03 3,600,621.03 4,445,434.97
Norway n ,031,275.74 56,200.64 n,087,476.38 25,185,961.33 25,185,961.33 102,273,437.71

I OMn 10,000.00 10,000.00 1,212.66 78,025.48 79,238.14 89,238.14
C\ Pakistan 258,718.23 39.78 258,758.01 258,758.01
0 Panama 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00
I Papua New Guinea 106.38 106.38 106.38

Paraguay 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Ph it ippi nes 370,392.03 370,392.03 370,392.03
Poland 51,987.11 51,987.11 51,987.11
Portugal 65,000.00 212,011.20 2n,011.20 422,988.50 422,988.50 699,999.70
Republic of Korea 1,000,000.00 300.25 1,000,300.25 373,630.05 373,630.05 1,373,930.30
Romania 18,174.60 18,174.60 18,174.60
Rwanda 3,958.40 3,958.40 3,958.40
Russian Federation 28,200,082.07 28,782.25 28,228,864.32 28,228,864.32
Saint Kitts and Nevis 1,750.00 1,750.00 1,750.00
Saint Lucia 2,586.08 2,586.08 2,586.08
San Marino 7,116.28 20,000.00 27,116.28 35,829.38 35,829.38 62,945.66
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines 2,250.00 2,250.00 2,250.00
Saudi Arabia 2,000,000.00 93,750.90 2,093,750.90 48,333.33 48,333.33 2,142,084.23
Sierra Leone 4,386.19 4,386.19 4,386.19
Singapore 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
Spain 4,956,694.n 4,956,694.77 49,019.61 15,102,725.42 15,151,745.03 20,108,439.80
Sri Lanka 31,400.00 2,875.53 34,275.53 34,275.53
Sudan 8,000,000.00 8,000,000.00 8,000,000.00
Swaziland 2,713.18 2,713.18 2,713.18
Sweden 113,218,111.34 45,132.40 113,263,243.74 107,325,003.25 33,843.35 107,358,846.60 220,622,090.34
Switzerland 24,626,053.94 10,653,492.89 35,279,546.83 20,312,568.25 5,159,810.91 25,472,379.16 60,751,925.99
Syrian Arab Republic 35,714.29 100.00 35,814.29 35,814.29

I
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SCHEDULE 1 (continued)

General resources Supplementary funds

Donor country

Governments
and inter­

governmental
agencies

Non­
governmental

sources Subtotal

Governments
and inter­

governmental
agencies

Non­
governmental

sources

United
Nations
system Subtotal Total

11

Thai land 549,423.27 269.58 549,692.85 549,692.85
Toga 7,751.94 7,751.94 7,751.94
Trinidad and Tobago 8,779.63 8,n9.63 8,779.63
Tunisia 144,552.15 144,552.15 144,552.15
Turkey 102,181.82 1,212.21 103,394.03 30,000.00 30,000.00 133,394.03
Uganda 1,483.48 1,483.48 1,483.48
Ukraine 1,417,956.71 1,417,956.71 1,417,956.71
United Arab Emirates 100,000.00 7,984.45 107,984.45 235,599.58 235,599.58 343,584.03
United Kingdom of Great 0.00

Britain and Northern Ireland 30,713,078.26 240,264.76 30,953,343.02 6,691,332.85 8,987,399.90 15,678,732.75 46,632,075.n
United Republic of Tanzania 10,743.04 200.00 10,943.04 10,943.04
United States of America 140,400,000.00 326,623.46 140,726,623.46 30,601,973.76 54,005,117.04 84,607,090.80 225,333,714.26
Uruguay 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00
V!!f1ezue la 342,035.36 342,035.36 342,035.36
Viet Nam 17,000.00 17,000.00 17,000.00
Yemen 30,567.67 30,567.67 30,567,.67

I Yugoslavia 250,000.00 2,234.45 252,234.45 4,081.63 4,081.63 256,316.08
C\ Zaire 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00I-'
I zaneia 6,515.78 6,515.78 6,515.78

Zimbabwe 26,584.43 252.35 26,836.78 26,836.78
Miscellaneous 46,407.83 46,407.83 95,603.87 95,603.87 142,011.70.. -- .. _.. __ .. _---- ... ---- .. -- .. _......... _- ... __ .-- ... -- .... -........ .._ ...... --.--~ ... -- ........... -....... -_ ... _-_ ... -..... _.. _.. _... _-_ ... __ .... _... _-- .... -.... _- ..... _.. _-_ ........ _-_ ..... _-

Subtotal 794,439,778.20 44,854,015.24 839,293,793.44 362,112,524.12 186,667,969.83 0.00 548,780,493.95 1,388,074,287.39.. __ ... _--.-- ... _--- --------------- .... _---_ .... -... --- .. ..._-_ ... _---- .... _-- -_ .... _..... _- ... _-_ ........ _..... -....... _--- ..... -.............. -....... _- .. _--_ ... _--_ ...... _... --
INTERGOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS

0.00
AGFUND 37,000.00 37,000.00 37,000.00
EEC 19,832,722.99 19,8!2,722.99 19,832,722.99
OPEC FInf 0.00

0.00------ ... _... -_ ... --- _...... __ ............ _-- ........ _.. -- ....... _.......... .. ......... -........... -- .. - ... __ ........ -........ ---_ ......-.. _-_ .. _-_ ....... _.............. _... --_ ...... _... -...... -... _----------
Subtotal 19,869,722.99 19,869,722.99 19,869,722.99----_ .. _- ....... __ ... - _......... -............ _... _.. _...... _.... --_ ..... _...... --_ ........ _....... _... _- -_ ........ __ ..... __ .................. __ .............. -... _....... _------_ .. _.. -- ... -.. _----_ ... _-- ...

.~~
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SCHEDULE 1 (concluded)

General resources Supplementary funds

,-,-sJII

I

Donor cOU'ltry

UNITED NATIONS SYSTEM

Governments
and inter­

governmental
agencies

Non­
governmental

sources Subtotal

Governments
and inter­

governmental
agencies

Non­
governmental

sources

United
Nations
system Subtotal Total

794,439, n8.20 .RI 44,854,015.24 839,293,793.44

PAHO, Washington
United Natiofls Secretariat
UNCDF, New York
UNDP, New York
UNDRO, Geneva
UNFPA, New York
UNHCR, Geneva

Sl.btotal

Grand total

I
01
N SUMMARY
I

Governments and inter­
governmental agencies

Non-governmental sources
United Nations system

TOTAL

:;:=============

1,176,422,025.31
231,521,985.07
21,319,792.31

1,429,263,802.69
=================

============= ================

30,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00
4,926,962.23 4,926,962.23 4,926,962.23
2,320,754.00 2,320,754.00 2,320,754.00
1,691,120.00 1,691,120.00 1,691,120.00
7,428,432.00 7,428,432.JO 7,428,432.00
4,073,424.08 4,073,424.08 4,073,424.08

849,100.00 849,100.00 849,100.00........ _......... _-- ..... _... _- ... -....... ---- .... _---_ .............. --------_ .. _--- .. _.. _----------
21,319,792.31 21,319,792.31 21,319,792.31

--_ ...... _- .. _----- --- .. _---_ .. -.. _.. ------------- -.. __ .. _----- .. -.. .. ----------_ ..-
381,982,247.11 186,667,969.83 21,319,792.31 589,970,009.25 1,429,263,802.69
============== ============== ============= ============== ================

C!di":;;

JV The Government of Denmark pledged DKr 235 million to UNICEF general resources. Of this amount, DKr 15,947,400 has been recorded to be offset against
administrative expenditures incurred by the UNICEF warehouse facility at Copenhasen.

J2I Includes $1,354,060.25 contributed towards local budget costs.
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SCHEDULE 2

Other income for the biemiun ended 31 Decemer 1991

(United States dollars)

INCOME RELATED TO THE BUDGET EXPENCITURESJV

Income from packing and assembly activitiesJel
Services to Greeting Card and related operations
Adjustments of accounts payable related to prior year's budg~t

Agency commissions and reimbursement for services
Income from sale of films, books and other information materials
Income from sale of surplus andobsolete administrative property
Miscellaneous

Subtotal

INCOME RELATED TO PROGRAMME OPERATIONS

Shipping and insurance claims received
Income from sale of surplus and programme property

Subtotal

INCOME RELATED TO FINANCIAL OPERATIONS

Interest on current bank accounts and short-term investments
Cash discounts
Gains (losses) on foreign exchange transactions
Miscellaneous

Subtotal

Less: Losses written off

Total

1990-1991

6,312,542.92

7,276,655.45
944,963.23
15,431.46

1,000,088.74
nO,013.71

16,319,695.51

22,750.17
265,475.51

288,225.68

48,176,172.48
1,035,665.17
6,852,994.83
2,229,182.07

58,294,014.55

74,901,935.74
================

1988-1989

6,490,284.83
230,000.00

4,644,048.38
1,104,744.69

26,805.78
488,486.01
655,597.39

57,509.76
338,079.71

395,589.47

46,537,618.43
524,265.57

8,615,645.58
4,361,139.84

60,038,669.42

1,888,355.46

72,185,870.51
==-============-

~ Government contributions towards local budget costs totalled 51,354,060.25 in 1991.
These are government contributions to UNICEF general resources (schedul~ 1) and are
shown separately in statement VII.

RI Income from packing and assembly activities does not include the 10 per cent
operational surcharge for UNICEF programme expenditures. On statement VII, however,
to present the status of approved estimates, the recovery from these activities is shown
inclusive of the 10 per cent surcharge.

-63-
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SCHEDULE 3

Cash holdingS as at 31 December 1991

(United States doLlar equivalent)

Time remaining to maturity

.:1

•

IN CURRENT ACCOUNTS, CASH ON HAND
AHD IN TRANSIT

Convertible currencies
Non-convertible currencies

Subtotal

AT CALL ACCOUNTS AND TIME DEPOSITS

At
sight

6,834,889.11
24,862,922.86

31,697,811.97

2-7 8~lO- 31-90 ---OVer 90
days days days days TotaL

6,834,889.11
24,862,922.86

31,697,811.97

757,575.76 2,575,757.58
1,399,705.19 2,857,561.57
2,812,500.00 6,875,000.00
1,326,On.76 1,410,256.41

232,558.14 906,976.74
1,834,862.38 6,788,990.83

1,250,000.00 3,250,000.00
8,625,954.21 6,984,732.82

2,666,666.67
317,460.32 1,269,841.27

3,008,849.56 2,300,884.95

1,016,949.15 338,983.05
1,398,601.40 3,846,153.85

48,000,000.00 130,046,875.00

I
0\
o!l"
I

Belgian francs
Canadian dollars
Deutsche mark
European currency units
Finnish markkaa
French francs
Greek drachmas
I r i sh pounds
ItaLian lire
Japanese yen
Netherlands guilders
Norwegian kroner
Portugese escudos
Pounds sterLing
Spani sh pesetas
Swedish kronor
Swiss francs
United States dolLars
Other convertible currencies
Non-convertible currencies

SubtotaL

494,407.18
948,581.92

3,074,736.48
65,152.13

155,000.28
3,823,283.36

178.38
1,630,654.31
1,544,580.74
1,885,238.55
5,028,512.41

5,305.51
1,712,006.86

1,417.55
855,122.16

1,613,882.58
10,475,903.55
1,754,446.02

458,765.58------ ... -... --_ ... _-
35,527,175.55

454,545.45

641,025.64
232,558.14

1,834,862.38

833,333.33
1,450,381.68

555,555.56
158,730.16

1,398,601.40
22,000,000.00

29,559,593.74 71,981,093.87 172,118,680.74

4,282,285.97
5,205,848.68

5,312,500.00 18,074,736.48
3,442,511.94
1,527,093.30

2,752,293.58 17,034,292.53
0.00

178.38
6,963,987.64

18,605,649.45
5,107,460.78

158,730.16 6,933,274.32
5,305.51

7,021,741.37
1,417.55

2,211,054.36
8,257,239.23

54,156,124.64 264,678,903.19
1,754,446.02

458,765.58
--------------- ---------------
62,379,648.38 371,566,192.28

=============== ============== ===============
62,379,648.38 403,264,004.25

8::'

TotaL

SUMMARY

ConvertibLe currencies
Non-convertibLe currencies

67,224,987.52 29,559,593.74 71,981,093.87 172,118,680.74
------------------------------ =============== ===============

3n,942,315.81
25,321,688.44

403,264,004.25
===============
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SCHEDULE 4

ontributions receivable for general resources and s
as at 51 December

(United States dollars>

General resources

fl61ds. current and

Supplementary fl61ds

Donor country

Governments
and inter­

governmental
agencies

Non­
goverrlllellta l

sources Subtotal

Governments
and inter­

governmental
agencies

Non­
governmental

sources Subtotal Total

GOVERNMENTS

Afghanistan 75,000.00 75,000.00
Albania 400.00 400.00
Algeria 8,000.00 8,000.00
Australia
Bangladesh 9,500.00 9,500.00
BeLarus 621,142.86 621,142.86
Benin 3,000.00 3,000.00
Bhutan 5,775.00 5,775.00
BuLgaria 4,371.58 4,371.58
Burkina Faso 4,930.40 4,930.40
Canada

I Central African RepubLic
01 Chad 7,326.01 7,326.01U1
I Chile 150,000.00 150,000.00

COlIIOros 3,000.00 3,000.00
Cyprus 1,000.00 1,000.00
Dennark
Dj ibouti 3,000.00 3,000.00
Ecuador
Egypt 40,567.56 40,567.56
El Salvador 25,000.00 25,000.00
Fiji 1,426.37 1,426.37
FinLand 892.86 892.86
France 1,284,403.68 1,284,403.68
Germany
GuatemaLa 90,000.00 90,000.00
Guyana 157.26 157.26
Indonesia 300,000.00 300,000.00
Iran (IsLamic Republic of) 50,000.00 50,000.00
Italy
Ita ly - expanded progrSllllle

on illIIU'Ii zat ion
Kenya 37,571.92 37,571.92
Kuwait 400,000.00 400,000.00
Lao People's Democratic Republic 10,000.00 10,000.00
Lebanon 5,000.00 5,000.00
Lesotho 1,907.02 1,907.02
Liberia 5,000.00 5,000.00
Liechtenstein 3,496.50 3,496.50
Luxelllbourg 75,757.58 75,757.58
Madagascar 3,684.35 3,684.35
Malawi 3,717.47 3,717.47

2,941,029.81

21,n6,452.33
423,121.04

2,795,702.00

10,000.00

8,444.21
440,366.97
566,624.38

22,854,351.67
20,945,582.00

3,496.50

2,941,029.81

21,n6,452.33
423,121.04

2,795,702.00

10,000.00

8,444.21
440,366.97
566,624.38

22,854,351.67
20,945,582.00

3,496.50

75,000.00
400.00

8,000.00
2,941,029.81

9,500.00
621,142.86

3,000.00
5,775.00
4,371.58
4,930.40

21,n6,452.33
423,121.04

7,326.01
150,000.00

3,000.00
1,000.00

2,795,702.00
3,000.00

10,000.00
40,567.56
25,000.00
1,426.37
9,337.07

1,724, nO.65
566,624.38
90,000.00

157.26
300,000.00
50,000.00

22,854,351.67
20,945,582.00

37,571.92
400,000.00

10,000.00
5,000.00
1,907.02
5,000.00
6,993.00

75,757.58
3,684.35
3,717.47

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



lIMl8Wl 3,717.47 3,717.47 3,717.47

ll·

SCHEDULE 4 (continued)

General resources supplementary funds

~

Donor COll'lt ry

Goverl'Yllents
and inter­

goverl'Yllental
agencies

Non­
governmental

sources Subtotal

Goverl'Yllents
and inter­

governmental
agencies

Non­
goverl'Yllental

sources Subtotat Total

--

Mali 93,076.92 93,076.92 9'5,076.92
Morocco 140,000.00 140,000.00 63,792.42 63,792.42 203,792.42
Netl'terlands 6,832,042.02 6,832,042.02 6,832,042.02
Niger 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Nigeria 176,435.64 176,435.64 29,693.37 29,693.37 206,129.01
Norway 606,n8.92 606,n8.92 606,778.92
Oman 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
Pakistan 40,653.06 40,653.06 40,653.06
Panama 25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00
Paraguay 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Pl'ti l ippines 182,534.44 182,534.44 182,534.44
Republic of Korea 600,000.00 600,000.00 600,000.00
Romania 1,666.66 1,666.66 1,666.66
Russian Federation 7,236,571.43 7,236,571.43 7,236,571.43
Saudi Arabia 1,000,000.00 i,OOO,OOO.OO 1,000,000.00
Senegal 12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00
Singapore 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
Somal i a 78.95 78.95 78.95

I Spain 49,019.61 49,019.61 49,019.610\
0\ Sudan 3,020.13 3,020.13 6,500,000.00 6,500,000.00 6,503,020.13
I sweden 3,389,830.51 3,38C,,830.51 51,843,648.40 51,843,648.40 55,233,478,91

Switzerland 7,091,437.95 7,091,437,95 7,091,437.95
fhai land 193,453.31 193,453.31 193,453,31
Uganda 1,419,65 1,419.65 1,419.65
Ukraine 713,714.29 713,714.29 713,714.29
United Kingdom of Great

Britain and Northern Ireland 442,4n.88 442,4n.88 442,4n.88
United States of America 400,000.00 400,000.00 21,404,,005.56 21,404,005,56 21,804,005.56
Uruguay 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
Viet Nam 17,000.00 17,000.00 17,000.00
Yugoslavia 200,551.69 200,551.69 200,551.69
Zaire 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Zambia 2,925.00 2,925.00 2,925.00
Zinbabwe 9,2n.18 9,272.18 9,272.18

... ------------ -------------- -------------- -------------- -_ ...... --------- --------------- --------------
Subtotal 17,612,155.36 0.00 17,612,155.36 167,n1,143.96 167,T;1,143.96 185,333,299.32

-------------- ..... _......... _------ ........ --------_ .. -----_ ....... _---- -------------- ----.--------- --------------
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES

AGFUND 7,952,300.00 7,952,300.00 3,544,400,00 3,544,400.00 11,496,700.00
EEC 43,700,058.38 43,700,058.38 43,700,058.38
OPEC Fund 118,151.28 118,151.28 118,151.28

-------------- -----------_ .... .. ... -----_ .. _---- -------- ... ----- -------- ... _-- .. -------------- --------------
S~total 7,952,300.00 7,952,300.00 47,362,609.66 47,362,609.66 55,314,909.66

-_ .. _---------- -------------- -------- ..----- -_ ... _---------- -----------_ ..- -------------- --------------
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Stbtotal 7,952,300.00
-----------_.- ..---_.-_ .....

7,952,300.00 47,362,609.66
----_....----- ..------_.....

47,362,609.66 55,314,909.66
---_ --- _---_ .

SCHEDULE 4 (concluded)

General resources Supplementary flr.ds

Donor country

NATIONAL COMMITTEES FOR UNICEF

Goverl'lllents
and inter­

goverl'lllental
agencies

Non­
governmental

sOlJrces Subtotal

Governments
and inter­

governmental
agencies

Non­
governll.ental

sources Subtotal Total

I
01
-.J
I

Canada
Germany
LuxetTbourg
Netherlands

Subtotal

NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS

Canada
Netherlands
Republic of Korea
United States of America

Subtotal

UNITED NATIONS SYSTEM

4,849,872.71 4,849,872.71 4,849,8"'2.71
100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00

3,030.30 3,030.30 3,030.3C
111,111.10 111,111.10 111,111.10

_.. ------_ .... _- --------- .. _--- -------------- ..... _------- ...... .. _--._-----_ .. - -.... --- .... _.. --- ---- .. _--------
5,064,014.11 5,064,014.11 5,064,014.11

--_ .. _--- .. ----- -------------- ---- .. --------. .-- .. _------ .. -- --- ... ---------- ------._-----. ------_.------

3,406,899.56 3,406,899.56 3,406,899.56
173,154.19 173,154.19 173,154.19

4,130.78 4,130.78 4,130.78
30,562,261.47 30,562,261.47 30,562,261.4"

----_ ..... _-_ .. _- .. ---- .. _.. ------- --------_ .. _--- .. ---_ .. _.------ __ .. _<9 .. ____ ..... __
---.---------- -------_ ..... _---

34,146,446.00 34,146,446.00 34,146,446.00
-.. ------------ ------_ .. ------ -------------- ---_ ..... _.. ------ ------- ... _--_ ..... --_ ... -_ .. _-- .. --- .... ------------

United Nations Secretariat
UNCDF, New York
UNDP, New York
UNDRO, Geneva
UNFPA, New York
UNHCR, Geneva
World Bank

Subtotal

TOTAL 25,564,455.36
---------------------------- ==============

25,564,455.36
=====::-:=======
Slm1Iary

827,000.00 827,000.00 827,000.00
1,464,358.86 1,464,358.86 1,464,358.86
2,144,686.09 2,144,686.09 2,144,686.09
1,293,973.10 1,293,973.10 1,293,973.10
2,308,563.57 2,308,563.57 2,308,563.57

896,688.89 896,688.89 896,688.89
132,127.36 132,127.36 132,127.36.......... __ .............. ..._-----_ ....... _...... -------------- .. _.. __ ......... ---- ..

9,067,397.87 9,067,397.87 9,067,397.87
-----_ ...... --- ...... .._-- .......... _--_ ... .. _----_ .. _ .. _--- ..... -... _-_ ...... ---_.
215,083,753.62 48,2n,857.98 263,361,611.60 288,926,066.96
====-========:: ============:= ============== ===:==========

Governments ar~ intergovernmental agencies
National committees for UNICEF
Non-governmental organizations
United ~ations system

Total

240,648,208.98
5,064,014.11

34,146,446.00
9,067,397.87

288,926,066.96
===========:====
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SCHEDULE 5

'sioa of :ontributions receivable
as at 31 DecMber 1991

(United States dollars)

I

GENERAL RESOURCES

Governments and intergovernmen(ol
agencies

SUPPLEMENTARY FUNDS

Prior to
1989

8,426,967.24

1989

580,183.67

1990

1,168,651.75

1991

15,388,652.70

Total

25,564,455.36

I
0\
Cl:l
I

Governments and intergovernmental
agencies

National Committees for UNICEF

Non-governmental sources

United Nations system

Subtotal

45,829,204.88 36,557,000.25 48,312,302.97 84,385,245.52 215,083,753.62

37,521.82 200,393.86 424,547.38 4,401,551.05 5,064,014.11

310,951.92 2,482,705.86 7,875,229.29 23,477,558.93 34,146,446.00

1,709,211.15 495,248.75 815,338.81 6,047,599.16 9,067,397.87........ _---_ .. _--. . ....... _---------- -.. --_ .. _------_. ..... _------_ .. _--- -----------------
47,886,889.77 39,735,348.72 57,427,418.45 118,311,954.66 263,361,611.60

--------------- .- .. _----------- ----- ...... _--_ .. _- ------- .. -----_. -----------------

TOTAL 56,313,857.01 40,315,532.39 58,596,070.20 133,700,607.36 288,926,066.96

iII!i'2

~ :i:
lD-4 < "V

I i 0 ~ ~
I ~ 'A ----"_'----__~

=============== =============== =============== ===:=========== =================

:- I ,
n I •

~lD~ ~ Z ~ ~ ~~ ~~lD~ n I I

~ ~~a a ;" ~ ~ ~~ ~~~~ 2: :
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SCHEDULE 6

Accounts receivable, advances and deposits as at 31 December 1991

(United States dollars)

1991

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

1989

From the United Nations and specialiZed
agencies for suppl ies and advances for
fellowships and other jointly assisted
projects

From non-governmental organizations
for fund-raising campaigns

2,645,806.85 1,726,285.61

National Committ~s for UNICEF

From Governments - other

For shipping and insurance claims

Miscellaneous

From banks - accrued interest

101,360,574.38 83,640,521.35

345,688.21 606,349.82

97,859.61 88,598.36

3,558,213.61 2,687,996.n

2,243,565.90 3,379,467.58

From Governments, United Nations
agencies and other organizations
for special accounts

TOTAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS FOR OFFICE SERVICES

ADVANCES

To suppliers for goods purchased
and freight

GRAND TOTAL

-69-

31,259,485.72

141,511,194.28

14,475,141.42

983,099.54

156,969,435.24

24,746,186.17

116,875,405.61

12,038,744.10

405,484.42

129,319,634.13
================
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SCHEDULE 7

Inventories as at 31 December 1991

(United States dollars)

UNICEF PROGRAMME SUPPLIES

UNICEF Supply Division warehouse, Copenhagen

1991 1989

In stock
In transit

Packing materials

Total stocks in the UNICEF Supply
Division warehouse, Copenhagen, and in transit

STOCKS IN OTHER LOCATIONS

Wi th suppl iers

GREETING CARD AND RELATED OPERATIONS

Raw materials
Products in process
Finished goods

TOTAL INVENTORIES

-70-

29,000,273.32 25,261,414.34
1,889,952.25 927,308.17

---------_ .. _.. - ------_ .. __ .. _-
30,890,225.57 26,188,722.51

248,900.46 200,859.07
-------------- -------------

31,139,126.03 26,389,581.58
ClO

w-_ ...... _-_ .... _--- ------------- ...
::J
Q
W
=U
en

26,296.60 23,727.06
-------------- -------------

4,780,136.49 2,880,369.62
1,532,306.83 1,028,670.66
3,027,357.07 3,930,206.79

-------------- -------------
9,339,800.39 7,839,247.07

--_ .. _--------- -------------
40,505,223.02 34,252,555.71
============= =============
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SCHEDULE 8

Contributions for fOlloWin~arsqgledged/reCeiVed in advance
as at 31 Dec r 1 1

(United States dollars)

GOVERNMENTS AND
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES

Pledged

General _. ---S-upplementary
resources funds

Received in
advance

GeI12rilr------Supprementary
resources funds Total

I
-J....
I

Australia
Colombia
Dennark
Italy
Mal i
Mauritania
Norway
OlIan
Sweden
Switzerland
United States of America
Venezuela

Sl.btotal

NATIONAL COMMITTEES FOR UNICEF

Canada

Sl.btotal

UNITED NATIONS SYSTEM

UNFPA, New York

Sl.btotal

GRAND TOTAL

3,253,968.25 3,253,968.25
16,704.13 16,704.13

14,083,000.00 304,000.00 14,387,000.00
5,833,333.34 5,833,333.34

57,655.67 57,655.67
6,403.25 6,403.25

5,628,317.47 5,628,317.47
50,000.00 50,000.00

48,308,812.34 48,308,812.34
3,975,460.14 3,975,460.14

174,620.00 53,250,000.00 53,424,620.00
235,473.95 235,473.95

--------.-._ .. - -------------- ---.- ... ------- _.. _----------- -----.---_ .. _---
78,061,198.96 56,812,549.58 304,000.00 135,177.748.54

-------------- ---------_ .. --- --------_ .. _.. _- -------------- _______ 0 ______

2,530,701.78 2,530,701.78
--------------- -------------- ------------.- -------------- --------------

2,530,701.78 2,530,701.78
._._---------- ._--.- .. _------ ------_ .. _----- -------_ .. _---- --------------

6,111,496.94 6,111,496.94
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- --------------

6,111,496.94 6,111,496.94
-------------- .... _----------- -------------- -------------- --_ ... -----_ .. _--

86,703,397.68 56,812,549.58 304,000.00 143,819,947.26
-------------- ============== ============== -------------- ---------------------------- -------------- --------------

.'
:8

.....:.:1

I
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SCHEDULE 9

Accounts payable and other unl iguidated obl ipations as at 31 December 1991

(United States dollars)

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

1991 1989

To the United Nations and
specialized agencies

For staff salaries
and related allowances

For supplies and equipment

Greeting Card and related operations

Freight

Miscellaneous

UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS

7,296,481.43 5,927,740.33
1,181,701.25

3,819,229.71 2,825,554.79

1,193,701.95 3,780,989.97

4,173,n4.47 3,524,753.37

Programme budget accounts
For suppl ies and equipment
For' services

Administrative budget accounts

Provision made for amounts
payable to staff members
under the tax equalization plan

TOTAL

31,416,585.63
10,663,015.95

18,859,864.44

n,422,653.58

-72-

13,448,827.66

13,680,316.15

100,000.00

44,469,883.52
=============
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SCHEDULE 10

Procurement services and other services
for the bienni\l1l ended 31 Decen&r 1991

(United States dollars)

SPECIAL ACCOUNTS FOR PROCUREMENT
SERVICES AND OTHER ACTIVITIES

Balance as at
1 January 1990

Funds
received

Funds pledgedl
advanced

Total funds
available Expenditure

Funds
returned

Balance as at
31 December 1991

Goverrfllents

United Nations system

Others

(schedule 10.1)

52,846,891.92 79,256,643.50 5,039,456.33 137,142.991.75 90,624,463.52 4,702,979.32 41,815,548.91

426,792.01 10,919,708.11 2,300,104.75 13,646,604.87 12,482,765.16 106,018.61 1,057,821.10

4,252,384.17 18,941,856.73 1,499,933.85 24,694,174.75 19,458,327.27 1,108,679.85 4,127,167.63
.. - ..... __ .... - ......... .. ... _--_ ... - ....... _-_. ---_ .. --- ... ----- -- ......... _-_ ...... --_ .... ..... __ ............ ------ -_ .. _--_ ... _----- .. .......... __ ........ _-_ .. -
57,526,068.10 109,118,208.34 8,839,494.93 175,483,n1.37 122,565,555.95 5,917,6n.78 47,000,537.64
.. -- ......... _--_ ....... .. .. _-_ ..... _--- .. -_ .. --- ..... -_ .... -.... - .. ------_ .................. - ........... __ ............... _-- ---_ ...... - ... - .. - .. -- .. ........... _....... _-_ ... ---

I
...:a
w
I

WORLD CONFERENCE ON
EDUCATION (schedule 10.2)

WORLD SUMMIT FOR CHILDREN

2,110,781.24 1,248,967.99 3,359,749.23 3,359,749.23

Mobilization (schedule 10.3)

S~it (schedule 10.3) 2,970,664.04

1,835,520.63

4,80",184.67

2,970,664.04

1,835,520.63

4,806,184.67

2,885,798.45

1,799,550.20

4,685,348.65

84,865.59

35,970.43

120,836.02

Total 59,636,849.34 115,173,361.00 8,839,494.93 183,649,705.27 130,610,653.83 5,917,6n.78 47,121,373.66

•

i'i

=====z=======_ =asa=========== ======a===e:== ========a====== ======z==~=z==== ============== ====••••===.=zz=

';';.

t
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SCHEDULE 10.1

Special accounts for pro~urement services and other activities
for the bi en"i \Ill ended 31 Deceiitier 1991

(United States dOl lars)

~

"

Donors
Balance as at

1 January 1990 ~
Funds

received
Funds advanced

pledged
Total funds
avai lable Expenditure

Funds returned!
transferred

Balance as at
31 DecelJ'ber 1991

GOVERNMENTS AND
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGE~CIES

AGFUND 81,156.32 (81,156.00)
Afghanistan 16,623.53 62,944.71
Argentina 388.38
Austral ia 186,770.83 120,644.41
Bangladesh 7,217,513.06 22,870.204.14
Belgi\lll 67,!l49.23 en, 146.96)
Bel ize 9,979.78 3,041.00
Benin 644.77 651,757.00
Bhutan 0.20
Bol ivia 176,893.78 257,465. '15
Botswana 24,946.67 34,515.19
Brazi l 52,475.16 3,943,302.11
Burlcina Faso 770.21 327,116.00
Burundi - 5,748.00

I Carrbodia - 19,536.00
-...1 Canada 331,963.13 1,587,486.32
~ Central African Republic 1,649.93 126,628.83I Chile 109,671. 15

Co loot.li a 79,816.36 246,050.42
Comoros 6,236.42 23,123.01
Congo 19,588.00
Costa Rica 6,642.28
Cuba 9,675.80
Democratic Yernen.J21 312,547.27 (166,625.52)
Dennark 799,838.20 1,595,587.82
Dj ibouti - 47,276.15
Dominica 82.38
Dubai 1,982.00
Ecuador 2,585.21 421,873.40
Egypt 7,310.37
Ethiopia 337,928.93 1,758,921. 09
Finland 67,485.22 606,501.44
Fr':lnce 542,333.84 814,781.34
Gabon 1,3n.90
Gantlia 18,040.35 363,980.63
Germany, Federal Replblic of ~ 2,365,343.79 1,738,267.52

520,468.44

8,316.45
270,548.n

1,866.62
453.<:4

1,803.99
200.75

73.42
4,125.16

13,475.52
861.21

10,471.17
18,294.78

616.64
132.04

11,441.72

27,504.29
(45,500.00)

0.32
79,568.24

388.38
307,415.24

30.608,185.64
(9,297.73)
13,020.78

660,718.22
270,548.92
436,225.55
59,914.90

3,995,m.27
329,690.20

5,948.75
19,536.00

1,919,522.87
132,403.92

359,342.30
30,220.64

6,642.28
9,675.80

145,921.75
2,405,897.19

65,570.93
82.38

424,590.65
7,310.37

2,108,291.74
673,986.66

1,357,115.18
1,372.90

409,525.27
4,058,111.31

0.32
62,944.71

142.04
1i7,590.40

16,468,768.53
(10,468.3~)

9,624.90
560,503.38
270,548.92
152,588.03
29,468.48

3,662,915.85
139,218.90

5,271. 76

1,801,233.02
96,453.39

107,206.31
247,996.21

9,332.21
17,250.48
6,435.56

0.00
118,814.49

1,714,075.68
65,570.93

3.22
1,675.24

479,431.44
0.00

616,946.98
543,889.88
853,709.49

0.00
392,918.29

2,342,155.57

499.21
576,670.34

1,170.59

3,112.38
5,046.71

13,689.64
0.00
0.00
0.00

6,236.42
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

352,941.81
0.00
0.00

923.40
0.00
0.00

84,202.54
0.00

(1,343.87)
0.00
0.00
0.00

16,623.53
246.34

189,325.63
13,562,746.77

3,395.88
100,214.84

280,525.14
25,399.71

332,861.42
190,471.30

676.99
19,536.00

104,600.21
35,950.53

(107,206.31)
91,346.09
14,652.01

(17,250.48)
206.n

9,675.80
27,107.26

338,879.70

79.16
(2,598.64)

(54,840.79)
7,310.37

1,407,142.22
130,096.78
504,749.56

1,372.90
16,606.98

1,715,955.74
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SCHEDULE 10.1 (continued)

----------.-.-----------------------------------------_._------------------------------------------_..._.-,.--.--------------------------------.----------------------
Balance as at FIRis FIRis advanced Total flRis Funds returned! Balance as at

Donors 1 JanJllry 1990.11 received pledged available Expenditure transferred 31 Decemer 1991_______________ ._. ____ ~ ___________________________________________________________________________________ R ______________ • ________________________________________ •• __

Ghana 1,699,435.71 1,174,347.64 2,873,783.35 1,072,240.30 1,on,759.53 723,783.52
Guat_la 80.56 80.56 0.00 0.00 80.56
Guinea 29,504.21 83,249.57 2,780.06 115,533.84 32,511.76 0.00 83,022.08
Guinea-Bissau 283.96 115,563.00 115,846.96 115,242.04 604.92
Guyana 3,709.48 3,709.48 0.00 3,709.48
Haiti 30,928.45 40,211.00 2,869.25 74,008.70 52,513.46 21,495.24
Honduras 10,941.19 10,941.19 10,941.19 0.00
India 260,917.00 522,238.69 306.19 783,461.88 498,139.70 4,371.67 280,950.51
Indonesia 76,602.36 3,713,722.00 3,790,324.36 3,341,132.81 76,602.36 372,589.19
Iran (Islamic Republic of) 6,680.16 5,596.40 12,276.56 0.00 0.00 12,276.56
Iraq 282,105.02 282,105.02 0.00 0.00 282,105.02
Ir~land 2,186.45 6,014.00 8,200.45 608.57 2,186.45 5,405.43
Italy 21,789,242.93 5,523,578.42 350,928.67 27,663,750.02 20,442,060.70 (3,188.82) 7,224,878.14
J_ica 15,137.28 500,882.86 250.69 516,270.83 289,005.89 7,408.n 219,856.17
Japan 137,635.l:8 3,284,167.59 223,821.02 3,645,624.29 2,971,641.45 1,453.88 672,528.96
Kenya 16,591.59 203,983.15 240,574.71 461,149.45 222,317.57 3,430.35 235,401.53
Kiribati 2,325.45 2,325.45 0.00 0.00 2,325.45
Kuwait 871.62 871.62 0.00 (871.62)
Lesotho 32,689.17 115,036.00 628.59 ;48,353.76 86,856.24 3,522.12 57,975.40
Liberia 65,545.51 65,545.51 38,542.30 27,003.21

I
Libyan Arab Jamahiriya 24,237.33 24,237.33 15,595.46 8,641.87

-.J Madagascar 15,453.59 159,670.62 12.65 175,136.86 86,989.65 12,170.22 75,976.99
Ut Malawi 12,394.12 354,161.88 803.72 367,359.72 34,542.88 332,816.84
I Mali 245,843.52 3,813.35 6,248.38 255,905.75 187,458.17 6,481.85 61,965.73

Mauritania 7,579.40 14,640.12 22,219.52 12,343.92 0.00 9,875.60
Mexico 2,398.28 2,398.28 0.00 1,330.21 1,068.07
Micronesia (Federated States of) 6,795.35 25,350.22 (4,151.65) 27,993.92 19,882.51 2,n6.82 5,384.59
Morocco 91,612.65 6,648.85 98,261.50 79,193.41 0.00 19,068.09
Mozambique 25.23 9,950.00 9,975.23 9,802.44 0.00 172.79
Myannar 1,491,133.50 1,415,176.62 3,130.24 2,909,440.36 2,555,185.63 0.00 354,254.73
Nepal 42,110.17 158,566.96 34,689.19 235,366.32 145,468.09 (29,533.43) 119,431.66
Netherlands 106,614.68 3,457,764.48 3,564,379.16 941,302.04 (14,556.47> 2,637,633.59
Nicaragua 280.61 280.61 0.00 0.00 280.61
Niger 0.00 (6n.13) 0.00 6n.13
Nigeria 5, n1, 125.40 671,896.14 148,204.80 6,591,226.34 3,817,712.22 400,000.00 2,373,514.12
Norway 38,126.99 159,201.99 440.22 217,769.20 151,391.69 0.00 66,3n.51
Qlan 60,436.13 399,546.69 2,598.97 462,581. 74 318,519.83 20,855.91 123,206.00
OPEC Fln:! 157,363.50 0.00 (12,922.80) 144,440.70 139,546.21 0.00 4,894.49
Pakistan 1,911,955.26 4,736,294.64 6,648,249.90 5,310,779.83 23,859.42 1,313,610.65
Panama 11,518.00 11,026.03 0.00 (11,026.03)
Papua New Guinea 10,387.00 42,763.00 186.70 53,336.70 35,544.21 0.00 17,792.49
Paraguay 361.60 31,207.00 31,568.60 30,281.74 0.00 1,286.86
Peru 3,385.59 2,588.46 5,974.05 581001 0.00 5,393.04
Phi l ippines 68,510.57 106,650.22 2,049.43 1n,210.22 45,572.24 15,337.15 116,300.83

- C·~=;c--,~- .-=-..:~ I
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SCHEDULE 10.1 (continued)

------. __ ._--------------.-.--.-------------------------------------------------------------------~-------------------------------------------------------------------
Balance as at Funds Funds advanced Total funds Funds returnedl Balance as at

Donors 1 January 1990 JV received pledged available Expenditure transferred 31 DeceniJer 1991
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Poland 50,000.00 3,189.59 53,189.59 53,189.59 0.00
Portugal 965.55 965.55 250.00 715.55 0.00
Ranania 1,085,642.46 1,085,642.46 1,022,546.27 0.00 63,096.19
Russian Federation 1,803,882.00 1,803,882.00 60.00 1,803,822.00 0.00
Rwanda 6,107.21 67,785.57 2,356.90 76,249.68 14,931.06 0.00 61,318.62
Saint Kitts and Nevis 855.66 4,795.00 368.80 6,019.46 5,163.38 856.08
Sao Tome and Principe 102,667.04 1,472.51 104,139.55 97,296.72 0.00 6,842.83
Senegal 6,837.00 6,837.00 6,825.82 0.00 11.18
Seychelles 5,102.17 5,102.17 0.00 5,102.17 0.00
Sierra Leone 326,661.61 99,16:$.03 6,192.67 432,017.31 181,076.03 0.00 250,941.28
Sanali a 136,627.28 253,903.00 24,016.70 414,546.98 278,897.16 135,649.82
Sri Lanka 14,680.47 15,825.00 30,505.47 12,082.02 0.00 18,423.45
Sudan 1, 184, 119.27 430,762.01 9,562.69 1,624,443.97 1,162,116.69 <34,293.57) 496,620.85
Syrian Arab Republic 42,500.00 197,594.00 12,482.26 252,576.26 241,583.51 10,992.75
Swazi land 2,273.83 2,273.83 51.19 2,222.64
Sweden 76,840.51 1,314,022.32 172,188.13 1,563,050.96 1,358,906.14 84,054.24 120,090.58
Switzerland 91,093.40 63,476.68 154,570.08 79,303.98 75,266.10
Thailand 2,955.89 2,598.53 5,554.42 2,426.62 3,127.80
Tokelau .. 6,753.00 29,889.30 36,642.30 36,412.19 230.11
Tunisia 818.27 847.00 2,057.71 3,722.98 763.44 2,959.54
Turkey 4,474.31 19,813.95 24,288.26 15,594.56 4,474.31 4,219.39
Uganda 139,048.43 441,740.70 580,789.13 156,550.78 424,238.35

I United Kingdom of Great Britain.... and Northern Ireland 215,572.57 9,105.52 224,678.09 199,312.76 25,365.3301
I United Republic of Tanzania 848,731.92 4,034,673.38 50,784.82 4,934,190.12 2,819,751. 15 19,661.15 2,094,m.~2

United States of America 2,041,857.57 2,874,354.37 2, 771 ,410.3~ 7,687,622.26 7,561,150.14 2,087.81 124,384.31
Vanuatu 1,089.61 1,089.61 53.95 1,035.66
Viet Nam 93,576.64 128,489.00 3,940.26 226,005.90 199,112.14 0.00 26,893.76
Yemen !Jj 261,146.33 541,807.29 1.64 802,955.26 477,999.97 0.00 324,955.29
Zaire 258,675.12 494,333.86 753,008.98 271,312.25 0.00 481,696.73
Zanbia 59,279.55 34,051.00 9,909.53 103,240.08 30,494.67 0.00 72,745.41
Zinbabwe 60,967.99 462,535.00 3,613.15 527,116.14 343,306.56 11,283.11 172,526.47

............. -- .... - ... -------- .. --- _ .. _--_ ............... - .. --.-- .......... __ ... --_ .......... _---_ .. ---- .......... __ ........ .. .......... --------
Total 52,846,891. 92 79,256,643.50 5,039,456.33 137,142,991. 75 90,624,463.52 4,702,979.32 41,815,548.91

UNITED NATIONS SYSTEM

ESCWA 940.09 940.09 940.09 0.00
FAO - 13,949.75 241. 13 14,190.88 14,190.88 0.00
IAEA, VierYl8 186.19 186.19 186.19 0.00 0.00
ILO - 23,917.93 7,545.44 31,463.37 31,463.37 0.00
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SCHEDULE 10.1 (concluded)

Donors
Balance as at

1 January 1990 !y
FlTods

received
FlTods advanced

pledged
Total flTods
available Expenditure

FlTods returned!
transferred

Balance as at
31 Decl!ll'ber 1991

PAHO, Washington . 2,266,972.16 46,561.13 2,313,533.29 2,190,089.23 7,885.69 115,558.37
United Nations Secretariat 2,172.90 113,101.58 137,890.25 253,164.73 152,112.22 2,172.90 98,879.61
UNCDF, New York 13,825.55 3,166.54 16,992.09 3,253.55 13,634.33 104.21
UNDP, New York 3,013.26 264,293.01 n,929.78 345,236.05 208,639.29 35,199.72 101,397.04
UNDRO, Geneva 166.62 153,187.26 20,329.04 173,682.92 173,483.80 166.62 32.50
UNESCO 1,375.83 76,680.40 (920.75) n,135.48 75,709.79 1,425.69
UNFDAC 2,676.51 15,079.83 17,756.34 15,238.74 2,303.29 214.31
UNFPA, New York 10,012.71 3,271,758.27 1,857,764.20 5,139,535.18 4,918,238.96 888.43 220,407.79
UNHCR, Geneva 72,576.90 1,497,696.20 197,896.24 1,768,169.34 1,690,767.07 30,110.72 47,291.55
UNRWA 6,644.09 681,856.75 (10,649.51) 6n,851.33 6n,023.74 827.59
WFP 3,167.24 18,212.05 87.18 21,466.47 18,299.23 3,167.24
WHO 307,844.00 2,522,816.73 (37,735.92) 2,792,924.81 2,314,069.10 12,716.82 466,138.89
World Bank 2,376.31 2,376.31 2,376.31

... ------------ -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -----_ ..... -- .. ---
Total 426,792.01 10,919,708.11 2,300,104.75 13,646,604.87 12,482,765.16 106,018.61 1,057,821.10

Others 4,252,384.17 18,941,856.73 1,499,933.85 24,694,174.75 19,458,327.27 1,108,679.85 4,127,167.63

I --
'01 GRAND TOTAL 57,526,068.10 109,118,208.34 8,839,494.93 175,483,n1.37 122,565,555.95 5,917,6n.78 47,000,537.64
'01
I ============== ============== ============== ============== ====~~======== ============== ==============

JV Other procurement services, formerly known as warehouse sales, were classified as special accounts in 1990.

l:U On 22 May 1990, Democratic Yemen and Yemen merged to form a single State. Since that clate, they have been represented as one merrber with the name "Yemen".

~ Through accession of the German Democratic Republic to the Federal Republic of Germany with effect from 3 October 1990, the two German States have united
to for~ one sovereign State. As from the clate of un!fication, the F~ral Republic of Germany acts in the United Nations under the designation of "Ge~'.
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Funds received

SCHEDULE 10.2

(United States dollars)

,

16,287.99
60,000.00
8,000.00

100,000.00
100,000.00
250,000.00
100,000.00
250,000.00

800,000.00

World Conference on Education for All and related activities
for the biemiun ended 31 December 1991

Subtotal

Austral ia
Italy
Japan
Swi tzerland
United States of America

UNDP
UNFPA
World Bank

GOVERNMENTS:

UNITED NATIONS SYSTEM:

Subtotal 84,287.99

OTHERS:

Asian Development Bank
IlSA/IAF
Inter-American Development Bank

134,000.00
25,000.00

205,680.00

Subtotal 364,680.00

Total funds received
Fund balance from prior period

1,248,967.99
2,110,781.24

Total funds available 3,359,749.23

Expenditures incurred

Unspent ba lance

-78-

3,359,749.23

0.00
============
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SCHEDULE 10.3

World Summit for Children and related activities for the biennium ended 31 December 1991
(summary of 1990 and 1991 transactlons)

(United States dollars)

-------------._._----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Funds

pledged

Funds received

Summit - MObl(lzation
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
GOVERNMENTS

Albania 2,000.00 2,000.00
Bangladesh 1,522.21 1,522.21
Barbados 1,996.70 1,996.70
Belarus 15,000.00 15,000,00
Belgium 100,000.00 100,000.00
Bhutan 5,000.00 5,000.00
Brazil 30,000.00 30,000.00
Cameroon 7,407.40 7,407.40
Canada 208,333.33 208,333.33
Chad 1,063.83 1.063.83
Chile 5,000.00 5,000.00
China 50,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00
Cuba 4,000.00 4,000.00
Czechoslovakia 100,000.00 100,000.00

I Dermark 87,009.48 87,009.48-..l
10 Djibouti 1,000.00 1,000.00
I Dominica 500.00 500.00

Egypt 50,000.00 0.00
El Salvador 5,000.00 0.00
Ethiopia 1,000.00 1,000.00
Finland 250,375.56 174,375.56 76,000.00
France 114,503.82 114,503.82
Gaamia 3,000.00 0.00
Germany, Federal Reptbl i c of .§/ 264,900.66 232,642.66 32,258.00
Greece 5,163.08 5,163.08
Holy See 5,000.00 5,000.00
India 30,000.00 1,000.00 0.00
Indonesia 50,000.00 20,000.00 30,000.00
Ireland 159,270.00 159,270.00
Italy 250,000.00 150,000.00 100,000.00
Japan 200,000.00 200,000.00
Jordan 5,000.00 5,000.00
Kenya 2,174.00 0.00
Kuwait 100,000.00 100,000.00
Leb4non 5,000.00 5,000.00
Liechtenstein 2,000.00 2,000.00
Luxl!ftb)urg 16,046.21 16,046.21
Malaysia 50,000.00 50,000.00
Maldives 2,000.00 500.00 1,000.00
Mal i 57,591.62 57,591.62
Mexico 75,000.00 75,000.00
Myannar 2,318.39 2,318.39

~,- . ",,~",,--,~~:--;:;;.:;;:.~
•• .:-. . ..i-=.. .,_ .. _._.~_
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~CHEDULE 10.3 (continued)

I

Funds
pledged

Funds received

SlIlII!l t MOblLl zation

Nepal 1,000.00
Netherlands 100,000.00 100,000.00
Nigeria 50,000.00 50,000.00
Norway 96,952.22 96,952.22
Pakistan 50,079.68 50,079.68
Phi l ippines 2,500.00 2,500.00
Republic of Korea 50,000.00
Romania 10,000.00 10,000.00
Russian Federation 100,000.00 100,000.00
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines 1,851.00 0.00
Saudi Arabia 20,000.00 20,000.00
Senegal 23,904.38
s~ngapore 10,000.00 10,000.00
SrC: Lflnka 2,500.00 2,500.00
~iltcic:·~ 25,000.00 25,000.00
SwedP" 200,000.00 200,000.00
Switzerland 50,000.00
Thailand 2,000.00 2,000.00
T..... isia 2,000.00 2,000.00
Turkey 25,000.00 25,000.00

I Uganda 30,000.00
(X) Ukraine 15,000.00 15,000.00
0 United Kingdom of Grt
I and Northern IreL''"Vj 134,615.38 134,615.38

United States of ~~W 150,000.00 150,000.00
Uruguay 1,000.00 0.00
Venezuela 50,000.00
Yugoslavia 20,000.00
Zaire 50,000.00 50,000.00
Zintlabwe 50,000.00 50,000.00

---------------- ----------------
3,648,578.95 2,938,845.36

---------------- -----------_ .. --.

NATIONAL COMMITTEES FOR UNICEF

1,000.00

50,000.00

23,904.38

50,000.00

30,000.00

50,000.00
20,000.00

617,208.59

1iliiJi[.

Austria
Belgiun
Bulgaria
Canada
Germany, Federal Republ ic of jf
Greece
France
Italy
Japan

5,504.59
10,000.00
2,475.00

50,8n.19
130,000.00
31,318.68
49,541.28
49,195.65

133,333.33

SCHEDULE 10.3 (concluded)

31,318.68

5,504.59
10,000.00

0.00
50,8n.19

130,000.00

49,541.28
49,195.65

133,333.33

,.
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SCHEDULE 10.3 (concluded)

Lux4!lllbourg
Netherlands
New Zealand
Poland
Portugal
San Marino
Spain
Sweden
Switzerland
Turkey . ""'
United Kingdom of Great Britatn'

and Nothern Ireiand
United States of America
Yugoslavia

Funds
pledged

2,857.15
150,000.00

1,119.61
2,500.00
2,501.51

811.04
129,314.07
25,000.00
20,000.00
25,000.00

114,813.59
300,000.00

1,932.22

Funds received

SUMm~- MObILIzatIon

2,857.15
150,000.00

1,119.61
0.00

2,501.51
811.04

129,314.07
25,000.00
20,000.00
25,000.00

114,813.59
290,000.00

1,932.22

I
CD....
I

OTHERSJl/

Congo
GanOia
Saudi Arabi a
United States of ~rica

TOTAL PLEDGES/FUNDS RECEIVED

EXPENDITURES INCURRED

UNSPENT BALANCE

BUDGETS APPROVED BY THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

1,238,094.91

810.81
6,787.67

25,000.00
1,200.00

33,798.48

4,920,472.34--------_._----------------------

5,134,445.00
--------------------------------

31,318.68

0.00

500.00

500.00

2,970,664.04

2,885,798.45

84,865.59
--------------------------------

2,994,762.00---------_..._--------------_._----

1,191,801.23

810.81

25,000.00
700.00

26,510.81

1,835,520.63

1,799,550.20

35,971).43
----------------------------

2,139,683.00
----------------------------

JV Through accession of the German Democratic Republic to the Federal Republic of Germany
with effect from 3 OCtober 1990, the two German States have united to fonm one sovereign State.
As from the date of unification, the Federal Republic of Germany acts in the United Nations
under the des ignat ion of "Germany".

~ Contributions received from individuals and private organizations in these countries.

-·'7'.'::r.' ....~. :~·"~-"'-~" ..-....,..'''"7,..,.,.~'..,.,.-.......:.....~~''3''¥I.,';;;\:i ..~~A:,. -.-7':~;~- T~:.!!:.-,- . ..'o1fi-.:..~,_~.toozfl!'
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SCHEDULE 11

Income, expenditures and fund balance related to
procurement servIces • staff arid reLated cost

for the bH!M1UD erided 31 becen&r 1991

(United States dollars)

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Fund balance, 1 January 1990

Funds received

Interest income procurement services

Total funds available

USES OF FUNDS

Staff-related expenses

Transfers to income

Total expenditures and transfers

Fund balance, 31 Decemer 1991

831,296.37

4,040,427.97

1,325,725.23

6,197,449.57

5,230,519.57

112,082.21

5,342,601.78

854,847.79
------------------------

•

....

.... ~
cs 0o •

B 10
DI •....

'tS'tSDlQ)
i:' tot VI •
tot .... VI

totOtltVlrt!Zlfn~
CD 0 o rt::tDl rt·
OtsDlDlOrtDl

rtrt<QQOI
tot tot III CS ts·
~ P! ............

rtVl<BCcsUl
::trtllllll ...·O·
CDDI .... t<rtCS

tr,r.
III •
VI

t1It1tw...·0 .
CS III

rtt'ltltN
::too·
CD 0 III

DI C ~
VI .....

rt
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Accounts

v. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOJNTING POLICIES

~
I:

1. Until 31 December 1987, UNICEF accounts were maintained in accordance
with the Financial Regulations of the United Nations, with such modifications
as required by the nature of the work of UNICEF.

2. By its decision 1987/13, taken at its 1987 regular session, the Executive
Board adopted the UNICEF Financial Regulations and Rules in accordance with
Economic and Social Council decision 1986/1981 of 23 July 1986, as approved by
the General Assembly in its decision 41/461 of 11 December 1986.

3. By its decision 1987/2, taken at its 1987 regular session, the Executive
Board decided that effective 1 January 1988, UNICEF would commence its
financial reporting on a biennial basis.

4. Since 1 January 1988, the accounts have been maintained on a biennial
basis in accordance with the UNICEF Financial Regulations and Rules.

5. Contributions income received from National Committees and
non-governmental organizations is accounted for on a cash basis of accounting,
with the exception of supplementary funds and emergency contributions, which
may be recorded on the basis of a valid pledge from a National Committee. 1be
validity of the pledge is determined by the existence of funds raised and a
statement from the National Committee that it is committing funds to UNICEF in
the form of a pledge.

6. The accounting unit is the United States dollar. The equivalent in
United States dollars of other currencies is established on the basis of the
United Nations operational rates of exchange. Differences between the
valuation of the currencies when entered into the accounts and when actual
transactions are made are accounted for as gains or losses on exchange
transactions.

7. Periodically, assets and liabilities in currencies other than United
States dollars are valued for accounting purposes at the prevailing United
Nations operational rates of exchange. Any variance due to fluctuation of
those rates is accounted for as income or loss and shown separately in the
statement of income and expenditure. In accordance with UNICEF Executive
Board decision 1990/28, differences resulting from the payment of
contributions pledged in currencies other than United States dollars are
recorded against these contributions.

8. The financial report and accounts reflect UNICEF income, expenditure,
assets and liabilities, including those of the Greeting Card Operation. The
principles of consolidation reflect the accounting policies outlined in
paragraphs 9 to 13 below.

9. The reporting period and accounts of the Greeting Card Operation are
maintained on a fiscal year basis, ending 30 April.

10. However, for consolidation purposes only, the UNICEF financial statements
include the accounts of the Greeting Card Operation on a calendar year basis,

-83-
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as at 31 December, based on the trial balance of the accounts of the Greeting
Card Operation.

11. The trial balance of the accounts of the Greeting Card Operation on a
caldendar year basis, as at 31 December, is derived by estimating receivables,
sales and profit on goods delivered to consignees from the ongoing Greeting
Card Operation campaign.

12. The financial effect of consolidating the accounts of the Greeting Card
Operation on a calendar basis is reflected, most notably, in the receivables
and earning of the Greeting Card Operation.

13. Inter-office transactions between UNICEF and the Greeting Card Operation
are eliminated for consolidation purposes.

Income and expenditure

14. Income consists of general resources and supplementary funds. General
resources include funds from the voluntary annual contributions of
Governments, the net income from the Greeting Card Operation, unearmarked
funds contributed by the pUblic and other income. Supplementar.y funds are
those contributed to UNICEF by Governments, intergovernmental organizations,
non-governmental organizations and United Nations agencies for emergencies and
for specific purposes within the programmes approved by the UNICEF Executive
Board. These earmarked contributions become part of UNICEF income. If
specific terms and conditions are established by donors, separate accounts are
maintained for purposes of reporting and financial management.

15. Income is recorded on the basis of funds or pledges received for the
current year. Pledges received for future years for purposes specified by
donors are considered deferred income and recorded as "pledged and received in
advance" (statement 11).

16. Donations-in-kind, which are recorded as memorandum entries in the books
of accounts, are not part of UNICEF Income.

17. The statement of income and expenditures (statement I) does not include
funds received and expenditures made from special accounts, which are
reflected in schedules 10, 10.1, 10.2 and 10.3. Those transactions which do
not require approval by the Executive Board are maintained as special accounts.

Assets and liabilities

18. All funds received are deposited into UNICEF bank accounts, including
those under special account arrangements, and reflected as cash holdings.

19. All outstanding pledges for contributions are recorded as receivables
(see para. 15 above).

20. Prior to 1989, certain buildings purchased by UNICEF and considered as
capital assets ~ .. t'e valued at cost less accumulated depreciation. In 1989,
the unamortized value of UNICEF capital assets was expended against the
1988-1989 budget, resulting in a fully depreciated UNICEF capital asset
account as at 31 December 1989.
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21. During 1990, a capital asset fund was established better to control the
future purchase of UNICEF capital assets, mainly buildings to be purchased for
office accommodations and staff housing in the field. The capital asset fund
was created through a transfer from general resources.

22. Future acquisitions of UNICEF capital assets will be included in the
capital asset fund and, at such time as may be necessary, additional
authorized appropriations will be made to replenish the capital asset fund.

23. The stock of programme supplies at the UNICEF Supply Division warehouse
at Copenhagen is shown at average cost. Goods-in-transit to the warehouse are
valued at actual cost. Freight paid for supplies to the warehouse is
considered part of the cost of supplies. The aggregate total represents the
inventory, the value of which is adjusted by the accumulated variance between
average and actual costs.

24. The Greeting Card Operation inventory of raw materials, products in
process and finished goods are valued at standard cost.

25. No provision is made for staff entitlements for repatriation, etc., in
future years or to meet contingencies under appendix D of the United Nations
Staff Rules, as funds are provided in the budget appropriations as required.

26. A reserve for insurance of $200,000 was established in November 1950 to
absorb losses of UNICEF programme supplies and equipment not covered by
commercial insurance. The reserve is restored to its authorized limit by a
transfer from income. In 1987, UNICEF decided to self-insure for property
losses of $100,000. Accordingly, a reserve funded from the budget was
established. This reserve was funded equally from the biennium 1986-1987 and
the biennium 1988-1989.

-85-
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ANNEX I

Statistical and other data

The present annex comprises tables g~v~ng statistical and other data
concerning UNICEF activities which, although not forming part of the financial
statements, are provided for information purposes.

Tables

1. Total programmes funded from general resources and supplementary funds
approved in 1990 and 1991 (summary by region and type of programme).

2. Summary of progr~es funded from general resources approved by the
Executive Board at its 1990 and 1991 sessions (by region and ty~e of
programme) •

3. Programmes entering into effect during 1990 and 1991 between Board
sessions corresponding to specific contributions received or pledged
during 1990-1991 and adjustments and transfers.

4. Summary of expenditures in 1990 and 1991 by region and type of programme.

5. Expenditure for cooperation by programme in 1990 and 1991.

6. Status of funds from the United Nations system related to Board-approved
programmes as at 31 December 1991.

7. Assistance financed by UNFPA through UNICEF in the biennium 1990-1991.
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Q. iD
.......

--

•

Total progranmes funded from general resources and supplementary funds approved in 1990 and 1991; sl.lllllllry by region and type of programne

(Thousands of United States dollars)

-~_._------.-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Middle East Ameri cas and
Africa Asia and North Africa the Caribbean Interregional.!l Total Percentage

1990 1991 1990 1991 1990 1991 1990 1991 1990 1991 1990 1991 Total
------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ... --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Health 85,364 102,523 79,886 100,942 21,176 19,133 19,515 12,514 4,527 41,588 210,468 276,700 487,168 38
~ater supply and sanitation 39,797 30,984 26,997 71,798 4,392 13,065 1,947 14,291 4,500 73,133 134,638 207,n1 13
Nutrition 9,551 2,138 16,293 15,995 980 780 3,489 2,884 3,5n 5,132 33,890 26,929 60,819 6
Household food security 3,620 10,517 1,130 2,106 1,525 84 6,275 12,707 18,982 1
Education 10,012 30,073 12,108 41,524 3,728 9,316 7,419 7,233 15,000 48,267 88,146 136,413 9
Young child development 724 70 689 54,295 1,070 3,099 1,909 5,582 56,274 61,856 1
Community organization and
developnent 4,m 3,457 8,267 12,707 216 750 2,289 4,075 15,545 20,989 36,534 3

Area-based, integrated and
urban services 9,406 4,333 4n 6,415 1,345 9,532 3,822 881 15,050 21,161 36,211 3

~omen-centred programnes 4,073 2,907 670 23,820 421 1,810 4,901 1,178 10,065 29,715 39,780 2
I Children in especially

CXl difficult circumstances 7,217 2,458 2,737 6,568 1,050 1,836 5,544 7,329 300 1,294 16,848 19,485 36,333 3-.j

I
Advocacy 6,536 8,331 6,930 5,210 2,215 1,800 4,268 5,437 1,000 1,030 20,949 21,808 42,757 4
Planning and social statistics 18,728 9,042 4,500 4,855 3,153 3,860 6,586 4,172 25 53,049 32,992 74,978 107,970 6
Progr lIIlIIle suppert 14,315 17,815 1,370 3,840 37,340 37,340
Emergency relief and rehabilitation 14,372 40,919 11,744 8,353 22,352 72,192 1,068 712 6,793 9,985 56,329 132,161 188,490 10
Unallocated reserve iJ/ (26) 4,745 216 40 6,000 359 4,6n 15,422 589 16,011 3

...... _--- .............. ----- .. - ------- ---_ .... ------- .. _---_ .. -- ... ---- ------- -_ ..... --- ------- ------- ------_ .... --_.. -
Total 214,173 262,041 1n,173 372,619 62,098 135,484 71,472 66,898 35,899 116,578 560,815 953,620 1,514,435 100

Recovery 7,730 7,730 =====
Balance from previously
approved progranme (25,716) (14,109) (39,825)

----_ .... -- ... -_ .... ---- ...... --
Sl.tltotal 214,173 262,041 1n,173 372,619 62,098 135,484 71,472 66,898 35,899 116,578 535,099 947,241 1,482,340

======= ======= ======= ======= ====== ======= ======= ======= ======= =======
Savings and deficit (148) 346 198
Adjustments 10,656 10,656

.. ---_.. - .... _.. --- _.. _--_ .. -..
545,607 947,587 1,493,194

GLOBAL TOTAL ======= ======= =========

~ Includes, in 1992 figures, the aDOUnt of 12,985 for Central European countries.

JbV This assistance can not be broken daMn into the categories above.

._~~
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Table 2

. c ••~ .•~

Summary of programmes funded from general resources approved by the Executive Board at its 1990 and 1991 sessions, by region and type of programme

(Thousands of United States dollars)

Africa

1990----,991

Asia

1990 1991

Middle East
and North Africa

1990----,991

Americas and
the Caribbean

,990---,99,

Interregional

1990 1991

Total

1990 1991 Total

Percentage

lB·

Health 45,928 65,794 27,409 64,994 18,365 15,075 12,331 4,830 3,000 41,000 107,033 191,693 298,726 32
Water supply and sanitation 17,804 22,533 15,669 29,500 2,003 6,805 827 290 4,500 36,303 63,628 99,931 11
Nutrition 8,399 900 13,321 8,905 880 490 1,8n 1,215 3,479 4,955 27,951 16,465 44,416 5
Household food security 2,305 8,227 ns 1,605 1,393 4,473 9,832 14,305 2
Education 9,362 24,110 6,859 31,165 3,144 7,750 3,570 917 15,000 37,935 63,942 101,877 11
Young child development n4 70 494 54,120 1,070 2,815 1,650 5,103 55,840 60,943 7
Community organization and
development 2,913 6,707 11,500 198 450 785 1,490 10,603 13,440 24,043 3

Area-based, integrated and
urban services 8,440 3,935 6,380 760 6,040 3,712 800 12,912 17,155 30,067 3

Women-centred progr~s 3,973 2,657 425 21,945 75 1,ns 2,742 270 7,215 26,647 33,862 4
Children in especially

I difficult circ~tances 6,118 1,353 370 4,034 486 1,635 574 3,460 900 7,548 11,382 18,930 2
CD
CD Advocacy 6,201 7,949 6,847 5,210 2,038 1,800 3,478 4,922 1,000 19,564 19,881 39,445 4
I Planning and social statistics 2,055 8,377 469 4,445 319 3,860 2,146 2,855 25 44,700 5,014 64,237 69,251 8

Progr~ support 15,850 14,139 3,951 17,815 2,834 1,370 3,145 3,273 25,780 36,597 62,377 7
Elllergency rel ief and rehabil i tat i.. 1,280 2,000 2,698 7,000 5,978 7,000 12,978 1
lJnallocated reserve ~ 4,745 216 6,000 10,745 216 10,961 1

_....... -_._-_ .. . .... -- -_ .. _.. .-_... - -_.. -- _.. _..... -. -............. . ... _.. _... ... _.... _..... --_ ........................ ... .. _... -- ...
Total 131,352 160,044 90,041 261,834 32,1n 47,050 45,390 25,9n 25,202 103,055 324,157 597,955 922,112 100

Balance from previously ======= ======= ------ ======= ==~=== ====== ======= ====== ------ ======= =::
approved progr~ (25,716) (14,109) (39,825)................ - .... __ ._- --_ ... _... -
Subtotal new progr~ 298,441 583,846 882,287
Savings and deficit (148) 346 198

..................... ------- ...... _..........
GLOBAL TOTAL 298,293 584,192 882,485

======= =======

~ This assistence can not be broken dotln into the categories above.
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Progr~ entering into effect during 1990 and 1991 between Board sessions corresponding to

.specific cClfltributions received or pledged during 1990-1991 and adjustlllents and transfers

(Thousands of United States dollars)

.. _---.----.-------------------------------------------------------_._------_ .._-------------.---_.-.-.- .._--------------._----------------------------------------------_._.
Middle East Americas and

Africa Asia and North Africa the Caribbean Interregi anal 11 Total Percentage

1990 1991 1990 1991 1990 1991 1990 1991 1990 1991 1990 1991 Total
-------------.--------------------------------------_.---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------._._--.-.-.---------
Health 39,436 36,n8 52,4n 35,948 2,811 4,058 7,184 7,684 1,527 588 103,435 85,006 188,441 31
Water supply and sanitation 21,993 8,451 11,328 42,298 2,389 6,260 1,120 14,001 36,830 71,010 lJ7,840 18
Nutrition 1,152 1,238 2,9n 7,090 100 290 1,617 1,669 98 In 5,939 10,464 16,403 3
Household food s~curity 1,315 2,290 355 501 132 84 1,802 2,875 4,6n 1
Education 650 5,963 5,249 10,359 584 1,566 3,849 6,316 10,332 24,204 34,536 6
YOU'lg child development 195 175 284 259 479 434 913
Cam-unity organization and
development 1,860 3,457 1,560 1,207 18 300 1,504 2,585 4,942 7,549 12,491 2

Area-based, intergrated and
urban servi ces 966 398 4n 35 585 3492 110 81 2,138 4,006 6,144

I Women-centred programmes 100 250 245 1,875 346 35 2,159 908 2,850 3,068 5,918
CD Children in especially
10 difficult circumstances 1,099 1,105 2,367 2,534 564 201 4,970 3,869 300 394 9,300 8,103 17,403 3
I

Advocacy 335 382 83 In 790 515 1,030 1,385 1,927 3,312 1
Planning and social statistics 823 665 80 410 1,295 1,317 8,349 2,198 10,741 12,939 2
PrograMme support 176 567 743 743
Emergency relief and rehabilitation 13,092 40,919 9,744 8,353 22,352 72,192 1,068 712 4,095 2,985 50,351 125,161 175,512 29
Unallocated reserve ill (26) 40 359 4,6n 4,6n 373 5,050 1............ .. ............ .. .......... .. ............ ------ ............ .. .......... eo __ ...... .. ......... .. .......... .. ............. .. ............. ----_ .... ---

Total 82,821 101,996 87,132 110,785 29,926 88,434 26,082 40,926 10,697 13,523 236,658 355,664 592,322 97
~d j us tlllents 2,713 6,606 30 623 684 10,656 0 10,656 2
Recovery 7,730 7,730 1

.......... .. .. ........... .. .......... .. ............. .. .......... .. .......... .. ........... ... ............ .. ........... .. .......... .............. -- ...... - ................ ---
Grand Total 85,534 101,996 93,738 110,785 29,956 88,434 26,705 40,926 1',381 13,523 247,314 363,394 610,708 100

=~==::= ======= ====== ======= :z::== ====== ====== =::::a:: ------ ====== ======= ======= ===:1=:=

~ Includes, in 1992 figures, the -.,t of $2,985 for Central European cOl6ltries.

jv' This assisUnce can not be broken dowI into the categories above.
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S~ry of el!fl!!!Clitures in 1990 and 1991 by region and type of prOllr_

(Thousands of United States dollars)

Middle East Americas and
and North Africa the CaribbeanAfrica

lWO--f1»f

Asia

199Q--'991 19911 1991 199{f- 1991

Interregional JI

1990 1991

Total

lWO---m1 --Toflil

Percentage

Child health
I-.,ization 51,135 30,856 71,214 48,670 14,016 10,306 11,263 6,349 1,457 2,238 149,085 98,419 247,504 21
Oral rehydration therapy 2,809 2,391 2,915 3,328 1,552 1,362 1,378 1,322 621 549 9,275 8,952 18,227 2
Other hea Ith 50,715 50,314 24,066 24,442 5,780 6,763 10,073 10,531 1,216 2,945 91,850 94,995 186,845 16

.................... .. .. _--- ... ----- ..... ---- ...... - --- ... _- .......... -- ............. ------ ----_ ... ...---_. .. ... -.. _--- -...... ---- -----_ ... _- ... -_ ......
Subtotal, Child health 104,659 83,561 98,195 76,440 21,348 18,431 22,714 18,202 3,294 5,732 250,210 202,366 452,576 39

~nild nutrition and food 13,302 11,187 10,927 12,506 323 209 2,194 2,367 2,354 4,478 29,100 30,747 59,847 5

Water supply and sanitation 26,554 28,110 43,056 33,802 7,699 6,350 4,753 4,988 334 39 82,396 73,289 155,685 13

Eeu:at ;on RI 11,567 11,079 34,922 25,998 2,983 3,090 6,483 7,095 1,167 1,111 57,122 48,373 105,495 9

Other progr~ areas !I 13,909 9,097 11,971 14,616 2,218 1,936 12,666 12,494 492 707 41,256 38,850 80,106 7
I e.ergency £I 18,947 34,799 10,9n 15,043 18,389 54,656 212 2,232 619 4,014 49,139 110,744 159,883 1410

0
I Planr.i rva/.avoeacy/

prograMMe support 27,492 32,n5 22,nO 21,2n 3,659 5,398 8,915 13,294 12,321 14,033 75,107 86,n2 161,829 14
---_ ....... -- ........ -- _ .. _---- _.. _... -... ---_ ... - ............. ... ------ -_ .. _-- .......... _... _--- --- ... _- ------- ... _... _----- ...

Total 216,430 210,558 232,763 199,677 56,619 90,070 57,937 6O,6n 20,581 30,114 584,330 591,091 1,175,421 100
a ••:;r••=-: :a••z::za :loac::•• ===a_:_ a_==:.:8 =:a:ca: a.aa=z ••••z: =a.==: sz:=.~a

_... -_ .. ------- ......... _--
Progr-..e support services 84,947 92,222 177,169.... --_. ---_ ... - ------_..

Total assistance 669,277 683,313 1,352,590
AdMinistrative services 68,652 74,460 143,112
Recovery frc. prOlr_ (4,045) (5,964) (10,029)----._. .._... _- ---_ ... __ .

TOTAL EXPEIDITURE 733,884 ~1,789 1,435,673
aasaa.a .:.••••s: •••••••••

JI Consists of c~ity developlel'1t and org.,ization, children in especiallY difficult circlJllStances and --.-centred progr-..es.

~ IClCludes 'flU1lI child developlel'1t prOlr-..e.

$.I Includes, in 1992 figures, ., MOUnt of 13,357 for Central Europe., cCU'ltries.

-
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



-
.!.ElLl

Expendjture for cooperatjon bv proar_ jn 1990 and 1991

(Thousands of United States dollars)

'IAInou1t

Total 1990-1991 1990-91 over 1988-89________________~------Inerease (decrease)
i

of total

19911990

I - ---------r- -------x
of total Amount of total Amount of total ~t

Total 1988-198919891988

% %
~t of total Amount of total AMount

Child heal th 158,186 40 203,464 41 361,650 40 250,216 43 202,366 34 452,582 39 90,932 36

Child nutrition 22,394 6 27,566 6 49,960 6 29,085 5 30,747 5 59,832 5 9,8n 34

Water supply and sanitation 68,456 17 75,693 15 144,149 16 82,396 14 73,289 12 155,685 13 11,536 14

Ecb:at ion !I 36,735 9 36,549 7 73,284 8 57,122 10 48,373 8 105/.95 9 32,211 56

Other progr_ areas El 29,025 7 34,590 7 63,615 7 41,252 7 38,850 7 80,102 7 16,487 40

Ellll!rgency .£/ 32,233 8 49,277 10 81,510 9 49,139 8 110,744 19 159,883 14 78,373 159

Planning/advocacy/
progr_ support 52,490 13 73,983 15 126,473 14 75,120 13 86,n2 15 161,842 14 35,369 47

........... .. --- -----_ .. --- .. ................ --- ------- --- ............... --- -- .. ------ _.. .............. ._.
I Total 399,519 100 501,122 100 900,641 100 584,330 100 591,091 lOO 1,175,421 100 274,780 47
10 === === --- _..- --- --- -------.... Programme support services 67,710 76,485 144,195 84,947 92,222 177,169
I .............. .------ .................. .. - .......... .. ............ ---------

Total assistance 467,229 577,607 1,044,836 669,277 683,313 1,352,590
======= ========= ------- ------- =========

.AI Includes yomg child developllll!f'lt.

JV Consists of community development and organization, children in especially difficult circumstances and women-centred programmes.

JOt Includes, in 1992 figures, an amount of $3,357 for Central European countries.
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Table 6

Statys of funds from the United Nations system related to Board-apprOVed programmes as at 31 December 1991

(UnIted States dollars)

Opening
balance

1 January 1990 Received
Accounts
adjustet. Total Expendi tures

Returned! Balance
transferred 31 December 1991

(920,747.72) 391,200.00

26.177.04 1,775,000.00

(600,000.00)(600,000.00)

6,401 ,796.54 5,374,631.30 1,027,165.24

('.1,469.89) 3,761.17 (45,231.06)

l ...65,241.08 2,309,037.18 156,203.90

(529.547.72) 1,290,434.47 (1,819,982.19)

1,801,177.04 3,253,583.52 (1,452,406.48)

4,832.00 4,832.00 332.00 4,500.00

(5,000.25) 0.00 0.00 0.00

168.25 553,556.64 1,210,513.78 (656,957.14)

6,134,458.90

553,388.39

5,000.25

(600,000.00)

267,337.64

(41,469.89)

(1,201,472.62) 3,666,713.70

Uni ted Net ions
Secretary-General'a
appeals

United Nations African
Emergency Trust Fund

Office of the Special
Representative of the
Secretary-General for
CanOodia

UNDRO

UNHCR

UNCDF

UNDP

UNFPA

UNESCO

I
10
N
I

Coordinator for United Nations
Assistance Programme Relatir~

to Afghanistan

Worid Banlt

PANO, Washington

Total

3,586,539.79 4,648,962.23 8,235,502.02 6,268,477.37 1,967,024.65

(257,754.36) (257,754.36) 120.82 (257,875.18)

30,000.00 30,000.00 19,240.73 10,759.27
------------ -------------

w _________ .. ______ ... ________ ----._---_ .. _- ---~ .. _.. _----- .... _----------
1,416,998.52 16,646,334.83 0.00 18,063,333.35 19,730,132.34 0.00 (1,666,798.99)
============ ============= ============= ============= ------------- ============= =============-------------

...

Table 7
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Table 7

'Assistance financed by UNFPA through UNICEF in the bjennjym 1990-1991

(United States dollars)

...

Country

Africa

Central African
Republ ic

Mal i

Senegal

Asia

Unspent balance of
commitments as of

1 January 1990

61,316

2,109

34

New
allocations

(50,530)

(2,109)

Adjustment

(10,786)

Total

o

o
34

Expenditure

34

Unspent balance
cornni tments as

at 31 Declllllber 1991

o

o
o

I
10
W
I

Afghanistan

China

Sri Lanka

Total

26,688 (11,076) 15,612 15,612 0

20,000 (20,000) 0 0

11 11 11 0
-------- ------ ------ --------

110,158 (72,639) (21,862) 15,657 15,657 0
------- ------- -------- ------ ------ ========--------

r&

~-T -

. ,",c. '".->.-"'....:.,~

I
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ANNEX II

QIQssary Qf selected UNICEF terminQIQgy used in the repQrt

ACCOUNTS, AUDITED

The financial statements Qf the QrganizatiQn fQr a specified periQd Qr at
a specified date audited by the External AuditQrs (United NatiQns Board
Qf AuditQrs).

ACCRUAL SYSTEM OF ACCOUNTING

TQ record incQme Qr expenditures in the aCQunting periQd tQ which they
relate, notwithstanding that the receipt or payment Qf funds may take
place in a different accQunting periQd.

BUDGET CO

A plan in fiLancial terms fQr carrying out prQpQsed activities in a
specified time. The Executive BQard apprQves an apprQpriatiQn Qf funds
fQr UNICEF administrative and prQgramme suppQrt CQsts.

Budget estimates

Estimates of the costs of proposed administrative and programme support
activities prepared for submission to the UNCIEF Executive Board for the
approval of relevant appropriations.

Budget estimates, revised

Resulting from Executive BQard apprQval Qf "supplementary estimates"
prQposed tQ adjust an apprQved budget.

~et apprQpriatiQns

The tQtal apprQpriatiQn Qf funds apprQved by the Executive BQard fQr
UNICEF administrative and prQgramme support CQsts, against which
QbligatiQns may be incurred fQr thQse purpQses up tQ the amQunt SQ
approved.

CASH HOLDINGS

The aggregation of all the funds Qf the QrganizatiQn, including cQins,
bank notes, cheques, balances in current and call accQunts, saving
accounts and interest-bearing deposits.

Cash-in-transit

Cash transfers between one or mQre UNICEF bank aCCQunts at a specified
time.
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Cash in current bank accounts

The aggregate of money maintained in UNICEF bank accounts, as reflected
in UNICEF books of account, to sustain operational requirements.

Cash in interest-bearing deposits

Funds temporarily available, over those needed for immediate requirement,
held in short-term interest-bearing deposits and ready to be drawn down
when needed.

Cash-on-hand
(also called "petty cash")

Cash kept on hand by authoriz.ed officers as a convenience for making
small payments on behalf of the organization.

CONTRIBUTIONS, VOLUNTARY

Contributions to UNICEF that are offered and accepted without reference
to a scale of assessment determined by any United Nations legislative
body.

CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE

Contributions pledged to UNICEF but not received until a future time.

CURRENCIES OF "RESTRICTED USE" FOR UNICEF

Currencies, the use of which (mainly in respect of transferability and
convertibility) is limited because of foreign exchange regulations or
donor's wish. When those limitations do not exist, the currencies are
considered by UNICEF as "unrestricted" because they are fully convertible.

EARMARKED

To give expr.ession to a restriction imposed by agreement or by
administrative action on the use of an account or of an equivalent amount
of assets.

EQUIPMENT, NOT-EXPENDABLE

Equipment with a serviceable life of more than one accounting period for
which inventory records are maintained.

EXPENDITURES

The payment of cash or the incurring of a liability for the purpose of
programme cooperation or in suppryrt thereof. Programme expenditures,
which are recorded on an accrual basis, reflect the actual UNICEF inputs
for the period in the form of supplies, ~quipment and/or services.
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FINANCIAL PERIODS

The operating period of the organization covered by the financial
statements is ~n a biennial basis.

FINANCIAL REGULATIONS

Until 31 December 1987, UNICEF ~c~ounts were maintained in accordance
with the Financial Regulations ~ the United Nations, with such
modifications as required by the nature of UNICEF work. Since
1 January 1988, UNICEF accounts have been maintained in accordance with
the UNICEF Financial Regulations and Rules.

FUND BALANCE

The aggregate net value of UNICEF expressed as the net balance of total
assets minus total liabilities. Consists of funds available for the
implementation of programmes funded by general resources and
supplementary funds as well as funds available for the acquisition of
capital assets.

INCOME

Money or firm pledges received or accrued during a financial period that
increase the resources of UNICEF for implementation of approved
programmes.

UNICEF income is recorded on the basis of funds or pledges received for
the current year. It comprises funds classified as "general resources"
and "supplementary funds".

IncQme, deferred

Funds received or pledges recorded as receivable, attributable tQ future
financial periods and, therefore, nQt credited to the incQme aCCQunt Qf
the periQd repQrted Qn.

IncQme, general resources

Unearmarked income which includes funds from vQluntary annual
contributions of Governments, the net income from the Greeting Card
OperatiQn, funds cQntributed by the public and certain "Qther (Qr
miscellaneous) income".

IncQme, other

Also referred to as "miscellaneQus income" for general resources.

Income other than the value of the voluntary contributions and the net
income of the Greeting Card OperatiQn.
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Income, supplementary funds

Specific contributions for programmes approve. by the UNICEF Executive
Board, in addition to general resources, which then become part of UNICEF
programmes.

Consists of funds contributed to UNICEF by Governments, non-governmental
organizations and United Nations agencies for specific purposes.

INVENTORY

The value of supplies and equipment for programmes owned by the
organization, as well as Greeting Card Operation materials at the end of
an accounting or financial period.

LIQUIDITY POLICY

Owing to the nature of programme implementation and UNICEF cash flows,
there may occur, from time to time, short-term imbalances between general
resources cash disbursements and cash receipts. UNICEF liquidity policy
allows these temporary imbalances to be offset by up to one half of the
balance of supplementary cash-on-hand.

LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENT

To meet UNICEF liquidity requirements, general resources convertible cash
balances, at the end of each fiscal year, are required to equal
10 per cent of projected general resources income for the next fiscal
year.

LOCAL CURRENCY

The currency of the country or area in which the local financial records
of an activity are kept and/or in which its local financial transactions
take place.

OBLIGATION

A financial engagement involving a liability against the resources of the
currant financial period.

PLEDGE

A written commitment by a prospective donor to make a voluntary
contribution to UNICEF. A written commitment which is subject to the
need to secure an appropriate national legislative approval is conside~ed

a pledge.
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PROCUREMENT SERVICES

UNICEF assists Governments, United Nations agencies and non-governmental
organizations working in the fields of benefit to children, by
undertaking, on request and on a reimbursable basis, the procurement of
goods and services. A small handling charge is added by UNICEF to the
cost of the supplies and services to cover the costs of extra
administration and documentation (see special accounts).

RATES OF EXCHANGE

The UNICEF accounts are maintained in United States dollars.
Transactions in other currencies are converted for recording into United
States dollars, in principle, at the United Nations operational rates of
exchange.

RESERVE FOR INSURANCE

A reserve of $200,000 WaS established by the Executive Board in
November 1950 when UNICEF adopted a policy of self-insurance for
programme supplies. The reserve is then restored annually to the level
of $200,000 by transfer from UNICEF income (other income). UNICEF also
has a reserve of $100,000 for third-party liability.

SCHEDULE

Explanatory or supporting analyses accompanying financial statements.

SPECIAL ACCOUNTS

Funds accepted by UNICEF mainly to cover the costs of reimbursable
procurement of supplies and services undertaken by UNICEF on behalf of
others. They also include financing provided by sponsors to cover the
costs of Junior Professional Officers as well as costs specifically
approved by the Board, such as those relating to the World Summit for
Children and the World Conference on Education for All. These funds are
not considered UNICEF income, therefore, for accounting and reporting
purposes, they are recorded separately and distinguished from funds that
are part of income and are spent for programmes approved by the Board.

SPECIFIC CONTRIBUTIONS

Programme recommendations are often prepared in excess of the input
available from general resources. These recommendations are approved by
the Board as suitable for funding by supplementary contributions (or
purpose-specific contributions) from donors.

STAFF ASSESSMENT

A deduction from the gross salary of a staff member of an amount in lieu
of income tax.
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WRITE-OFF

UNENCUMBERED BALANCE

An adjustment to the accounts in order to record the loss of or reduction
in the value of an asset.
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That portion of the approved budget that has not been expended at the end
of the year. The unspent balance at the end of the biennium is cancelled
and reported to the Executive Board.
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